Public Document Pack

FAREHAM

BOROUGH COUNCIL

AGENDA FOR THE EXECUTIVE

Date: Monday, 8 January 2024
Time: 6.00 pm
Venue: Collingwood Room - Civic Offices

Executive Members:

Councillor S D T Woodward, Policy and Resources (Executive Leader)
Councillor | Bastable, Streetscene

Councillor Miss J Burton, Health & Public Protection

Councillor D G Foot, Housing

Councillor S D Martin, Planning and Development

Councillor Mrs S M Walker, Leisure and Community

Page 1




Apologies for Absence

Minutes (Pages 5 - 8)

To confirm as a correct record the minutes of the meeting of the Executive held on
11 December 2023.

Executive Leader's Announcements

Declarations of Interest

To receive any declarations of interest from members in accordance with Standing
Orders and the Council’'s Code of Conduct.

Petitions

Deputations
To receive any deputations, of which notice has been lodged.

References from Other Committees
To receive any references from the committees or panels held.

Matters for Decision in Public

Note: Where an urgent item of business is raised in accordance with Part 3 of the
Constitution, it will be considered with the relevant service decisions as appropriate.

Housing

Key Decision

(1) Emergency and Temporary Accommodation Pressure (Pages 9 - 18)
A report by the Director of Housing.

Leisure and Community

Key Decision

(1) D-Day 80 Event (Pages 19 - 24)
A report by the Assistant Director (Democracy).

10. Policy and Resources

Key Decision

(1) Fees and Charges 2024/25 (Pages 25 - 78)
A report by the Assistant Chief Executive Officer.

Non-Key Decision

Page 2



(2) Finance Strategy, Revenue Budget & Council Tax 2024/25 (Pages 79 -
128)

A report by the Assistant Chief Executive Officer.

(3) Capital Programme and Capital Strategy 2024/25 (Pages 129 - 150)
A report by the Assistant Chief Executive Officer.

(4) Fareham Town Centre Draft Regeneration Strategy and Action Plan
(Pages 151 - 190)

A report by the Director of Planning and Regeneration.

11. Exclusion of Public and Press

To consider whether it is in the public interest to exclude the public and
representatives of the Press from the remainder of the meeting on the grounds that
the matters to be dealt with involve the likely disclosure of exempt information, as
defined in Paragraph 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act
1972.

Exempt Matters for Decision

Note: Where urgent items of business are raised in accordance with Part 3 of the
Constitution, they will be considered with the relevant service decisions as appropriate.

12. Policy and Resources

Key Decision

(1) Purchase of Strategic Land at Faraday Business Park (South) (Pages 191
- 198)

A report by the Director of Planning and Regeneration.

(2) Sale of Development Land at Faraday Business Park (South) (Pages 199 -
206)

A report by the Director of Planning and Regeneration.

QA

A WANNELL
Chief Executive Officer

www.fareham.gov.uk
22 December 2023

Page 3


http://www.fareham.gov.uk/

For further information please contact:
Democratic Services, Civic Offices, Fareham, PO16 7AZ
Tel: 01329 236100
democraticservices@fareham.qov.uk

Page 4


mailto:democraticservices@fareham.gov.uk

Agenda Item 2

FAREHAM

BOROUGH COUNCIL

Minutes of the
Executive

(to be confirmed at the next meeting)

Date: Monday, 11 December 2023
Venue: Collingwood Room - Civic Offices
Present:

S D T Woodward, Policy and Resources (Executive Leader)
| Bastable, Streetscene

Miss J Burton, Health & Public Protection

D G Foot, Housing

S D Martin, Planning and Development

Mrs S M Walker, Leisure and Community

Also in attendance:

Ms C Bainbridge, for item 9(1)
Mrs K K Trott, for item 9(1)

Page 5



Executive 11 December 2023

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE
There were no apologies given for this meeting.
MINUTES

RESOLVED that the minutes of the meeting of the Executive held on 09
October 2023 be confirmed and signed as a correct record.

EXECUTIVE LEADER'S ANNOUNCEMENTS

Local Government Finance Policy Statement 2024/25

The Executive Leader announced that he has written to Suella Braverman, KC
MP and Caroline Dinenage, MP regarding the recent publication of the Local
Government Finance Policy Statement for 2024/25 urging them to encourage
colleagues at the DLUHC to reconsider the stated position prior to the
publication of the draft Local Government Finance Settlement later this month,
specifically in respect of homelessness and emergency accommodation and
also the council tax referendum threshold.

The Policy lacks flexibility for local authorities to raise costs to help them meet
the rising costs relating to homelessness and for the council tax referendum
threshold, the current method penalises those local authorities, such as
Fareham, who set a low council tax.

Welborne Junction 10 Funding

The Executive Leader announced that he will be addressing Hampshire
County Council’'s Cabinet tomorrow regarding the expected increase in the
cost of the M27 Junction 10 Improvement Scheme which is now likely to
exceed the funding available taking into account inflation and the increase in
construction costs.

The Executive Leader reminded the meeting that the Junction 10 scheme was
critical to the delivery of Welborne Garden Village and that the Right Hon
Michael Gove, MP had recently given an assurance that it would not be
allowed to fail as a result of any funding gap.

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

There were no declarations of interest made at this meeting.

PETITIONS

The Executive Leader made reference to a petition which had been received
asking the Council to “Preserve Knowle Road trees and hedgerows”. Whilst
this petition is valid in that it has received over 50 signatures, there can be no

further action with regard to it as it relates to a Welborne planning decision
which cannot be over turned.

Page 6



10.

11.

Executive

DEPUTATIONS

There were no deputations made at this meeting.

REFERENCES FROM OTHER COMMITTEES

There were no references from other Committees made at this meeting.
HOUSING

(1) Housing Allocations Policy

RESOLVED that the Executive agrees to public consultation for a period of six
weeks on the draft Housing Allocations Policy, as provided in Appendix A to
the report.

POLICY AND RESOURCES

(1) Finance Monitoring 2023/24

At the invitation of the Executive Leader, Councillors Mrs C Bainbridge and
Mrs K K Trott addressed the Executive on this item.

RESOLVED that the Executive notes the Finance Monitoring Report.

(2)  Treasury Monitoring and Capital Monitoring 2023/24

RESOLVED that the Executive notes the Treasury Management and Capital
Monitoring report for 2023/24

EXCLUSION OF PUBLIC AND PRESS

RESOLVED that the public and representatives of the press be excluded from
the remainder of the meeting on the grounds that the matters to be dealt with
involve the likely disclosure of exempt information, as defined in Paragraphs 1,
2 and 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972.

POLICY AND RESOURCES

(1) Irrecoverable Debts - Quarter 2

RESOLVED that the Executive agrees that the debts listed in the confidential

Appendix A to the report be written off as irrecoverable.

(The meeting started at 6.00 pm
and ended at 6.25 pm).

................................................. Chairman

Page 7

11 December 2023



Executive 11 December 2023

Page 8



Agenda Item 8(1)

FAREHAM

BOROUGH COUNCIL

Report to the Executive for Decision
08 January 2024

Portfolio: Housing
Subject: Emergency and Temporary Accommodation Pressure
Report of: Director of Housing

Corporate Priorities:  Providing Housing Choices

Purpose:

To seek Executive approval for additional capital budget to be made available to the
Capital Programme for the purpose of acquisitions or other forms of provision that
will provide emergency and temporary accommodation opportunities.

Executive summary:

The provision of emergency and temporary accommodation is a statutory function of
the authority. Costs of providing this are primarily met through the General Fund.
The overall expenditure on this by the Council has increased dramatically in recent
years. This is reflective of similar trends experienced at other district and unitary
authorities.

To mitigate this unsustainable and rising cost it is proposed that further capital
budget is made available to allow for property acquisitions or long lease
arrangements which will provide a more cost-effective solution. Council provided
accommodation in the Borough will often also be better for our customers,
decreasing the reliance on B&B use outside of the Borough, and providing
accommodation with access to cooking and laundry facilities.

Recommendation:
It is recommended that the Executive:

(a) agrees an increase in capital budget, to purchase or directly provide
further emergency accommodation, to a level of expenditure as set out in
Confidential Appendix A to this report; and

(b) delegates authority to the Director of Housing, following consultation with
the Executive Member for Housing, to agree the final acquisition cost,
terms of purchase and/or long lease arrangements (subject to the
purchase being within affordable levels), of any suitable property or
properties identified.

Page 9




Reason:
To enable the Council to pursue in a timely manner appropriate opportunities for
new emergency housing provision directly by the Council.

Cost of proposals:

The additional capital expenditure is detailed in Confidential Appendix A. Although
such costs will increase the borrowing costs and capital expenditure from the
General Fund, it is intended to reduce the detrimental revenue cost currently being
incurred in fulfilling the Council’s statutory function to provide emergency/temporary
accommodation.

Appendices: A: Confidential Appendix*
* Commercially exempt from publication

It is not in the public interest to publish this
information as revealing the budget values would
harm the Council’s ability to achieve best value in
negotiating a favourable price for the purchase of
property or properties. Disclosure of any details
prior to any exchange of contracts may result in a
weak negotiating position for the Council and
potentially jeopardise the successful completion of
a transaction.

B: Data (recent costs and need for emergency
accommodation)

Background papers: None

Reference papers: 09 October 2023 Executive Report (Town centre property
acquisition for affordable housing provision)

Page 10



FAREHAM

BOROUGH COUNCIL

Executive Briefing Paper
Date: 08 January 2024
Subject: Emergency and Temporary Accommodation Pressure
Briefing by: | Director of Housing
Portfolio: Housing
INTRODUCTION

The Council, like many others nationally, has seen a significant increase in the
expenditure on emergency housing provision. This trend continues to rise because of
multiple factors. If not addressed, this could compromise the longer-term sustainability
of the Council’s General Fund resources.

Short term urgent action is required to reduce the revenue expenditure in this area. This
could be achieved through the acquisition of (or long-lease arrangement for) suitable
properties that can provide Council owned emergency accommodation. This would
reduce the reliance on external B&B use (often outside of the Borough and at significant
financial cost) whilst also provide customers with access to cooking and laundry
facilities.

BACKGROUND

The table below shows the sharp increase in expenditure on emergency and temporary
accommodation by Fareham Borough Council in recent years, including the proportion
that cost is as a percentage of the overall General Fund Budget.

2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 2023/24
(until Nov)

B&B/low-cost £119,782 £607,453 £626,642 £1,108,864 | £1,699,214
hotel total costs
Net cost to £72,022 £460,445 £482,374 £892,673 £1,424,240
Council*®
% of General 0.77% 4.79% 4.6% 8.12% 11.97%
Fund Budget

Table 1 (* taking account of Housing Benefit and customer contributions)

This is reflective of national trends. Recent information compiled by the District Council’
Network (DCN) has shown that 96% of DCN member Council’s have reported an
increased use of temporary accommodation, 80% of whom describing the increase as
‘significant’.

Page 11




5.

10.

11.

12.

13.

Locally, at Fareham Borough, this has been driven by various factors which include: -

¢ Increased demand/need

¢ Insufficient Council owned temporary/emergency accommodation

e Long placements in Council owned temporary/emergency accommodation (due
to difficultly in moving occupants on)

e Longer placements in B&B/temporary accommodation (due to difficulty in moving
occupants on)

¢ Increased per night cost at B&Bs and other emergency accommodation options

e Competition for supply (other Council’s drawing on the same limited options,
driving cost)

Detailed data has been recorded by Officers on the number of Fareham Borough
customers/households in B&B/low-cost hotel accommodation since early 2022/23 (table
for reference included in Appendix B). This shows a rising trend of customers requiring
emergency accommodation, with increased frequency of new placements per month
exceeding 20 customers.

The need for emergency accommodation can be for many reasons, from family
breakdown, loss of private rented accommodation, sudden loss of accommodation (fire
or similar), and many other reasons. Often households in emergency/temporary
accommodation will be owed a ‘main duty’; meaning they will qualify for our Housing
Register and await a suitable match based on their banding/priority and need.

The currently gross spend on B&B/low-cost hotels for this financial year (2023/24), part
way through Quarter 3, is over £1.5M. Trends would suggest that the overall cost could
be close to £2M by financial year end. Some of this cost is offset by Housing Benefit
payments and customer contributions, but the net costs remain high.

Meeting this cost for 2023/24 will require the use of reserves. This is not a sustainable
approach should demand and costs continue at current or increased levels. More
measures and interventions are now urgently needed to decrease the rate of current net
expenditure.

PREVIOUS ACTIONS & MEASURES

92 Gordon Road

92 Gordon Road was purchased by the Council and now provides a 9No. bedroom
House of Multiple Occupation (HMO). Each room has an ensuite and residents have
access to shared kitchen, lounge/diner, and laundry facilities.

Since opening in spring 2023, 92 Gordon Road has largely run at full capacity (save a
room that suffered from a roof leak, and minimal void periods between different
residents). Despite concerns from neighbours during the change of use planning
application, no noise or disturbance complaints have been logged with Environmental
Health, Planning Enforcement, or directly with Housing in relation to the use of the
property for emergency accommodation.

92 Gordon Road (considering running costs etc.) will avoid circa £290,000 additional
expenditure (which would otherwise have been incurred in addition to the figures
outlined on Table 1) per annum. Although very successful, it has become increasingly
clear that further provision of directly provided emergency accommodation is needed.

The acquisition and works costs for 92 Gordon Road will be recouped (via cost

Page 12



14.

15.

16.

17.

18.

19.

20.

avoidance) in 3-4 years of becoming operational. This property purchase has therefore
proved to be a sound financial decision, whilst also providing customers with more
facilities than they would have had access to in a B&B, and keeping customers in the
Borough.

Leasehold/Farelets

Officers continue to try and secure (and retain) appropriate lease options on other
privately owned properties which can provide temporary accommodation. This often
through the Farelets programme. There is some pressure on this resource as some
landlords reconsider their assets, and as we endeavour to compete with higher open
market rents that might be achieved via an agent. An internal review of the success and
challenges of Farelets will be undertaken in due course to see if there is merit in further
support or adaption to the programme.

Town Centre Acquisition (medium term)

In September 2023, Executive agreed that officers should pursue an acquisition
opportunity in Fareham town centre. Positive discussions are ongoing with the vendor
and if achieved the site is intended to be redeveloped to provide purpose-built
emergency/temporary accommodation. Although hugely important to the medium/long
term solution to the on-going need, this will not provide a solution or mitigate rising costs
in the immediate 1-2-year period.

Revisions to the Allocations Policy

In addition, proposed changes to the Allocations Policy (subject to consultation early
2024) will increase the priority banding of many customers in emergency
accommodation. This will mean those customers who are placed in a B&B or other
emergency accommodation will often be given a high priority (when a main duty is
owed), allowing them to be moved to a more permanent housing solution via the
Housing Register sooner. This in turn frees up the available emergency accommodation
for new customers presenting.

Internal Governance

Since spring 2023, the Director of Housing, Interim Head of Housing and various
managers meet fortnightly to go through, in detail, individual cases in emergency
accommodation. The priority of these meetings was initially to ensure families were not
in B&B accommodation for more than six weeks (and ideally not at all), but to also focus
on moving all customers out of emergency/B&B accommodation sooner, and to make
better use of the most cost-effective emergency accommodation available.

This approach has successfully ensured fewer families are ever placed in B&Bs (and if
they are, they are moved on quickly). Over recent months, no children have been
placed in B&Bs. Some long-term individual B&B placements have also been re-housed.

These measures have avoided a further worsening of the situation in terms of
expenditure, and number of households in B&B at each month end. However, these
positive changes have been masked by an increase in demand, particularly during
autumn 2023. Further data on new B&B placements, and ended B&B placements, (and
total households in B&B) by month, is provided in Appendix B.

CAPITAL INVESTMENT IN FURTHER SOLUTIONS

The recommendation of this report is intended to provide Officers (through delegation to
the Director of Housing following consultation with the Executive Member for Housing)
with the means to pursue further short-term solutions to the ongoing

Page 13



21.

22.

23.

24.

25.

26.

emergency/temporary accommodation issue, with the objectives to: -

(1) provide a more cost-effective and financially sustainable solution, which
lessens the detrimental impact to the General Fund; and

(2) provide, wherever possible, in Borough solutions which allow customers to
remain closer to networks, work, schools etc.; and

(3) provide, wherever possible, accommodation that ensures customers have
access to cooking and laundry facilities.

There is a need for some urgency to this, and delegated authority with associated
capital budget will allow Officers to pursue and move forward swiftly with appropriate
options. This might include the purchase of freehold premises that could provide
emergency accommodation, with no or minimal works required. It may also include a
long lease arrangement or similar, or buying newly constructed or existing homes on the
market.

Any acquisitions will involve appropriate expertise from multiple service areas. This will
include Housing teams (in relation to need and potential management), Surveyors from
both the Housing and Corporate Property teams (to advise on condition of property, fire
risk measures, and any works required), Asset Management (to advise on values,
conveyancing, etc.), Finance (to ensure any approach is a sound financial decision, and
that most prudent funding/borrowing means are achieved), and Legal services.
Consultation with Development Management in its role as Local Planning Authority will
also occur if necessary.

The capital funds and delegated approval sought as part of this report, is separate and
in addition to the specific town centre property acquisition identified in the 09 October
2023 report to Executive.

RISKS

Any acquisition/long-lease opportunity will be carefully reviewed by Officers to ensure
that values are appropriate, and that the investment will be a sound financial decision
when considered against the alternative, which would be the continued use of B&Bs.

Property assets remain a sound financial investment, so even should the need for
emergency accommodation unexpectedly decline in future years, the Council could then
look at other options for any properties acquired, such as residential accommodation for
general needs affordable housing, or disposal of the asset.

ENVIRONMENTAL CONSIDERATIONS/CARBON IMPACT ASSESSMENT

The subject matter of this report is not anticipated to have an impact on the Council’s
carbon footprint, nor is it expected to have a detrimental or beneficial impact to the
wider environment.

Enquiries:
For further information on this report please contact Robyn Lyons (01329) 824305

Page 14



By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 15






Appendix B — Data (recent costs and demand for emergency

accommodation)

EG

[hs]

EG

or

¥

ar

15

0s

ar

BE

cE

B

LE

lE

8E

gE

ar

L+

lE

lE

PUS YpuoLw
1E g@%d Ul |10 L

Le

g1

Ll

cl

EL

g2l

aL

gl

Ll

gl

g2l

)

g

Fl

Ll

Ll

cl

Fl

SJUSWSE|d
g%4 p=pu3

gl

g¢

8¢

gl

cl

ve

gl

Sl

el

gl

8

L

L

5L

gl

cl

8

SUEER |
H%d Man

e
AON

£,

dag

L3
By

£,
inr

e
unp

L
fe

L3
Iy

e
1ep

£,
gad

o
uep

.
280

CL.:
AON

[
Bo

[t
dag

CL
By

[
inr

CL.:
unp

[l
e

CL
Jdy

Figure
B1 -

B&B Cost Increases as % of GF Budget

graph
showing

14.00%
12.00%

B&B
cost as

10.00%

8.00%

6.00%

4.00%

2.00%

20/21 21/22 22/23 23/24

19/20

0.00%

percentage of GF budget

Figure B2 — gross B&B spend by year

B&B Spend

500000
450000
400000
350000
300000
250000
200000
150000

100000

yuow &g g9g w suswadeld ployasnoy 1o JaqunNy — g aunbig

YZ-€2 V0
YZ-€2 €0
YZ-€2 20
YZ-€2 TO

T
s
1}

o

€e-CT Y0
€C-CCED
€e¢-CT 70
€2-CZ 1O

Ze-Tevo
7Z-TZ €0
Ze-Teeo
Ze-1Z 10

Te-0Z 0
Te-0Z €0
Te-0Z 70
Te-0Z 10

0Z-6T 10
0Z-6T €0
0Z-6T 70D
0Z-6T TO

6T-8T+vD
6T-8T €0
6T-8T70
= 61-8TTD

0

50000

[%]
L]

Quarter [ Year

Figure B4 — Households Placed in B&B by year

Page 17



200
180
160
140
120
100
80
60
40
20

Households Placed in B&Bs by year

2018/19

2019/20

2020/21

2021/22

Page 18

2022/23



Agenda Item 9(1)

FAREHAM

BOROUGH COUNCIL

Report to the Executive for Decision
08 January 2024

Portfolio: Leisure and Community / Policy and Resources
Subject: D-Day 80 Event
Report of: Assistant Director (Democracy)

Corporate Priorities:  Leisure opportunities for wellbeing and fun

Purpose:
To consider proposals for the Council to support an event to recognise the 80th
Anniversary of D-Day at Solent Airport @ Daedalus.

Executive summary:

6th June 2024 is the 80th Anniversary of the D-Day Landings and the Battle of
Normandy that led to the liberation of France and Europe. In 2019, the Council
commemorated the 75" Anniversary with a well-received community event held at
Solent Airport @ Daedalus and, consequently, the Executive are invited to consider
whether it wishes to recognise the 80th Anniversary next year.

This report considers the options available, including the potential for a similar event
to be staged and an approach has been received by an external events company to
run this.

Recognising the significant milestone events also taking place during 2024,
including a full local election, completion and launch of Fareham Live, 50t Borough
Anniversary events, the finite officer capacity for these exceptional events alongside
the annual programme of activities, and taking account of lessons learned from
previous events, it is proposed to invite an events management company to
organise a community event at Daedalus, alongside a simultaneous fly-in event at
Solent Airport.

Recommendation:
It is recommended that the Executive agrees:

(a) to appoint Montserrat Events Community Interest Company to organise an
event, under licence, to commemorate the 80th Anniversary of D-Day in June
2024 non-airside at Daedalus, subject to financial approvals and subject to
agreement of detailed terms and conditions;

Page 19




(b) subject to the approval of (a), to delegate authority to the Assistant Director
(Democracy), following consultation with the Executive Member for Leisure
and Community to agree Heads of Terms and conditions for the Licence
agreement; and

(c) to request a simultaneous fly-in event at Solent Airport, organised by the
Council’s Airport Operator.

Reason:
To enable an event to recognise the 80th Anniversary of D-Day to take place at
Daedalus.

Cost of proposals:

While further work is needed to identify the breakdown of costs for the event, the
Executive are asked to earmark £30,000 from General Fund reserves to support the
event.

Appendices: None

Background papers: Lee Victory Festival 2023 Briefing Note on lessons learnt
(Confidential)*

*By virtue of paragraph 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of
the Local Government Act 1972 — Information relating to
the financial or business affairs of any particular person
and category 7A (information which is subject to an
obligation of confidentiality) of Schedule 12A Local
Government Act 2972 and the Council’s Access to
Information Procedure Rules.

Reference papers: None

Page 20



FAREHAM

BOROUGH COUNCIL

Executive Briefing Paper

Date: 08 January 2024

Subject: D-Day 80 Event

Briefing by: | Assistant Director (Democracy)

Portfolio: Leisure and Community / Policy and Resources

INTRODUCTION

1. 6th June 2024 is the 80th Anniversary of the D-Day Landings and the Battle of
Normandy that led to the liberation of France and Europe. In 2019, the Council
commemorated the 75" Anniversary with a well-received community event at Solent
Airport.

2. An opportunity exists to recognise the 80th Anniversary in 2024 and officers have been
considering the options available, including the potential for a similar event to be staged
and an approach has been received by an external events company to run this.

D-DAY 75 AT SOLENT AIRPORT

3. The D-Day 75 event was held over two days on 8 and 9 June 2019 and included a flying
and static aircraft display, a classic car display, fun fair, games area, community and
craft stalls, food concessions, live music and other performances, an event arena
showcasing motorcycling displays, dance displays and a marching band, and children's
activities.

4. The event was attended by around 15,000 people and funded from ticket sales
supplemented with a contribution from the council of around £24,000. Officer resource
costs were not included in the cost of the overall event but it was a significant
undertaking both before and during the event.

LEE VICTORY FESTIVAL

5. Montserrat Events CIC (EO) approached the Council for permission to use Solent
Airport for a Lee Victory Festival on 22-24 September 2023.

6. Whilst the festival was well received and popular with the local community, a number of
lessons were learned in relation to the preparation and planning stages of the event
which resulted in unexpected officer time and resources being committed at a late stage
to ensure the smooth running of the event.

Page 21



7.

A confidential debrief summary report has been created by officers to identify those
operational and preparatory issues experienced. This document will provide valuable
learning points to be reflected in the licence agreement for the proposed D-Day 80
event. Some of those issues identified include:

e Clear plan for airside and non-airside areas to be controlled by appropriate barrier
fencing;

e Specific areas of responsibility clarified including control of public movement within
the non-airside perimeter; and

e Clear communication channels between the Council, as landowner, the Event
Organisers and the airport operator.

PROPOSALS FOR A D-DAY 80 COMMEMORATION EVENT

While there is a desire to recognise the 80" anniversary of D-Day next year, existing
commitments in the Spring of 2024, including the all-out Council elections, the opening
of Fareham Live and activities linked to the Borough Council’s 50th Anniversary, make
the delivery of an event at Daedalus extremely challenging in terms of the capacity of
officer resources. However, the value of the proposed event to the community is
recognised so an alternative approach to delivering an event has been explored.

In September 2023, Montserrat Events CIC organised the successful Lee Victory
Festival at Solent Airport and they have expressed their interest in organising the D-Day
80 event. A summary of the learning points from the Lee Victory Festival is attached at
confidential Appendix A.

10.In order to provide capacity to deliver the event, and taking into account the lessons

11.

learned both from the D-Day 75 event in 2019 and last year’s Lee Victory Festival, the
following is proposed to deliver a commemorative event for D-Day 80:

(a) Subject to financial approvals, to appoint Montserrat Events CIC to organise an
event, under licence, to commemorate the 80th Anniversary of D-Day in June 2024
non-airside at Daedalus, subject to agreement of detailed terms and conditions;

(b) to request a simultaneous fly-in event at Solent Airport, organised by the Council’s
Airport Operator;

This approach would allow a vibrant community event to proceed with a limited demand
for officer resource as the responsibility for all aspects of non-airside planning and
delivery would be the responsibility of the event organiser. Importantly, the approach
will de-risk the event for the event organiser, as it would be non-airside only and would
leave the airside activity fully within the remit of the Council’s airport operator, thus
limiting the need for extra-ordinary airside costs.

12.A fly-in event would allow the airport operator to promote and attract a wide range of

interesting and relevant aircraft to fly into Solent Airport and a temporary parking area
could be created such that visitors to the community event would be able to see the
aircraft. While an air display would not be appropriate, there could be a “fly past” for the
crowd’s enjoyment and the Council have already expressed an interest to the Red
Arrows and Battle of Britain Memorial Flight teams to participate in the event.

Page 22



13.In order to ensure that the simultaneous activities operate in a complementary way, it
will be necessary to engage the services of an event programme co-ordinator, to bring
together the event organiser, the airport operator and the council officers through the
planning process, and to ensure the event is delivered smoothly by all parties in
compliance with the licence/other agreements.

OTHER OPTIONS CONSIDERED

14.The following options have also been considered, should Members feel that the
approach outlined above was not appropriate, as follows.

15.Do Nothing: The event in 2019 marked 75 years since D-Day and was fitting as a
quarter-centennial event, alongside a national programme of recognition. Whilst it is not
proposed to create an expectation for an event at regular 5-year intervals, it may be
appropriate to fulfil a recognition event for the 80" anniversary given that there are D-
Day veterans who may be able to attend. If Members were minded to go ahead with a
community event, this could happen at a different time in the year, when capacity would
be greater to support the event.

16.Marked in a different way: Alternative ways to recognise D-Day 80 could be
considered, such as temporary signage at Solent Daedalus, a fly-in for heritage aircraft,
VIP visit to Solent Airport for Fareham veterans and their relatives, a history of
Daedalus on D-Day videoclip with associated promotional activity. These options could
be accommodated if the Executive were not supportive of the proposed event.

17.Repeat D-Day 75 event: This option was considered, but as it would be a Council-led
event, it was rejected as a viable option due to insufficient capacity in the events team
that would be necessary to ensure a safe and successful event.

18.Allow a third party to lead the event in full: This option was also considered as a
means of limiting the demand on Council resources. However, the lessons learned
from the Lee Victory Festival suggest that operators would not be willing to proceed with
an event of this scale without the Council underwriting the financial risk (e.g. in the
event of poor weather, low ticket sales, extra-ordinary costs). This, together with the
operational issues that arose, led to this option being rejected.

ENVIRONMENTAL CONSIDERATIONS/CARBON IMPACT ASSESSMENT

19.Although difficult to quantify, it is recognised that there will be additional carbon
emissions associated with running the two connected events, particularly the fly-in.
However, the importance of the 80th Anniversary of D-Day to our community means
that it is considered appropriate to proceed with proposals.

FINANCIAL AND RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS

20.In addition to the Council’s normal programme of events and activities, 2024 will see
three significant and exceptional events in addition; a borough-wide election, launch of
Fareham Live and 50" anniversary of the borough. Therefore, officer capacity is very
limited and additional resource will be required to deliver any D-Day 80 activity. The
proposed event will require some additional event co-ordination resource, estimated to
be c¢.£10,000, plus any costs directly attributed to the licence agreement with the
community event co-ordinator.

21.In order to make the event viable, it is anticipated that the event licence will not have a

Page 23



fee attributed to it, and airport fees will likely be heavily discounted to attract heritage
aircraft. Furthermore, any fly past activity will need to be funded.

22.Consequently, it would be necessary to earmark £30,000 from the Council’s revenue
reserves if the proposed event is supported.

SUMMARY

23.The 6th June 2024 is the 80th Anniversary of the D-Day Landings and the Battle of
Normandy that led to the liberation of France and Europe. In 2019, the Council
commemorated the 75th Anniversary with a well-received community event at Solent
Airport and the Council wishes to commemorate the 80th Anniversary next year with
another event at Solent Airport.

24.Given concerns about staff capacity and taking account of lessons learned from
previous events, it is proposed to invite an events management company to organise a
community event at Daedalus, alongside a simultaneous fly-in event at Solent Airport.

25.Further work is needed to work up the costs for the event that will need funding from
Council budgets. Approval for the funding, once the value is known, will be sought from
the Executive in February as part of the Revenue Budget report and the delegations
and appointments set out in this report are subject to that finding being made available.

Enquiries:
For further information on this report please contact Leigh Usher on 01329 824553.

Page 24



Agenda Item 10(1)

FAREHAM

BOROUGH COUNCIL

Report to the Executive for Decision
08 January 2024

Portfolio: Policy and Resources
Subject: Fees and Charges 2024/25
Report of: Assistant Chief Executive Officer

Corporate Priorities:  Responsive, Inclusive and Innovative Council

Purpose:
This report provides an update and proposals for the Council’s fees and charges for
the financial year 2024/25.

Executive summary:

This report gives the Executive the opportunity to consider the Council's fees and
charges for 2024/25 including approving increases in existing charges and consider
new charges where applicable.

Recommendation/Recommended Option:
It is recommended that the Executive:

(a) approves the fees and charges for 2024/25 as set out at Appendix A to this
report;

(b) notes the fees and charges that will be reviewed by the Licencing and
Regulatory Affairs and Planning Committees;

(c) notes the Solent Airport Daedalus charges at Appendix B to this report;

(d) approves the increase for the Trade Waste fees and charges as set out at the
confidential Appendix C to this report;

(e) gives delegated authority to the Head of Streetscene to agree concessions to
the Trade Waste charges at Appendix C to win business that will be of benefit
to the Council; and

(f) notes the other fees and charges at Appendix C.

Page 25



Reason:

The proposed fees and charges will continue to support delivery of the Council’s
services and contribute to the budgets setting process for 2024/25.

Cost of proposals:

There are no costs to the proposals.

Appendices:

Background papers:

Reference papers:

A: Published Fees and Charges 2024/25

B: Solent Airport Daedalus Charges from April 2023 for
information

C: Confidential Fees and Charges 2024/25**

** Fees and Charges 2024/25 Appendix C (Confidential) — By
virtue of paragraph 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Local
Government Act 1972 — Information relating to the financial or
business affairs of any particular person and category 7A
(information which is subject to an obligation of confidentiality)
of Schedule 12A Local Government Act 2972 and the
Council’'s Access to Information Procedure Rules. It is not in
the public interest to publish this information as it would harm
the Council’s ability to achieve best value by way of
negotiations where there may also be an obligation of
confidence in relation to the financial and technical content for
any procurement exercise. Disclosure could adversely affect
competitive bids and remove the necessary element of market
competition that drives best value principles.

None

Report to Executive 9 January 2023 - Fees and Charges
2023/24

Report to Executive 6 December 2022 — Review of
parking charges at coastal locations

Page 26




FAREHAM

BOROUGH COUNCIL

Executive Briefing Paper

Date: 08 January 2024

Subject: Fees and Charges 2024/25

Briefing by: | Assistant Chief Executive Officer

Portfolio: Policy and Resources
INTRODUCTION

The Council levies Fees and Charges for a number of services it provides. This is an
important source of funding for Council services and therefore contributes to the
budget setting process. As Government funding continues to reduce, Councils are
expected to adopt a more commercial approach to their fees and charges income
streams.

This report therefore provides an update following the latest annual review of the
Council’s fee and charges and makes proposals for increasing current charges and
also implementing new charges where opportunities have been identified. The table
below sets out the full extent of the Council’s fees and charges and highlights which
are covered by this report:

Covered by this report with the following exceptions:

e Licensing Fees reviewed by the Licensing and
FBC Published Fees and Charges | Appendix A Regulatory Affairs Committee in January

e Planning Fees reviewed by the Planning
Committee in January

The charges will be reviewed in March 2024 for
implementation in April 2024 by the airport operator
after consultation with the Head of Strategic Sites and
the Executive Leader.

Solent Airport Fees and Charges | Appendix B

Confidential Fees and Charges
(commercially sensitive)

A. Trade Waste Covered by this report
. . An update of these for 2024/25 will be as an Appendix
B. Housing Rent and Service to the Housing Revenue Account report to the
Charges (HRA) Lo
. Executive in February
Appendix C

An update of these for 2024/25 will be as an Appendix
to the Housing Revenue Account report to the
Executive in February

C. Housing Careline Charges
(General Fund)

The Building Control hourly rate is reviewed by the
D. Building Control Building Control Partnership Panel. Next review due in
February 2024.

Page 27



10.

11.

BUDGET SETTING PRINCIPLES

The budget setting principles are detailed in the Council’'s Medium-Term Finance
Strategy and the one proposed relating to fees and charges is shown below:

e Fees and charges to be increased to cover any increase in costs and achieve a
realistic increase in income wherever possible. Every effort should be made to
identify new sources of income to help fund the provision of council services. The
proposed charges should be considered alongside those for similar services in
neighbouring authorities and, where appropriate, the charges levied by private
sector providers.

A detailed review of fees and charges has been carried out in light of the current cost
of living crisis. The current rate of inflation as at October 2023 is 4.6% and many of
the charges have been increased to reflect this and also the increased cost to
running the council services. Generally the charges are rounded to be kept at whole
pounds.

CHANGES PROPOSED FOR 2024/25

There have been a number of changes to fees and charges. In most cases, an
increase is proposed in line with the policy and reflects the current high level of
inflation. The full list of these proposed charges is given in Appendix A.

The following paragraphs detail changes, or otherwise, of the more significant ones.
Statutory Fees

Many of the charges that are used by the council will be statutory charges and as
such the council has no control over the setting of these charges.

One area of statutory fees relates to Planning Charges and with effect from 6
December 2023 it was announced that the minor applications would see an increase
of 25% while major applications would see an increase of 35%. These increases are
more than the proposed increase to charges that are within the control of the council
and the changes could see the budget increase by £100,000 per year. Planning Fees
were last increased in January 2018.

Discretionary Charges where No increase is Proposed

Town Centre car parking charges have not been increased since October 2010 and
there is no proposal to increase them for 2024/25 as it is again likely to impact on
service users when there is already reduced use of car parking facilities in the town
centre.

It has been agreed that there will be a review of town centre parking charges when
Fareham Live opens in the latter part of 2024.

New or Increasing Charges

The proposed changes to Beach Hut charges would be an increase of 5% over the
current charge and reflects a similar increase for the previous 3 years.

Page 28



12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

In the Parking Charges area there are charges for parking in coastal areas as
agreed by the Executive in December 2022. Coastal parking charges were
introduced in August 2021. In April 2023 the Executive agreed to Wicor Car Park
being included in the coastal car park cohort with charging starting in August 2023.

The Fees and Charge Book now incorporates the charges for the Garden Waste
Collection service approved by members in October 2020. The charges have been
reviewed in line with inflation and the new rates are shown in Appendix A.

Trade Waste charges along with a proposed 5% increase are shown in the Appendix
C. There is also a recommendation to delegate authority to the Head of Streetscene
to agree concessions to the charges in order to win business for the council in this
area.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

Fees and charges generate just under £10 million of income for the council so it is
important that the charges are reviewed regularly to ensure they still cover the
Council's costs, where possible, whilst providing value for money for users of the
services.

ENVIRONMENTAL CONSIDERATIONS/CARBON IMPACT ASSESSMENT

The subject matter of this report is not anticipated to have an impact on the Council’s
carbon footprint, nor is it expected to have a detrimental or beneficial impact to the
wider environment.

Enquiries:
For further information on this report please contact Neil Wood 01329 824506

Page 29



Appendix A

Fees and Charges
2024/25

FAREHAM

BOROUGH COUNCIL

Page 30



General Notes

1.

Fees and Charges are normally reviewed by the Council on an annual basis to
apply for the whole of the Financial Year (1 April to 31 March), but it sometimes
proves necessary to amend charges at other times during the year.

The charges shown in this book are those which apply from 1 April 2024.

VAT where charged will be at the prevailing rate, which is currently 20%.

VALUE ADDED TAX — LETTING OF SPORTS FACILITIES - EXEMPTION

VAT exemption is available for the provision of a series of lets to Schools, Clubs,
Associations or Organisations representing affiliated clubs or constituent
associations (such as local league) subject to the following guidelines:

Qo oo

The series consists of 10 or more sessions.
Each session is for the same sport or activity.
Each session is at the same place.

The interval between each session is at least a day and not more than 14
days. Letting for every other Saturday afternoon fulfils this condition but
there is no exception for intervals longer than 14 days which arise through
closure e.g. for public holidays.

The series must be paid for as a whole, and there is written evidence to that
effect.

The person to whom the facilities are let has exclusive use of them during
the sessions.

The hirer has no right to amend or cancel a booking

Page 31



Fees and Charges for Services

Beach Huts

Building Control Partnership
Cemeteries and Burial Grounds
Clean and Tidy Borough
Elections

Housing

Land Charges

Licensing Fees

Markets and Town Centre
Parking Charges

Planning Services

Public Protection

Waste Collection and Disposal
Sports and Leisure

Miscellaneous Charges

Page 32

Page

B R BBl R 2B w0 w i~ » 1w e

|w
o



BEACH HUTS

Fee Fee
2023/24 2024/25
£ £

%
Increase

Residents Inclusive of VAT 615.86 646.65 5.00
Non-Residents Inclusive of VAT 1,231.72 | 1,293.30 5.00

BUILDING CONTROL PARTNERSHIP

Building Control Partnership fees are available on application to the Head of Building Control.
Fees will not be published due to commercial sensitivity.

Page 33



I,(‘N CEMETERIES AND BURIAL GROUNDS

The charges below are either currently exempt, or not subject to VAT.
Resident Fees

Resident fees are charged when the person to be interred lived in the Borough of Fareham
prior to their death.

Persons residing in Care and Nursing homes outside the Borough are also classed as
residents if they lived in the Borough of Fareham prior to moving to Care and Nursing
Homes.

Non-Resident Fees

Non-resident fees are charged when the person to be interred did not live in the Borough
prior to their death. Fees in relation to the purchase of the 30 year lease will also apply.

Non-residents fees are charged when a person wishes to reserve a grave and lives outside
the Borough at the time of their application to purchase the 30 year lease.

Fee Fee

Notes 2023/24 2024/25 %
£ £ Increase

ASHES (CREMATED REMAINS) AREA

Interment for each deceased person

a) Burial of ashes into a cremation plot

b) Purchase of 30 year lease (area Note 1 275.00 289.00 5.1
selected by Council)
c) Purchase of 30 year lease (area Note 1 410.00 431.00 5.1

chosen by customer where possible)

d) Application to place a flat memorial Note 2 65.00 68.00 4.6
tablet
e) Application to add a further inscription | Note 2 45.00 47.00 4.4

onto an existing tablet

Page 34



BURIAL AREA

Interment for each deceased person

Exclusive right of burial (30 year lease)

, : Note 1 1050.00 | 1103.00 5.1

f)  Burial of a person into a new grave

g) Re-open an existing grave for second | Note 1 800.00 840.00 5.0
burial

h) Application to scatter ashes Note 1 85.00 89.00 4.7

i) Burial of ashes into grave at cremation | Note 1 255.00 268.00 5.1
depth

j) Burial of ashes into grave at burial Note 1 470.00 494.00 5.1
depth

k) Burial of a young person (who has not | Note 3 No No NIL
reached 18 years at time of death) Charge | Charge

who has not reached 18 years at time

[) Purchase of 30 year lease (area Note 1 810.00 851.00 5.1
selected by Council)

m) Purchase of 30 year lease (area Note 1 1125.00 | 1181.00 5.0
chosen by customer where possible) ote

n) Purchase of 30 year lease (person Note 2 370.00 389.00 5.1

onto an existing fixed memorial vase

of death)

o) Application to place a headstone for Note 2 220.00 231.00 5.0
ten years

p) Renewal of the application to place a Note 2 31.00 33.00 6.5
headstone

q) Application for additional inscription on | Note 2 160.00 168.00 5.0
headstone and re-erection

r) Application to placg a_fixgd memorial Note 2 65.00 68.00 46
vase or plaque or similar item on a
memorial base

s) Application to add a further inscription | Note 2 45.00 47.00 4.0

Page 35



MISCELLANEOUS

residents rate.

Fund.

2. The charge shown is for both residents and non-residents.
3. Charges for person under 18 years old will be free to customers at the point of need.
The charges, which are the same as for other burials other than there is no
difference for residents and non-residents, are reimbursed by the Children’s Funeral

1. The charge shown is for residents. Non-residents will be charged double the

t) Hire of Chapel at Wickham Road Note 2 150.00 158.00 5.3
Cemetery

u) Transferring of the ownership of the Note 2 80.00 84.00 50
lease known as the Exclusive Right of ' ' '
Burial

v) Administration fge for mgking _ Note 2 85.00 8900 47
arrangements directly with Council
(ashes only)

w) To undertake the arrangements for Note 2 580.00 609.00 5.0
funerals under the Public Health Act

x) Burial out of hours Note 2 At Cost | At Cost

y) Exhumation Note 2 At Cost | At Cost

z) Purchase of commemorative bench Note 2 1,890.00 | 1,985.00 5.0
and plaque

aa) Adoption of existing commemorative Note 2 500.00 525.00 5.0
bench

Notes

Page 36




CLEAN AND TIDY BOROUGH

The charges shown are currently not subject to VAT.

Fee

Fee

%

Notes 2022/24 202;/25 e
Litter and Fouling
Fly Tipping — Fixed Penalty Notice Enforcement Policy 150.00 150.00 Nil
Dropped litter — Fixed Penalty Notice | Enforcement Policy 150.00 150.00 Nil
P_ublic Space Prot_ection Order — Enforcement Policy 100.00 100.00 Ni
Fixed Penalty Notice
Highways — Damage to Street Furniture
Offender charged at cost plus a 10% administration charge
Shopping Trolley Collection
Shopping Trolley Collection 122.00 130.00 6.6

Abandoned Vehicles Refuse Disposal (Amenity) Act 1978

The charges shown are currently not subject to VAT

Storage (per 24 hours or part for

maximum of 10 days) Statutory Charge 21.00

21.00

NIL

Page 37




ELECTIONS

The charges shown are currently not subject to VAT.

Returning Officer's fees and disbursements: as determined by Hampshire Election Fees

Working Party; available on request to Head of Democratic Services.

Registration of Electors (Statutory)

Item

Sale of Edited Register

Data

£20 plus £1.50 per
thousand entries (or part)

Printed

£10 plus £5.00 per
thousand entries (or part)

Sale of Full Register*

£20 plus £1.50 per
thousand entries (or part)

£10 plus £5.00 per
thousand entries (or part)

Sale of monthly update notices*

£20 plus £1.50 per
thousand entries (or part)

£10 plus £5.00 per
thousand entries (or part)

Sale of list of Overseas Electors

£20 plus £1.50 per
hundred entries (or part)

£10 plus £5.00 per
hundred entries (or part)

Sale of Marked Register*

Where available

£10 plus £1.00 per
thousand entries (or part)

£10 plus £2.00 per
thousand entries (or part)

*Notes

1. Supply of the Full Register, monthly update notices and the marked register is
restricted by the Representation of the People Regulations.

2. Packing and carriage costs will also apply where relevant.

3. Arequest for the same part of the register in both printed and data form will be
treated as two separate requests.

Page 38




Sales of Council Houses

Maximum legal and administration

Fee
2023/24
£

Fee
2024/25
£

%
Increase

any consent to freeholders
Repairs to Council Houses

Abortive visit by Officer, Surveyor or
Tradesman

Charge per visit

55.00

fees in connection with granting a Statutory Charge 100.00 100.00 NIL
service charge loan
Recharge of Officer time in agreeing | _ ber ocourrence 110.00 116.00 55

58.00

5.5

Rechargeable works

These will be assessed individually at the time the work is carried out.

Sheltered Accommodation for the Elderly — Guest Room Charges

Homelessness

Bed & Breakfast charges

100% cost recovery from the homeless of Hotel/Bed & Breakfast
charges ineligible for Housing Benefit made straight to the Council.

Single occupancy per night Inclusive of VAT 15.00 16.00 6.7
Per couple per night Inclusive of VAT 20.00 21.00 5.0
Collingwood Court per room Inclusive of VAT 30.00 32.00 6.7
Sylvan Court per room Inclusive of VAT 30.00 32.00 6.7
Sheltered Accommodation for the Elderly — Other Charges

Keys — Key Inclusive of 5.90 6.30 6.7
Keys — Fob VAT 9.50 10.10 6.3
x:zﬂ Cards (where applicable) Inclusive of 050 - s
Dry VAT 0:70 0:75 7:1

Storage of furniture

Second mortgage enquiry forms

Homeless households qualifying for financial assistance towards the
cost of removal and storage of their possessions must agree to pay a
contribution towards these costs based on all their sources of income.

Inclusive of VAT

90.00

96.00

6.7

Care Line Service - Telephone link
for assistance (private sector)

Tariff available on application to Sheltered Housing Manager

Page 39



LAND CHARGES

Local Land Charges 1 Search Fees
(not subject to VAT)

Fee
2023/24
£

Official Certificate of Search in the whole or any part of the register

Fee
2024/25
£

%
Increase

F!rst parcel of land — paper se.arch Fee per occurrence 42.00 45.00 71
First parcel of land — electronic search
Each additional parcel Fee per occurrence 13.00 14.00 7.7
CON29R Official Enquiries — Part |
First parcel of land e por ocorence 200.00 213.00 6.5
Each additional parcel Fee per ocourrence 46.00 49.00 6.5
First parcel of land Fee per ocourrence 34.00 36.00 5.9
Fee per occurrence
_CON2_90 element
Each additional parcel melusive of VAT 59.00 63.00 6.8
LLC1 element not
subject to VAT £14.00
Common Registration Searches e per ocourrence 34.00 36.00 5.9
Other Local Land Charges Fees
(not subject to VAT)
rl?;?(i:ztration of a light obstruction Fee per ocourrence 90.00 96.00 6.7
Filing Lands Tribunal certificate Fee per occurrence 3.30 3.50 6.1
Filing light obstruction judgement etc. | Fee per occurrence 9.00 9.60 6.7
Inspection of rule 10 documents Fee per occurrence 3.30 3.5 6.1
Office copy register entry Fee per occurrence 2.00 215 7.5
Office copy plan or document Discretionary

Page 40



LICENSING FEES

The charges shown are currently not subject to VAT, except where indicated.

Fee Fee o
2023/24 2024/25 (R
£ £

Lotteries
Registration Statutory Charge 40.00 40.00 NIL
Renewal Statutory Charge 20.00 20.00 NIL
Gambling Act 2005
Charges available on application to Head of Environmental Health.
Licensing Act 2003

The service is provided to ensure public safety through the licensing of regulated activities and
to ensure that they are undertaken in accordance with the relevant licence conditions.

In addition the Council are the Licensing Authority under the Licensing Act 2003. The Act
replaced existing licensing regimes concerning the sale of alcohol, public entertainment,
theatres, cinemas and late night refreshment with a unified system of regulation.
From February 2005 the Council has dealt with applications for premises and personal licences
which took effect in November 2005. From this date the Council took over all the licensing
functions some of which such as liquor licensing were previously undertaken by the
Magistrates Court.

The Act requires that the Council carries out its various licensing functions so as to promote the
following four licensing objectives:-

The prevention of crime and disorder
Public Safety

The prevention of public nuisance
The protection of children from harm

Page 41



Premises Licences /Club Applications

The Fees for premises and personal licences are set by the Government(published in April
2012) and are detailed below:

The Fees are based on rateable values of properties:

Rateable Value Band Initial License Fee Annual Fee

£ £
£0 - £4,300 A 100.00 70.00
£4,301 - £33,000 B 190.00 180.00
£33,001 - £87,000 C 315.00 295.00
£87,001 - £125,000 D 450.00 320.00
£125,001 and over E 635.00 350.00

A multiplier applied to premises in Bands D and E where they are exclusively or primarily in the
business of selling alcohol (mainly large town and city centre pubs) as follows:

City/Town Centre Pub City/Town Centre Pub

Rateable Value Band Application Fee Annual Charge

£ £
£87,001 - £125,000 D 900.00 640.00
£125,001 and over E 1,905.00 1,050.00

If in addition to the conversion application the conditions in respect of alcohol are to be varied
then an additional fee to those set out above becomes payable as follows:

Variation Fee

Rateable Value Band £
£0 - £4,300 A 20.00
£4,301 - £33,000 B 60.00
£33,001 - £87,000 C 80.00
£87,001 - £125,000 D 100.00
£125,001 and over E 120.00

Exceptionally Large Events

A fee structure also exists for exceptionally large events starting at a capacity of 5,000 people.
Please contact the Licensing Authority for details of these.

Page 42



Personal Licences, Temporary Events and Other Fees

Fee 2024/25
£

Statutory — Additional Fees are as follows :

Occasion on which Fee payable

Personal Licence 37.00
Minor Variations 89.00
Temporary Event Notice 21.00
A_pplication for copy of Licence or summary on theft, loss etc. of Premises 10.50
Licence or summary :
Notification of change of name or address 10.50
Applications to vary — to specify Individuals as premises supervisor 23.00
Application to transfer Premises Licence 23.00
The removal of conditions for community premises 23.00
Interim Authority Notice 23.00
Application for making a Provisional Statement 195.00
Application for copy of certificate or summary on theft, loss etc. of certificate or 10.50
summary

Notification of change of name or alteration of club rules 10.50
Change of relevant registered address of club 10.50
Application for copy of licence on theft, loss etc. of temporary event notices 10.50
Application for copy of licence on theft, loss etc. of personal licence 10.50
Right of freeholder etc. to be notified of licensing matters 21.00

Exemptions

Applications for premises licences or club certificates which relate to the provision of regulated
entertainment only and the application is from the following then NO FEES are payable, but
applications must still be made:

An educational institution which is a school or college and the entertainment is carried on by
the educational institution for and on behalf of the purposes of the educational institution.

OR

That the application is in respect of premises that are or form part of a church hall, chapel hall,
or similar building or village hall, parish hall or community hall or other similar building.

Page 43




[\ [o] 15

Discretionary — Other Licences and Fees

Fee
2023/24
£

Fee
2024/25
£

Increase

Skin Piercers Premises 105.00 112.00 6.7
Skin Piercers Persons 88.00 94.00 6.8
Street Trading Consent 12 months 2,090.00 | 2,230.00 6.7
Street Trading Consent 6 months 1,155.00 | 1,232.00 6.7
Street Trading Consent 3 months 616.00 658.00 6.8
Stregt Trading - Tables and New 330.00 352.00 6.7
Chairs
Sreet Trading - Tablesand | peneua 20400 | 21800 69
All initial applications and
; i b t Is wh
Dangerous Wild Animal appropriate wil alsonciude. | 165.00 | 176.00 6.7
Licences vets' fees in addition to the
chqrgt_—:-s Iistec_i _
Riding Establishment Licences | flescuonrosowas where
Initial registration/ appropriate will also include 48.00 51.00 6.3
renewal/variation —per horse o o g on to e
All initial applications and
i i i b t Is wh
Anlmal Boarding Establishment ::pfgg;‘:tg e s 187.00 200.00 70
Licences vets' fees in addition to the
charges listed
Home (Domestic) Animal
Boarding Establishment 143.00 152.00 6.3
Licences
Home Boardlng Fee Franchise Dog Boarding Franchise 176.00 188.00 6.8
(including Day Care for Dogs)
Additi i
Franchise property apped for 58.00 62.00 6.9
All initial applications an(_i
Pet Shop Licences fonowals where appropriate 143.00 |  152.00 6.3
addition to the charges listed
All initial applications anq
Dog Breeders Licence fenewals where appropriate 209.00 223.00 6.7
addition to the charges listed
Cpie . . . All initial applications anc_i
addition to the charges listed
All initial applications anq
Zoo: Renewal (valid for 6 years) | [eheyas where abpropriate | 5 200.00 | 2,350.00 6.8
addition to the charges listed
Sex Shops/Establishments Initial Fee 2,200.00 | 2,350.00 6.8
Sex Shop/Establishment Renewal Fee 2,200.00 | 2,350.00 6.8
Scrap Metal Dealer New Application 286.00 305.00 6.6
Scrap Metal Dealer Application Renewal 160.00 170.00 6.3
Mobile Collector New Application 160.00 170.00 6.3
Mobile Collector Application Renewal 116.00 124.00 6.9
Variation of Licence 152.00 162.00 6.6
Replacement Licence 25.00 27.00 8.0

Page 44




Advice to commercial premises | Charge per hour or part thereof 52.00 55.00 5.8

Fee Fee
Notes 2023/24 2024/25
£ £

%
Increase

Discretionary — Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Licences
Vehicle Licence

Hackney Carriage 215.00 215.00 NIL
Private Hire 215.00 | 215.00 NIL
Transfer of Licence (Note 1) 215.00 215.00 NIL
Temporary Transfer (Note 2,3) 215.00 215.00 NIL
]
Private Hire Operators Licence 1 year 215.00 215.00 NIL
Private Hire Operators Licence 3 years 520.00 520.00 NIL
Private Hire Operators Licence 5 years 945.00 | 945.00 NIL
@]

Hackney Carriage Drivers Licence 1 Year 70.00 70.00 NIL
Hackney Carriage Drivers Licence 3 Years 175.00 175.00 NIL
Private Hire Drivers Licence 1 Year 70.00 70.00 NIL
Private Hire Drivers Licence 3 Years 175.00 |  175.00 NIL
Dual Drivers Licence 1 Year 95.00 95.00 NIL
Dual Drivers Licence 3 Years 230.00 230.00 NIL
Dual Upgrade 50.00 50.00 NIL
DVLA Drivers' Licence check Free on-line

Failure to attend appointment 40.00 40.00 NIL
Replacement Licence 12.00 12.00 NIL
Transfer of Ownership (Note 1) 30.00 30.00 NIL

Per Test 70.00 70.00 NIL

Driver's Badge

Issue and Replacement Inclusive of VAT 18.00 18.00 NIL
Replacement plates and fixings Inclusive of VAT 25.00 25.00 NIL
Replacement brackets 17.00 17.00 NIL
Interior windscreen plate 26.00 26.00 NIL

Page 45



Disclosure and Barring Service Fee Actual Cost to the council

Drug Testing Actual Cost to the council
Medical Consultation Actual Cost to the council
Notes

1. This charge has been set at a level to cover the cost of administering transfers.
Transfers will only be permitted in March and April in exceptional circumstances.

2. This charge covers the cost of temporary transfers due to the use of loan cars for
insurance purposes.

3. This charge has been set at a level to cover the cost of administering transfers.

Page 46



Fareham Market
Inclusive of VAT

Per foot, minimum of

Fee
2023/24
£

MARKETS AND TOWN CENTRE

Fee
2024/25
£

%
Increase

Signed on pitch fee 15ft, maximum of 50ft 2.30 2.45 6.5
Casual pitch fee A 2.85 3.05 7.0
Additional Markets e ot 1.20 1.30 8.3
Specialist Market Event Space o St nerea ™ L 540,00 240.00 NA

T&Cs appl
Portchester Market
Not currently subject to VAT

Per foot, minimum of

Signed on pitch fee 15, maximum of 50ft 1.20 1.30 8.3
Casual pitch fee T, masimom of 501 1.76 1.90 8.0
Specialist Market Event Space fedestianised area of 90.00 90.00 NA

T&Cs appl
Fareham Town Centre Charges
Inclusive of VAT

Flower Basket

Per Basket, supply,

All other dates

install and 39.50 41.50 51
maintenance
Pitch Hire Standard Pitch up to 10ft o 3.05 m 38.50 40.50 5.2
Pitch Hire Larger Pitch & Podium up to 20ft or 6.1m 77.00 81.00 5.2
Pitch Hire o oo 0.00 0.00 NIL
Commercial Exhibitions Up to 40ft o 1219m 231.00 243.00 59
Saturdays
Commercial Exhibitions Un to 40ft o 1219m 165.00 173.50 5 1

Page 47




PARKING CHARGES

Town Centre Multi-Storey Car Park(inclusive of VAT) Current Fee
Fareham Shopping Centre

Monday - Saturday £1.00 per hour to a
Standard hourly rates apply between 8am and 6pm maximum of 10 hours
Sunday & Bank Holiday £1.00 per hour to a
Standard hourly rates apply between 10.30am and 4pm maximum of 6 hours
Ferneham Hall; Civic Way North & South; Palmerston Avenue; Civic

Offices (Sat/Sun Only)

Monday - Saturday £1.00 per hour to a
Standard hourly rates apply between 8am and 6pm maximum of 10 hours
Sunday & Bank Holiday £1.00 per hour to a
Standard hourly rates apply between 10.30am and 4pm maximum of 6 hours
Monday — Saturday £1.50 per hour to a
Standard hourly rates apply between 8am and 6pm maximum of 10 hours
Sunday & Bank Holiday £1.50 per hour to a
Standard hourly rates apply between 10.30am and 4pm maximum of 6 hours
Bath Lane; Holy Trinity Church; Lysses; Malthouse Lane; Osborn

Road West; Trinity Street; Youth Centre

o oot
Standard hourly rates apply between 8am and 6pm £3.50 per day
Sunday & Bank Holiday No Charge

Flexible Season Tickets for use

. - 1 Day

in any outer shopping centre £

car park(inclusive of VAT)

Full Day

One Month 13.00 30.00 50.00 60.00 70.00
Quarterly 35.00 80.00 | 110.00 | 150.00 170.00
Half Yearly 65.00 140.00 | 200.00 | 270.00 300.00
Annual 110.00 230.00 | 340.00| 470.00 520.00
Half Day (up to 5 hours)

One Month 10.00 20.00 30.00 40.00 45.00
Quarterly 20.00 50.00 70.00 90.00 100.00
Half Yearly 40.00 80.00 | 120.00| 160.00 180.00
Annual 70.00 140.00 | 200.00 | 280.00 310.00

Page 48



Refunds of season tickets will incur a £10 administration fee but permits issued for a
change of vehicle reqistration will be free of charge, upon return of existing permit.

Coastal Parking

Current Fee

Hove To; Meon Shore; Monks Hill; Passage Lane; Portchester Castle:
Salterns; Shore road; Swanwick Shore Lane; Wicor Car Park

Proposed Fee

Monday — Sunday
Standard hourly rates apply between 10am and 6pm

£1.10 per hour
with no maximum

£1.10 per hour
with no maximum

Season ticket option

£145.00 with a
concession rate of
£95.00 for
residents of
Fareham

£145.00 with a
concession rate of
£95.00 for
residents of
Fareham

Lost or damaged coastal parking season permits will incur a £10 administration fee but
permits issued for a change of vehicle registration will be free of charge, upon return of

existing permit.

Penalty Charge Notices(not subject to VAT)
Higher Level Charge — (Note 1 and 3)

Lower Level Charge — (Note 2 and 3)

Current Fee
£70.00

£50.00

Notes

1.  Higher level charge relates to those contraventions which prohibit e.g. parking on
double yellow lines or single lines during a prohibited period, or parked in a marked

disabled bay without displaying a blue badge.

2. Lower level charges relate to those contraventions which occur, for example, short
overstay of the prescribed period on street or parking in an off street location without

displaying a valid pay and display ticket/permit.

3. The charges are reduced by 50% provided payment is made within 14 days of issue.
A surcharge of 50% will be added if paid more than 28 days from issue of Notice to

Owner.

Page 49




PLANNING FEES

The majority of Planning Fees are set by central government and are updated from time to
time. The current fees apply from 6 December 2023 and can be found on
planningportal.co.uk or the fee will calculate when you fill in your application online.

Alternatively the current fees are available on application to the Head of Development
Management.

The following fees are discretionary

Planning Advice - Residential

Fee payable
2023/24
£

Fee payable
2024/25
£

%
Increase

Extensions or other alterations to | Free Free NIL
an existing dwelling including
ancillary development within its
curtilage
1 — 9 dwellings* £285 for first £300 for first 5.3
dwelling dwelling
+ £55 for every + £58 for every 5.5
additional dwelling | additional dwelling
thereafter thereafter
10 — 49 dwellings* £865 for first ten £910 for first ten 5.2
dwellings dwellings
+ £12 for every + £13 for every 8.3
additional dwelling | additional dwelling
thereafter thereafter
50+ dwellings* £POA £POA NIL
New dwellings but where numbers | £POA £POA NIL
not known
Elderly persons accommodation,
retirement living developments,
sheltered apartments, residential
care homes falling within Use
Class C2,
- 1-9 bedspaces £285 £300 9.6
- 10 - 50 bedspaces £575 £605 52
- More than 50 bedspaces £865 £910 5.2

Page 50




Other residential uses
(including hotels, residential
institutions, houses in multiple
occupation, etc)

£POA

£POA

NIL

* = including change of use of existing floorspace

Planning Advice — Non-

residential

Provision of floorspace (gross
internal area), change of use of
existing floorspace (gross internal
area) or change of use of land
(gross area):

- Upto 100 m2
- 101 -499 m2
- 500 -999 m2

- More than 1,000 m2 where
it relates to proposed uses
with Classes B1, B2, B8, or
a mix of these uses

- More than 1,000 m2 where
it relates to any uses
outside of Classes B1, B2
or B8

Fee payable
2023/24
£

£230

£285

£575

£805

£POA

Fee payable
2024/25
£

£245

£300

£605

£850

£POA

%
Increase

6.5

5.3

5.2

5.6

NIL

Planning Advice — Other

Small scale development not
falling into any of the above
categories

(for example: engineering works,
new shop fronts, moorings, means
of enclosure, renewable energy
plant on existing business
premises)

Fee payable
2023/24

£
£230

Fee payable
2024/25
£

£245

%
Increase

6.5

Installation or replacement of
telecommunications mast

£230 per site

£245 per site

6.5

Minor amendments to an extant
planning permission

£115

£125

8.7

Page 51




Advertisements / signage:

- For the purposes of a Free Free NIL
community use which is
non-profit making (not
including education
providers)

- On business premises less

than 100 m2 gross internal | Free Free NIL

floor area
- All other adverts £170 £180 59
Any development or works being Free Free NIL

carried out by a community use
which is non-profit making (not
including education providers)

Follow up advice 50% of the original
pre-application
planning advice
fee/ £POA

Notes:
1. £POA (Price on Application) indicates that a fee will be calculated on a case by
case basis, based on a schedule of rates published by the Council and updated
annually.

2. Where advice is sought in relation to mixed use proposals, the fee for each
element of the scheme should be calculated using the table above and then
added together.

3. Where advice is required from external consultants or consultees to whom a
payment must be made, the applicant will be expected to meet these costs and
they will be in addition to the pre-application advice fee set out above.

Pre Application Advice - Listed FEREVED) Fee payable %

.t s . X 2023/24 2024/25 Increase
Buildings and heritage Advice £ £

Pre-application planning advice £170 per initial £180 per initial 5.9
charges for listed buildings and enquiry plus VAT enquiry plus VAT
heritage advice

Page 52



PUBLIC PROTECTION

Fee Fee %

2023/24£ 2022 125 Increase

Dog Control

Collection of Strays

(An additional £25 will be added to
this fee where the same dog is found | Ko atie o oaT 25.00 25.00 NIL
straying, leading to seizure, more than
once in any 3 month period)

Dog Kennelling fees Not sment o uat 126.50 135.00 6.7
Private home check visit Inclusive of VAT 37.50 40.00 6.7

Housing Act Enforcement charges are not currently subject to VAT

Private Sector Housing -
Housing Act 2004 Enforcement
Notices

Charge to be actual cost to the Council up to and
including service of Notice

Inspection and/or sampling of private

. .. . Charge to be actual cost to the Council
water supplies/distribution networks

Out of Hours Service Charge to be actual cost to the Council

Immigration Service Assessment of

Premises Condition inclusive of VAT 126.50 135.00 6.7

Licensing of Houses in Multiple Occupancy

5 people Not subject to VAT 924.00 986.00 6.7
6 — 10 people Not subject to VAT 1,155.00 | 1,232.00 6.7
11 — 15 people Not subject to VAT 1,386.00 | 1,480.00 6.8
16 — 20 people Not subject to VAT 1,617.00 | 1,725.00 6.7
More than 20 people Not subject to VAT 1,848.00 | 1,972.00 6.7

Page 53



Food Safety

Fee
2023/24
£

Fee
2024/25
£

%
Increase

First hour (min 1 hour)

food, due to its
condition, would not be
marketable or usable.

Plus disposal of
unsound food.

Transportation of Unsound Food (Charges are inclusive of VAT)

170.50

Export Health Certificates 99.00 105.00 6.1
Issue of Certificate for Unsound Food | Certificate required in

support of insurance

claims even though the 242.00 258.00 6.6

182.00

6.7

Subsequent whole hours

Plus disposal of
unsound food.

88.00

94.00

6.8

Transport and disposal

Training

Pest Control

Charged at cost to the
Council

Charges for training courses available on application to the Head of Environmental Health

Domestic Premises charges include materials and are also inclusive of VAT
For Persons in Receipt of one or more of the following benefits the treatment is offered

at a concession charge:-

o Income-based Jobseeker’s Allowance

o Income-related Employment and Support Allowance

o Income Support

o Pension Credit (Guarantee)

o Universal Credit (maximum award)

Fleas, Bed Bugs and Visit and Quotation 13.00 14.00 7.7
unknown infestations

All other insects (including wasps) 22.00 23.50 6.8
Rodents 27.50 29.50 7.3

Pest Control

Domestic Premises charges include materials and are also inclusive of VAT

Pest Control

Fleas, Bed Bugs and Visit and Quotation 39.50 42.00 6.3
unknown infestations

All other insects (including wasps) 66.00 70.00 6.1
Rodents 77.00 82.00 6.5

Commercial Premises charges include materials and are also inclusive of VAT

Rodents and insects

first 15 minutes

93.50

100.00

7.0

Rodents and insects

each additional 15
minutes or part thereof

22.00

23.50

6.8

Page 54



Access to CCTV footage

Inclusive of VAT

104.50

111.00

6.2

Page 55




Pollution Reduction — Environmental Protection Act 1990
Charges available on application to the Head of Environmental Health

Out of hours service charges based on actual cost to the Council

Local Authority Environmental Permit — Part B
LAPPC Charges for 2021/22 onwards not subject to VAT

Type of charge
Application Fee

Type of process

2021/22 Fee

Standard process (includes solvent emission £1,650
activities)

Additional fee for operating without a permit £1,188
PVRI, SWOBs and Dry Cleaners £155
PVR | & Il combined £257
VRs and other Reduced Fee Activities £362
Reduced fee activities: Additional fee for £71
operating without a permit

Mobile plant** £1,650
for the third to seventh applications £985
for the eighth and subsequent applications £498

Where an application for any of the above is for a combined Part B and
waste application, add an extra £310 to the above amounts

Annual
Subsistence
Charge

Standard process Low

£778 (+£104)*

Standard process Medium

£1,161(+£156)*

Standard process High

£1,747 (+£207)*

PVRI, SWOBs and Dry Cleaners L/M/H £79 | £158 | £237
PVR | & Il combined L/M/H £113| £226 | £341
VRs and other Reduced Fees L/M/H £228| £365 | £548

Mobile plant, for first and second permits
L/M/H**

£626| £1,034 £1,551

for the third to seventh permits L/M/H £385| £617 | £924
eighth and subsequent permits L/M/H £198| £316 | £473
Late payment Fee £52

* The additional amounts in brackets must be charges where a permit is

for a combined Part B and waste installation

Where a Part B installation is subject to reporting under the E-PRTR
Regulation add an extra £104 to the above amounts.

Page 56




Pollution Reduction — Environmental Protection Act 1990
Charges available on application to the Head of Environmental Health
Out of hours service charges based on actual cost to the Council

Local Authority Environmental Permit — Part B
LAPPC Charges for 2021/22 onwards not subject to VAT

Type of charge Type of process 2021/22 Fee
Transfer and Standard process transfer £169
Surrender Standard process partial transfer £497
New operator at low risk reduced fee activity £78
(extra one-off subsistence charge - see Art
15(2) of charging scheme)
Surrender: all Part B activities £0
Reduced fee activities: transfer £0
Reduced fee activities: partial transfer £47
Temporary First transfer £53
transfer for Repeat following enforcement or warning £53
mobiles
Substantial Standard process £1,050
change Standard process where the substantial £1,650
change results in a new PPC activity
Reduced fee activities £102

** Not using simplified permits

Local Authority Environmental Permit — Part B
LAPPC mobile plant charges for 2021/22 onwards (not using simplified permits)
not subject to VAT

Number Application fee Subsistence fee 2021/22
of permits  2021/22

Low Med
1 £1,650 £646 £1,034 £1,506
2 £1,650 £646 £1,034 £1,506
3 £985 £385 £617 £924
4 £985 £385 £617 £924
5 £985 £385 £617 £924
6 £985 £385 £617 £924
7 £985 £385 £617 £924
8 and over | £498 £198 £316 £473

Page 57



llil WASTE COLLECTION AND DISPOSAL

Fee Fee
2023/24 2024/25
£ £

|

%
Increase

Domestic Bulky Waste
The charges shown are currently not subject to VAT

Single Item 48.00 50.00 4.2
Two Small ltems 72.00 76.00 5.0
Half Load 110.00 116.00 5.4
Full Load 195.00 205.00 5.1

Trade Waste

Trade waste charges for both residual and recycling are available on application to the
Trade Waste team. Charges made for waste collected outside the borough of Fareham
will be subject to standard rated VAT.

Domestic Garden Waste Collection - Residents (not subject to VAT)

240 litre (standard bin for individual 39.00 41.00 5 1
houses)

240 litre 12 months subscription 65.00 68.00 4.6
140 litre (smaller bin for individual 37.00 3900 54
houses)

140 litre 12 months subscription 55.00 58.00 54
Char)ge of bin size (up or down) 15.00 16.00 6.0
Admin Fee

Domestic Waste and Recycling - Developers
(inclusive of VAT)

The charges shown are for new and replacement
bins

240 litre (standard bin for individual houses)

Refuse / Recycling 55.00 58.00 5.4

340 litre (communal bin only permitted for flats)

Refuse / Recycling 86.00 90.00 4.7

1100 litre (large communal bin only permitted for

flats) Refuse 525.00 | 551.00 5.0

Domestic Waste and Recycling - Residents
(not subject to VAT)

The charges shown are for new and replacement
bins

240 litre (standard bin for individual houses)

Refuse / Recycling 39.00| 41.00| 5.1

Page 58



Change of bin size (up or down) Admin Fee

15.00

16.00

6.0

05,

L

Outdoor Sport and Recreation

Notes

SPORTS AND LEISURE

Fee
2023/24
£

Sports Pitches, Facilities, Recreation Grounds and Open Spaces

Football, Rugby and Hockey, casual games per match

Fee
2024/25
£

- (Notes 1 and 2)

%
Increase

page 1 are met.

outside the times required by clubs

2. Clubs not resident in Borough pay double casual rate.
3.  Tennis Clubs are required to make suitable arrangements for public use of courts

Senior Per match 106.00 111.00 4.7
Junior Under 18 41.00 43.00 4.9
Mini Soccer Per match 28.00 29.00 3.6
Mini Soccer Per half day pitch 56.00 59.00 54
Training Sessions — 2 hours Juniors half charge 60.00 63.00 5.0
Football Tournament Per tournament 420.00 441.00 5.0
Cricket, casual games per match - (Notes 1 and 2)

Senior Per match 108.00 113.00 4.6
Junior Under 18 41.00 43.00 4.9
Evening games Senior 90.00 95.00 5.0
Evening games Junior 35.00 37.00 5.7
Tennis Courts — per court, per hour — (Notes 1 and 3)

Senior 13.25 13.90 4.9
Junior Under 18 5.75 6.00 4.4
Notes

1. Fees inclusive of VAT unless exemption conditions as set out in the General Notes on

Page 59




Sports Pitches, Facilities, Recreation Grounds and Open Spaces
Bowls — Seasonal Charges - (Note 1)

Fareham Bowling Club

Notes

6 rinks & clubhouse

Fee
2023/24
£

8,600.00

Fee
2024/25
£

9,030.00

%
Increase

5.0

Crofton Community Association

6 rinks & clubhouse

8,600.00

9,030.00

Bowls — Fees - (Note 2)

5.0

Park

Green Fees 6.50 6.80 4.6
Hire of Woods 2.50 2.60 4.0
Hire of shoes Porbeaiar o gtriory 250 260 4.0

Notes

1.  Public to have use of at least one rink at each green
2. Retained by clubs. Max charge per player per hour

Sports Pitches, Facilities, Recreation Grounds and Open Spaces

Miscellaneous Charges

Notes on page 1 are met.

include damage deposit.

Hire of council land for events Note 2

Charitable hiring Note 3 118.00 124.00 5.1
Use of changing facilities Note 1 60.00 63.00 5.0
Rounders Note 1 102.00 107.00 4.9
Notes

1.  Fees inclusive of VAT unless exemption conditions as set out in the General

2. At a rate to be determined by the Head of Streetscene on an individual basis
proportionate to the estimated income derived from the event. This could

3. Charge can be waived at the discretion of the Head of Streetscene.

Page 60



MISCELLANEOUS CHARGES

Fee

Fee

%

Notes 2022/24 202;/25 e
Letting of Council Chamber and Committee Rooms
Collingwood Room Per hour 95.00 100.00 5.3
Pulheim Room Per hour 40.00 45.00 12.5
Vannes Room Per hour 40.00 45.00 12.5
Council Chamber Per Hour 150.00 160.00 6.6
Conference Room A and B (Floor 8) | PerHour 28.00 30.00 7.1

Notes
1.  Commercial Organisations only.

2. The hourly charges for room hire below apply when the building is already in
use for Council business and are currently exempt from VAT.

3. Additional charges may be levied to recover the cost of preparing rooms,
moving furniture, the use of equipment, etc. These charges would be subject to
VAT.

4. The following additional
charges, to be added when the building is not being used for Council
business, after 6.30 pm - per hour £70.00 plus VAT.

Printing and Copying
Charges are available on application to the Director of Support Services.

General Charges

Responding to solicitors/consultants Inclusive of VAT - Per

enquiries Question 105.00

115.00 9.5

Responding to other detailed

. At the discretion of the Direction of Planning and Regeneration
enquiries

105.00

115.00 9.5

Copies of Statutory Register

Attendance at court as a witness Charge based on the cost to the Council

Sponsorship of Roundabouts — subject to VAT
Agreeing form of works and supervision as agreed with the sponsor, subject to no

additional cost to the Council.

Non-Electronic Communications

The council reserves the right to levy an administration charge for communications by
postal distribution rather than by email. The charge will be determined by the Head of
Service for that service and will cover the additional time and costs incurred in
communicating in that way.

Page 61




Page 62



Aerodrome Fees & Charges All prices inclusive of VAT Page 1of8

Appendix B

Solent Airport Daedalus
Operated by Regional & City Airports Ltd on behalf of

Fareham Borough Council

Fees & Charges from 15t April 2023

Issue 1.0

D) raREHA

DAEDALUS BOROUGH COUNCIL

Solent Airport Daedalus
Control Tower
Daedalus drive

Lee on the Solent

Hampshire, PO13 9FZ

Tel: 01329 824748

Ops Email: ops@solentairport.co.uk

Admin/Finance: finance@solentairport.co.uk

Website: www.solentairport.co.uk

Page 63 Effective 1t April 2023


4363
Text Box
Appendix B


Aerodrome Fees & Charges All prices inclusive of VAT Page 20of8

1. Landing Fees & Cards

All payments are to be made in advance of a movement/activity or prior to departure unless a
recognised credit agreement has been authorised with the Airport Operator.

Maximum Take . Based*
_ Touch & Go Landin .
off Weight Circuit / g GA Landing Card
(MTOW) (Kg) Based! Non-Based Fixed-Wing ] 1a%
<750 £6.50 £13.00 £87.00 -
751-1000 £11.00 £22.00 £157.00 £165
1001-1650 £13.75 £27.50 £218.50
1651-2000 £22.50 £45.00 £363.00
2001-2750 50% £45.00 £72.00
2751-4999
(Per ton/part 50% £17.50 £25.50
thereof)
> 5000Kg - -
(Per ton/part 50% £22.00 £27.50
thereof)
> 9000Kg
(Per ton/part 50% £24.75 £30.25
thereof)

» Home-Based operators must hold a valid long-term parking or hangarage agreement.

Failure of payment prior to departure, in lieu of an agreement with the Airport Authority,
will incur an admin fee of £20.00.

1.1.Circuits

= Circuits, including touch and go and unforced go arounds are charged at 50% of the

published landing fee for each weight category.

Page 64 Effective 1t April 2023



Aerodrome Fees & Charges All prices inclusive of VAT Page 3 0f8

2. Handling

For all aircraft 2000kg and above handling includes:
= Transfer of passengers to/from aircraft (excluding ramp transfer).
» Use of Passenger & Crew Lounge and facilities. (Lounge, TV, Meeting Room, Shower).

= Tea, Coffee, Refreshments. (1/tr Coffee and 1ltr Hot Water on departing flights with passengers —
additional quantities will be charged per the rates shown in section 5).

» Printing, Copying, Fax.

Passenger Handling Fee (per passenger) £7.25

= Handling is included for all aircraft 2000kg and above. Aircraft under 2,000kg may request the
use of Handling Services & the Passenger Lounges for a charge of £45.00 inc. VAT.

= Commercial Air Transport (CAT) Flights are limited to max 19 passenger seats and MTOW of

10000kg/10t due to screening and security restrictions.

3. Parking Charges

Short Term Parking*

Weight (Kg) Grass Parking Hard parking
<750 £10.00 £12.75
751-1000 £18.75 £23.00
1001-1650 £22.00 £27.50
1651-2000 £36.50 £45.00
2000-2750 £58.50 £72.50
*Charges per night.

Page 65 Effective 1t April 2023




Aerodrome Fees & Charges All prices inclusive of VAT Page 4 of 8

Long Term Parking & Hangarage*

. Grass Premium Hangarage
Weight (Kg) . .
Parking Parking Nightly Monthly?!
<750 £110.00 £187.00 £27.50 £218.00
751-1000 £115.00 £192.50 £48.00 £225.00
<1000
(Wingspan >10m) - - £52.00 £328.00
1001-1650 £121.00 £200.00 £57.75 £437.00
1651-2750 £189.00 £264.00 £73.00 £545.00
22751 £220.00 £286.00 - -
2750-3500 On application On application
> 3500 On application

*Charges per calendar month.

~ IPrices for long-term hangarage apply to based aircraft.
= Long term hangarage subject to availability, please contact the airport manager for enquiries at

girportmanager@solentairport.co.uk.

4. Airport Extensions

Fire Cover Price Per Hour (or part thereof)

RFFS CAT 1 £160.00

RFES CAT 2 £225.00

= The opening hours for Solent Airport are between 09:00-18:00 local time during British Summer
Time (April-October), and from 09:00-Sunset during winter months (November-March).

= Extensions are available upon prior request (minimum 24 hours’ notice) and are subject to the
availability of staff.

= Operations outside of these hours are limited to between: Sunrise -30 mins until Opening and

Closing until Sunset +30 mins due to the absence of Aerodrome lighting.

Page 66 Effective 1 April 2023



Aerodrome Fees & Charges All prices inclusive of VAT Page 5o0f8

5. Airport Services and Facilities

Service Hourly Half Day All-Day

Conference Room Hire £36.50 £90.75 £121.00
Meeting Room Hire £22.00 £60.50 £97.00
Pilots’ Lounge Hire Included for handled flights?!

. Initial Hour: £60.00 — Subsequent Hours:
Airside Escort £33.00
Filming/Photography £660 Minimum charge
Airport Car Park £5.50 per day
Taxi Booking £1.00
Chauffer Driven Vehicle Booking £12.50
Safeguarding Assessment - Surface Penetrations / O yarsfliasions
Obstacles
Safeguarding Assessment - Planning / Project Viability On application
Assessment
Detailed Technical Assessment On application

= IPlease contact airportmanager@solentairport.co.uk for enquiries relating to external hire of the

Pilots’ lounge.

Page 67 Effective 1t April 2023



Aerodrome Fees & Charges All prices inclusive of VAT

6. Additional Services

Page 6 0f8

Service Charge

Hot Water (per litre) £6.50
Coffee (per litre) £8.50
Decaffeinated Coffee (per litre) £9.00
Wet Ice (per bag) £12.00
Dry Ice (special order on request only - price on application) POA
Laundry (special request only - price on application) POA
Washing Up Service £45.00
Refrigeration of Catering from Aircraft (per 24hrs or part thereof) £45.00
Magazine & Newspaper collection (excludes price of papers/mags) £2.75
EU Waste Disposal (per bag) £20.00
Non-EU (ICW) Waste Disposal (per bag) £45.00
Ramp Transfer (per vehicle) £20.00
Aircraft Cleaning Booking Fee (booked in advance) £40.00
Firearms Clearances with Special Branch (submission only - no guarantee of

SB clearance offered) £50.00
Hotac Fee 10%
Transport Fee 10%
Catering Fee (ramp transfer fees apply for delivery of catering direct to the .
aircraft by catering supplier 10%
Additional Services Fee 10%

Page 68

Effective 1% April 2023



Aerodrome Fees & Charges All prices inclusive of VAT Page 7 of 8

7. Crane Operator Permits

Notice Period Price
30+ days in advance £65.00
48 hours — 30 days £100.00
Less than 48 hours £185.00
Non-Compliance Fee* £300.00

Under Aerodrome Safequarding criteria the use of cranes on or in the immediate vicinity of

an aerodrome can present a risk to flight safety. Under BS7121-1:2006, crane operators

require approval if cranes higher than 10m are used within 6km of an aerodrome.

= Includes other high reach mechanical equipment within/adjacent to the airport boundary.

= Further information can be found at: https://www.solentairport.co.uk/safeguarding-the-

aerodrome/.

= If there are any questions regarding the operation of cranes or high reach equipment at, or in the

vicinity of Solent Airport, please contact us via email at controltower@solentairport.co.uk.

= *No cranes will be permitted to operate without authorisation from the Airport Management.
Any operators found to be operating without authority will be subject to a fee for failing to
comply with airport regulations and will be required to cease all operations until a written permit

has been obtained.

Page 69 Effective 1t April 2023



Aerodrome Fees & Charges All prices inclusive of VAT Page 8 of 8

8. Unmanned Aerial Vehicles (UAV/RPAS/Model Flying)

UAV Ad-hoc Restricted Grass Area Rate! £76.00
Model Aircraft Club Flying (Annual Fee) £2100.00
UAV Based Business Restric'ted Grass Area (Annual £3,505.00
Operator License)

UAV Based Business Runway Use Per Hour? £635.00

UAV Based Business Runway Use Full Day Rate? £6350.00
UAVs above 0.5m wingspan/2.5kg MTOW On Application

UAV FRZ Operating Permit Admin Fee From £33.00

= IRate per day or part thereof.
= 2Up to a maximum of three hours. Exclusive use of the runway requiring full airport closure.

= 3Per length of published operational day. Exclusive use of the runway requiring full airport closure.

For additional information please see our Fees and Charges terms of use document, which

can be found on our website at: https://www.solentairport.co.uk/fees-and-charges/.

Page 70 Effective 1 April 2023



By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 71






Agenda Item 10(2)

FAREHAM

BOROUGH COUNCIL

Report to the Executive for Decision
08 January 2024

Portfolio: Policy and Resources

e Finance Strategy, Revenue Budget & Council Tax
Subject: 2024/25
Report of: Assistant Chief Executive Officer

Corporate Priorities: Responsive, Inclusive and Innovative Council

Purpose:

This report provides an update on the Council’'s 5-year financial forecasts and
makes recommendations regarding the revised revenue budget for 2023/24 and
base budget for 2024/25.

Executive summary:

This report gives the Executive the opportunity to consider the Council's 5-year
financial forecasts as set out in the Medium-Term Finance Strategy (MTFS), revised
service budgets for 2023/24 and proposed service budgets for 2024/25.

Revised General Fund Revenue Budget 2023/24

The revised general fund revenue budget for 2023/24 is now showing a contribution
to reserves for the year of £39,000, compared to the original position which was
forecasting the need to draw down £401,000 from reserves to help fund the budget
spend. This is mainly due to the savings that have been made though the
Opportunities Plan in the year and additional income being received from the
shopping centre.

General Fund Revenue Budget 2024/25

The proposed general fund revenue budget for 2024/25 totals £16,095,700 for
service budgets along with -£3,030,100 for other budgets giving an overall position
of £13,065,600 which is an increase of £1,168,500 against the original budget for
2023/24. The figures include a draw down of £598,200 of general reserves to help
fund the budget.

5-Year Financial Forecasts

The 5-year financial forecasts for 2023/24 to 2027/28 is predicting a funding shortfall
by 2026/27. The Opportunities Plan work recommenced in 2023/24 due to last
year’s prediction of a funding gap in the coming years, which has served to delay
the funding shortfall by a year. However, a budget gap of £1.9million is still being
predicted by 2026/27 which cannot be fully funded from the general reserves. The
proposed use of council reserves up to £100,000 is therefore still required to
continue to develop and implement projects in the Opportunities Plan to help
manage the Council’s financial pressures and remain resilient.

Page 79



Recommendation/Recommended Option:
It is recommended that the Executive:

Financial Forecasts (MTFS)

(a) approves the Medium-Term Finance Strategy for the period 2023/24 to
2027/28, as set out at Appendix C to the report;

(b) agrees to submit the updated Pay Policy, annexed to the Medium-Term
Finance Strategy in Appendix C at Annex 2, to Full Council for approval,;

Revenue Budgets

(c) approves the revised 2023/24 general fund revenue budget, amounting to
£12,376,100, as set out in Appendices A and B to the report; and

(d) approves the base 2024/25 general fund revenue budget amounting to
£13,065,600, as set out in Appendices A and B to the report;

Reason:

The proposed budgets and capital programme will continue to support delivery of
the Council’s services and corporate priorities whilst taking account of the continuing
financial pressures.

The Medium-Term Finance Strategy forecasts a significant funding shortfall by
2026/27 which cannot be covered by the Council’s general reserves, so supports
the continued action being taken to identify opportunities to reduce costs or increase
income.

Cost of proposals:
As detailed in the report.

Appendices: A: General Fund Revenue Budget Summary 2023/24 and 2024/25

B: Detailed Draft Revenue Budgets by Service Portfolio 2023/24 and
2024/25

C: Medium Term Finance Strategy 2023/24 to 2027/28

Background papers: None

Reference papers: Report to the Executive - December 2023 Finance
Monitoring 2023-24

Report to the Executive — January 2023 Finance Strategy,
Revenue Budget and Council Tax 2023-24

Page 80



FAREHAM

BOROUGH COUNCIL

Executive Briefing Paper

Date: 08 January 2024
Subject: Finance Strategy, Revenue Budget & Council Tax 2024/25
Briefing by: | Assistant Chief Executive Officer
Portfolio: Policy and Resources
INTRODUCTION

This report provides an update on the financial forecasts for the next 5 years and
makes recommendations on how the projected funding gaps can be mitigated.

2. It also brings together the revenue spending plans for the Council's services for the
rest of the current year and for next year.

MEDIUM TERM FINANCE STRATEGY

3. The Medium-Term Finance Strategy, attached to this report as Appendix C, sets out
the broad principles on which the management of the Council’s finances are based
and provides background information regarding the level of resources, the revenue
budget and capital programme.

4. The Council’'s main priorities are to produce sustainable spending plans, maintain
adequate reserves and to continue to minimise increases in the net revenue budget,
such that increases in Fareham’s proportion of the council tax are not excessive.
Consequently, strict budget guidelines must be maintained.

5. The document focuses on the various issues that will impact on the Council’s
financial position, now and in the future. In the light of these issues, the current
financial position has been reviewed and gives the projected position in future years,
up to 2027/28. This takes into account the sources of core funding likely to be
available to the Council across the 5 years.

6. The Medium-Term Finance Strategy for last year predicted a funding gap of
£2.4million by 2025/6. Action was therefore taken to develop a new Opportunities
Plan of ways to increase income or reduce costs.

7. Based on existing spending plans and taking account of the known variations and
revenue budget pressures in future years, the projected revenue budget for the life of
this year’s Strategy would indicate a funding gap of £1.9 million by 2026/27 even if
Council Tax is increased by 2.99% each year.

Page 81



10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

17.

This is a year later than was predicted last year as a result of the action that has
already been taken. However, the problem has not yet been fully solved.

There are also a number of spending priorities, potential pressures and uncertainties,
such as the Government's Waste Strategy for which no provision has been made in
the projections which could cause a widening of the funding gap. Members are
reminded that due to the gearing effect any increase in spending has a significant
increase on the amount that has to be met from Council Taxpayers. For example, an
increase in spending of 1%, increases the Council Tax by 6.3%.

The Medium-Term Finance Strategy also contains the annual Pay Policy update at
Annex 2 to the strategy. The policy is reviewed every year to take into account
changes that have happened during the year, such as changes to the senior
management structure that occurred during 2023/24 and will also look forward to any
known changes such as pay awards and triennial pension fund contribution changes.
The policy needs to be approved by Full Council before 1 April each year.

GENERAL FUND REVENUE BUDGETS
Revenue Budget 2023/24

Members will recall that the Council needed to draw down £744,000 from general
reserves in order to balance the budget spend in 2022/23.

The base net revenue budget set for 2023/24 set was £11,897,100, an increase of
£1,109,100 on the previous year. This was part funded by a council tax increase of
2.99% (£5.24) which was the maximum allowable by the Government before a local
referendum is needed. In setting the 2023/24 base budget it was anticipated that
£401,000 would be drawn from reserves in order to balance the budget.

The revised budgets are indicating an improved position for the year. Although
spending estimates have increased, as highlighted in the paragraphs below, the
impact of the actions taken, also detailed below, has meant that the funding sources
should now exceed the spend by £39,000 which will be a contribution back to the
general reserves.

Pressures

The budget reflects known changes that have affected spending during the current
financial year. which include those as a result of the current cost of living crisis.

The pay award for 2023/24 was agreed in November and resulted in an average
increase across the council of 6.5% which was more than was budgeted although
this was partially offset by a reduction in pension contributions which saw the amount
paid by the council reduced from 19.3% to 18% of staff salaries.

The most significant pressure is the increase in bed and breakfast expenses due to
changes in government policy that have resulted in an increase in numbers
presenting as homeless and therefore increasing costs to over £2million. During the
year the remainder of the homelessness reserve will be utilised to offset the increase
in costs but this puts pressure on the budget in future years.

Solent Airport has seen increased costs during the current financial year due to a
reduction in income and a requirement to employ additional staff due to safety
requirements for operating an airport. This will result in a deficit for 2023/24 which is

Page 82



18.

19.

20.

21.

22.

23.

24.

25.

26.

against the trend of surpluses for the last 3 years which have totalled almost
£500,000.

Savings

The impact of the pressures has been partially offset by income from the shopping
centre that was purchased during the year to assist delivery of the Town Centre
Regeneration Vision. This is projected to generate an income stream in the current
year and future years.

The savings that have resulted from the work of the Opportunities Plan during
2023/24 have seen the plan bring in a reduction to budgets of almost £500,000 which
has meant that the draw down from reserves is no longer required for the 2023/24
financial year.

Further information of how this is spread across portfolios is provided in Appendices
A and B.

Revenue Budget 2024/25

The revenue budget for 2024/25 has been prepared as detailed in the Medium-Term
Finance Strategy, as attached to Appendix C to this report. The proposed General
Fund budget for 2024/25 totals £16,095,700 for service budgets along with other
budgets of -£3,030,100 giving an overall position of £13,065,600 which is an increase
of £1,168,500 against the original budget for 2023/24. This is detailed in Appendices
A and B.

In preparing the 2024/25 budget there have been many changes as a result of the
continuing cost of living crisis where the recovery has been slower than anticipated.
Some areas have seen an increase in income, such as town centre car parking as
more people return to the high streets, but the overall levels of income remain below
pre-pandemic levels.

Some areas are seeing large increases in costs due to higher-than-average inflation
figures. The main pressure area as detailed in paragraph 10 relates to bed and
breakfast expenses which are anticipated to continue to see high numbers and cost
going into the 2024/25 financial year. However, 2024/5 will be the first year that we
do not have ear-marked reserves from Homelessness government grants to call on
to help fund the costs.

The pay award for April 2024 has not yet been agreed but levels of awards are
continually increasing due to the large increases in the level of the minimum wage
that affects all pay and grading decisions. The budget provision built in at the
moment is for a 3% increase in pay with pension contributions at the same level as
2023/4.

During 2024/25 Fareham Live will become operational which has an impact on the
revenue budget due to one-off set up costs and also the beginning of the operator
costs. This figure will reduce during future years as the venue becomes established
and should also see Fareham receiving an element of the profit-sharing agreement.

The budget will also see a full year of operation for the Fareham Shopping Centre,
that was purchased in October 2023, which will see a contribution to the budget of
just under £1million of income although this will be partially offset by an increase in

Page 83



27.

28.

29.

30.

31.

32.

33.

34.

35.

36.

borrowing costs.

The Opportunities Plan has seen savings of just under £400,000 being applied to
the 2024/25 budget with more savings expected to come on stream during the
financial year as projects progress. These will be taken into account during the
revised budget setting process for 2024/25.

There are some elements of pressure that have not been built into the budget due to
uncertainties around costs. These include the climate change action plan and the
overall government Waste Strategy; locally Hampshire County Council will no longer
be giving district councils income from the recycling facilities resulting in a loss of
£250,000 to Fareham. The latter change has been built into the budget.

The budget takes into account the predicted level of core funding resources that will
be available for the year and builds in provisions for expected increases and
decreases in expenditure and income in the year. The announcements for the actual
level of core funding are still awaited.

The budget also takes into account decisions made by the Executive during the year
and the opportunities and pressures arising in the Council’s key services.

With all of this taken into account there remains a need to draw down from reserves
£598,200 in 2024/5 in order to balance the budget, even if Council tax is increased
by 2.99%. There are currently sufficient general reserves available to be used.

GENERAL FUND CAPITAL PROGRAMME

The detailed General Fund capital programme for the period 2023/24 to 2027/28 is
part of the Capital Strategy and this report with also be presented to the Executive.

ENVIRONMENTAL CONSIDERATIONS/CARBON IMPACT ASSESSMENT

The subject matter of this report is not anticipated to have an impact on the Council’s
carbon footprint, nor is it expected to have a detrimental or beneficial impact to the
wider environment.

RISK ASSESSMENT

In considering the budgets and forecasts, there are a number of risks and
uncertainties as set out in Section 6.3 in the Medium-Term Finance Strategy.

The Executive has previously agreed that the balance on the spending reserve
should equate to at least 7.5% of gross revenue expenditure to help protect the
Council from extraordinary events. This level is in accordance with the guidance from
the Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy (LAAP77), as to what is
an appropriate level to retain.

Other general fund reserves will need to be used in order to balance the budget in
2024/25. However, this position will not be sustainable going forward as there are
insufficient unallocated reserves available to fund the budget shortfalls from 2026/7.
Actions will continue to be taken and increased monitoring will be introduced to
reduce the impact on the overall level of reserves and protect the council’s financial
position. In particular it is proposed that funding continues to be used to support the
work in the Opportunities Plan to find solutions to bridge the future funding gap.

Page 84



37. The Government's expectation and associated funding levels indicate that they
believe that Fareham will raise council tax by up to 2.99% next year with a spending
review detailing future proposals commencing in 2026/27.

Enquiries:
For further information on this report please contact Neil Wood 01329 824506

Page 85



APPENDIX A

GENERAL FUND REVENUE BUDGETS SUMMARY 2023/24 AND 2024/25

a) Revised Budget 2023/24

Committees

Licensing and Regulatory Affairs
Committee

Planning Committee
Executive - Portfolio Budgets
- Leisure and Community

- Housing

- Planning and Development
- Policy and Resources

- Health and Public Protection
- Streetscene

Accounting Adjustments not included
above

SERVICE BUDGETS

Capital Charges

Direct Revenue Funding

Minimum Revenue Provision

Bad Debt Provision

Interest on Balances

Portchester Crematorium

New Homes Bonus

Contribution from Earmarked Reserves
Contribution to(+)/from(-) General Reserves
OTHER BUDGETS

NET BUDGET

Budget Revised
2023/24 2023/24 Variation
£ £ £
540,400 495,700 -44,700
694,300 580,400 -113,900
-38,600 -260,400 -221,800
2,270,800 3,394,800 1,124,000
1,246,100 1,209,000 -37,100
541,800 -220,100 -761,900
765,800 352,600 -413,200
5,592,200 6,174,000 581,800
4,101,900 3,492,800 -609,100
15,714,700 15,218,800 -495,900
-4,320,000 -4,094,400 225,600
1,125,000 1,125,000 0
1,490,900 1,545,700 54,800
0 0 0
-612,000 -430,200 181,800
-80,000 -80,000 0
-17,900 -17,900 0
-1,002,700 -929,700 73,000
-400,900 +38,800 439,700
-3,817,600 -2,842,700 974,900
11,897,100 12,376,100 479,000

Page 86



b) Base Budget 2024/25

Committees

Licensing and Regulatory Affairs
Committee

Planning Committee
Executive - Portfolio Budgets
- Leisure and Community

- Housing

- Planning and Development
- Policy and Resources

- Health and Public Protection
- Streetscene

Accounting Adjustments not included
above

SERVICE BUDGETS

Capital Charges

Direct Revenue Funding

Minimum Revenue Provision

Bad Debt Provision

Interest on Balances

Portchester Crematorium

New Homes Bonus

Contribution from Earmarked Reserves
Contribution to(+)/from(-) Reserves
OTHER BUDGETS

NET BUDGET

Base Base

Budget Budget
2023/24 2024/25 Variation
£ £ £
540,400 699,100 158,700
694,300 578,100 -116,200
-38,600 148,600 187,200
2,270,800 3,435,900 1,165,100
1,246,100 1,221,200 -24.900
541,800 -958,900 -1,500,700
765,800 373,500 -392,300
5,592,200 6,706,800 1,114,600
4,101,900 3,891,400 -210,500
15,714,700 16,095,700 381,000
-4,320,000 -4,094,400 225,600
1,125,000 1,125,000 0
1,490,900 1,756,700 265,800
0 0 0
-612,000 -468,400 143,600
-80,000 -100,000 -20,000
-17,900 -98,200 -80,300
-1,002,700 -552,600 450,100
-400,900 -598,200 -197,300
-3,817,600 -3,030,100 787,500
11,897,100 13,065,600 1,168,500

Page 87



APPENDIX B

DETAILED DRAFT REVENUE BUDGETS BY SERVICE 2023/24 AND 2024/25

Committees

Licensing and Regulatory Affairs Committee

Planning Committee

Executive - Portfolios
Leisure and Community
Housing

Planning and Development
Policy and Resources
Health and Public Protection
Streetscene

Accounting Adjustments

Employees

Premises-Related Expenditure
Transport-Related Expenditure
Supplies and Services

Third Party Payments
Transfer Payments

Support Services

Capital Charges

GROSS EXPENDITURE

Government Grants

Other Grants & Reimbursements

Sales, Fees and Charges
Rents
Recharges to other Accounts

Base Revised Base

Budget Budget Budget

2023/24 2023/24 2024/25

£ £ £

540,400 495,700 699,100

694,300 580,400 578,100

-38,600 -260,400 148,600

2,270,800 3,394,800 3,435,900

1,246,100 1,209,000 1,221,200

541,800 -220,100 -958,900

765,800 352,600 373,500

5,592,200 6,174,000 6,706,800

4,101,900 3,492,800 3,891,400

NET EXPENDITURE 15,714,700 15,218,800 16,095,700
SUBJECTIVE ANALYSIS

Base Revised Base

Budget Budget Budget

2023/24 2023/24 2024/25

£ £ £

12,074,400 12,723,400 12,672,800

3,500,400 4,420,000 5,115,500

1,587,500 1,660,900 1,689,700

6,527,300 8,526,800 8,596,400

2,456,500 2,431,800 3,306,100

12,653,900 13,137,500 13,137,500

3,657,100 3,848,500 3,952,400

4,960,700 4,360,800 4,474,400

47,417,800 51,109,700 52,944,800

-13,962,400 -14,667,200 -14,158,800

-3,402,400 -3,622,500 -2,958,100

-8,309,000 -9,544, 900 -10,310,800

-5,844,000 -7,786,000 -9,141,100

-185,300 -270,300 -280,300

GROSS INCOME -31,703,100 -35,890,900 -36,849,100

NET EXPENDITURE 15,714,700 15,218,800 16,095,700

Page 88



ESTIMATE OF EXPENDITURE AND INCOME FOR THE COUNCIL TAX 2024/25

LICENSING AND REGULATORY AFFAIRS COMMITTEE

Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Vehicles

Licensing
Health and Safety
Election Services

Planning Applications
Planning Advice
Planning Enforcement
Planning Appeals

PLANNING COMMITTEE

Base Revised Base
Budget Budget Budget
2023/24 2023/24 2024/25
£ £ £

5,500 0 100
9,400 3,500 4,300
159,000 154,700 155,000
366,500 337,500 539,700
540,400 495,700 699,100
Base Revised Base
Budget Budget Budget
2023/24 2023/24 2024/25
£ £ £
243,700 104,900 152,500
219,500 191,600 194,300
131,400 124,200 127,300
99,700 159,700 104,000
694,300 580,400 578,100

Page 89



ESTIMATE OF EXPENDITURE AND INCOME FOR THE COUNCIL TAX 2024/25

LEISURE AND COMMUNITY PORTFOLIO

Community Grants

Community Development

Ferneham Hall

Leisure Centres

Fareham Live

Community Centres

Total Before Accounting Adjustments

Accounting Adjustments for Portfolio

HOUSING PORTFOLIO

Housing Grants and Home Improvements

Housing Options

Housing Benefit Payments

Housing Benefit Administration
Homelessness

Housing Advice

Housing Strategy

Local Land Charges

Total Before Accounting Adjustments

Accounting Adjustments for Portfolio

Base Revised Base
Budget Budget Budget
2023/24 2023/24 2024/25
£ £ £
271,200 253,100 204,700
282,700 164,900 174,400
200,200 58,800 0
-964,100 -859,400 -1,010,100
0 -12,400 640,700

171,400 134,600 138,900
-38,600 -260,400 148,600
1,952,700 2,060,100 2,173,700
1,914,100 1,799,700 2,322,300
Base Revised Base
Budget Budget Budget
2023/24 2023/24 2024/25
£ £ £

38,100 2,800 2,800
33,600 45,100 45,200
44,800 45,500 45,500
483,100 436,300 465,100
725,600 1,887,200 1,893,400
747,500 830,400 819,200
205,400 170,700 186,100
-7,300 -23,200 -21,400
2,270,800 3,394,800 3,435,900
46,500 45,500 45,500
2,317,300 3,440,300 3,481,400

Page 90



ESTIMATE OF EXPENDITURE AND INCOME FOR THE COUNCIL TAX 2024/25

PLANNING AND DEVELOPMENT PORTFOLIO

Flooding and Coastal Management
Transportation Liaison

Conservation & Listed Building Policy
Sustainability & Climate Change
Local Plan

Total Before Accounting Adjustments

Accounting Adjustments for Portfolio

POLICY AND RESOURCES PORTFOLIO

Democratic Representation and Management
Commercial Estates

Investment Properties

Solent Airport and Daedalus

Fareham Shopping Centre

Public Relations, Comms and Consultation
Unapportionable Central Overheads
Corporate Management

Economic Development

Regeneration

Local Tax Collection

Total Before Accounting Adjustments

Accounting Adjustments for Portfolio

Base Revised Base
Budget Budget Budget
2023/24 2023/24 2024/25
£ £ £

81,100 95,500 95,500
32,600 33,500 33,500
70,200 65,800 67,900
9,100 43,900 46,800
1,053,100 970,300 977,500
1,246,100 1,209,000 1,221,200
88,300 88,300 88,300
1,334,400 1,297,300 1,309,500
Base Revised Base
Budget Budget Budget
2023/24 2023/24 2024/25
£ £ £
1,345,600 1,179,100 1,212,600
-810,000 -1,232,000 -1,244,300
-2,696,900 -2,375,800 -2,515,100
-391,000 -368,100 -345,400
0 -539,500 -1,275,800
663,700 675,600 691,900
148,600 148,600 148,600
751,100 922,500 925,700
152,300 153,600 135,500
321,900 149,000 170,200
1,056,500 1,066,900 1,137,200
541,800 -220,100 -958,900
889,400 450,000 735,000
1,431,200 229,900 -223,900

Page 91



ESTIMATE OF EXPENDITURE AND INCOME FOR THE COUNCIL TAX 2024/25

HEALTH & PUBLIC PROTECTION PORTFOLIO

Pest Control

Food Safety

Air Quality and Pollution

Community Safety

Emergency Planning

Clean Borough Enforcement
Off-Street Parking

Cemeteries and Closed Churchyards
Building Control

Total Before Accounting Adjustments

Accounting Adjustments for Portfolio

Parks, Open Spaces and Grounds
Maintenance

Countryside Rangers

Street Cleaning

Public Conveniences

Waste Collection

Trade Refuse

Recycling

Green Waste

Tree Management

Street Furniture

Total Before Accounting Adjustments

Accounting Adjustments for Portfolio

Base Revised Base
Budget Budget Budget
2023/24 2023/24 2024/25
£ £ £
77,700 66,900 67,700
152,500 148,100 148,200
193,300 177,800 187,900
269,900 203,400 204,500
61,300 61,300 61,900
256,800 302,900 320,500
-332,000 -720,700 -724,600
-111,800 -68,300 -70,100
198,100 181,200 177,500
765,800 352,600 373,500
138,900 93,400 93,400
904,700 446,000 466,900
STREETSCENE PORTFOLIO
Base Revised Base
Budget Budget Budget
2023/24 2023/24 2024/25
£ £ £
2,148,800 2,283,600 2,368,600
189,400 208,900 213,400
1,070,100 1,103,100 1,122,700
262,400 289,100 297,000
1,150,700 1,239,900 1,284,300
-154,500 -112,100 -62,400
1,088,700 1,142,100 1,423,600
-660,800 -522,600 -496,100
431,600 466,400 479,700
65,800 75,600 76,000
5,592,200 6,174,000 6,706,800
986,100 755,500 755,500
6,578,300 6,929,500 7,462,300
15,714,700 15,218,800 16,095,700

OVERALL BUDGET TOTAL

Page 92



APPENDIX C

FAREHAM

BOROUGH COUNCIL

Medium Term Finance Strategy
2023/24 to 2027/28

Page 93




MEDIUM-TERM FINANCE STRATEGY 2023/24 to 2027/28

CONTENTS
Page No.
1.O0VERVIEW OF THE MEDIUM-TERM FINANCIAL STRATEGY (MTFS)
1.1 PURPOSE 4
1.2 FUNDAMENTAL SPENDING PRINCIPLES 4-6
2. REVENUE POSITION
2.1 CORE FUNDING RESOURCES
Local Government Settlement and Fair Funding Review (FFR) 7
FBC Spending Power 7
SFA (Settlement Funding Assessment) 7
Revenue Support Grant 8
Other General Grants 8
Business Rates 9
Council Tax 9
2.2 OTHER FUNDING SOURCES
Specific Government Grants 18
Financial Investments 10
Property Investments 11
Partnership Contributions 11
Fees and Charges Income
2.3 GENERAL CHANGES IN EXPENDITURE
Service Budgets Added or Deleted 12
Pay Awards 12
Pension Provisions 12
Depreciation / Capital Charges 12
2.4 SERVICE PRESSURES
Cost of Living Crisis 12
Key Services 13
3. COPORATE PRIORITIES
3.1 CORPORATE STRATEGY 2023- 2029 14
3.2 FAREHAM LIVE 15
3.3 FAREHAM TOWN CENTRE 15
3.4 SOLENT AIRPORT and DAEDALUS 15
3.5 CLIMATE CHANGE 16
2

Page 94




MEDIUM-TERM FINANCE STRATEGY 2023/24 to 2027/28

4. CAPITAL POSITION

Page No.

5. PROPOSED BUDGET 2024/25

4.1 CAPITAL STRATEGY 17
4.2 CAPITAL RESOURCES 17
4.3 MINIMUM REVENUE PROVISION 17

6. FIVE YEAR FORECASTS

5.1 THE BUDGET SETTING PRINCIPLES 18
5.2 BASE BUDGET 2024/25 19
5.3 CONTRIBUTIONS TO RESERVES 20
5.4 COUNCIL TAX 2024/25 21

7. CONCLUSIONS

Annex 1 — Budget Responsibilities

6.1 OVERALL REVENUE POSITION 22
6.2 SENSITIVITY ANALYSIS 23
6.3 RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES 24
6.4 THE OPPORTUNITIES PLAN 25

Annex 2 — Pay Policy Statement

Page 95




MEDIUM-TERM FINANCE STRATEGY 2023/24 to 2027/28

1. OVERVIEW OF THE MEDIUM-TERM FINANCE STRATEGY
(MTFS)

1.1 PURPOSE

Fareham has a long history of prudent financial management which has been the
subject of favourable comments from the Council’s external auditors over many years.

The main focus of prudent financial management is the Council’'s Medium Term
Finance Strategy, the overall objective of which is to structure and manage the
Council’s financial resources, revenue and capital, to ensure that they match and
support the direction of the Council’s objectives.

The Strategy must ensure that the requirement to set a balanced budget is fully met
and that the Council is able to respond to year-on-year changes and short-term service
delivery issues.

The Council has reiterated in the Corporate Strategy 2023-2029 that it will “take pride
in its careful financial planning”. The Medium-Term Finance Strategy is regularly
monitored and updated to achieve this aim.

1.2 FUNDAMENTAL SPENDING PRINCIPLES

There are a number of fundamental principles that are followed by the Council and
which form the basis of the Medium Term Finance Strategy as they are key to the
Council’s approach to financial management. These are summarised in the table
below.

Table 1 — The Fundamental Principles of FBC Financial Management

REVENUE EXPENDITURE

e Budget setting guidelines are maintained and approved by the Executive each year as
part of this Strategy.

o New revenue spending plans will only be considered if they make a clear contribution to
the Council’s objectives and priority actions or to meet new statutory responsibilities and
are affordable.

¢ All significant new revenue spending plans are considered together for inclusion at the
time of Council Tax setting and are subject to a prioritisation process. This is particularly
important because of the implications for the Council Tax of even modest increases in
expenditure(£80k increase in spend is a 1% increase in council tax).

e No new revenue spending plans are included in the revenue budget without the
necessary resources to meet the full impact on the wider revenue costs being in place.

Page 96




CAPITAL EXPENDITURE

All new potential capital schemes will only be considered if they make a clear
contribution to the Council’s objectives and priority actions, or support the Council's
Asset Management Plan.

The following factors need to be considered before a decision is made to include a
new scheme in the capital programme to ensure the necessary resources are in place:

o On-going revenue costs associated with the scheme;
o Whole life costing implications of the scheme;

o Cost of servicing the debt if the scheme is financed by borrowing;
o Loss of investment interest if internal resources are used.

Efforts will be made to secure external (non-borrowing) sources of funding capital
schemes. Internal capital resources will only be released to fund schemes once external
sources of funding (such as developers’ contributions, lottery grants, etc.) have been
explored and rejected. Borrowing will only be considered where there is a sound
economic business case (e.g. for spend to save schemes) whereby borrowing costs are
wholly offset by long term net revenue income or savings.

New schemes will be subject to prioritisation as set out in the Council’s Capital Strategy.

Resources allocated to particular capital projects but subsequently not required are
returned to meet future corporate priorities rather than be retained for use by that
service.

RESERVES

Spending Reserve: A spending reserve will be maintained to cover unplanned changes
in revenue expenditure or income. The minimum balance will be 7.5% of gross
expenditure.

Major Repairs and Renewals (MRR) Fund: A MRR fund will be maintained to cover
emergency capital expenditure on Council Assets. The minimum balance will be
£1million.

The levels of these reserves to be maintained will be reviewed each year.

These reserves should not be used to meet on-going, unsustainable levels of revenue
expenditure but any surpluses on the reserves can be used for one-off projects.

All decisions regarding the use of any significant reserve will take account of the effect
on the revenue budget from a reduction in investment interest.

USE OF FUNDING AND RECEIPTS

General Central Government funding will be used to support day-to-day service delivery

“Windfall” or one-off revenue resources will only be used to increase capital resources
or to meet one-off revenue expenditure.

Capital receipts from the sale of assets will be used to meet future corporate priorities
rather than be retained for use on the service that has relinquished the asset.

CIL receipts will be used to meet future community infrastructure projects in accordance
with the priorities of the council.

In determining the use of funds for capital investment, there should be a bias towards:

5

Page 97




MEDIUM-TERM FINANCE STRATEGY 2023/24 to 2027/28

o Investing in land & property that will generate a long term source of income;
o Projects that support economic or employment growth;
o Projects that support or secure further housing delivery.

TRANSPARENCY AND OPENNESS

e It is Council policy to be transparent in the decision-making process and provision of
information about the Council's activities is available through the website. To this end,
budgetary plans and historical spending information (including payments to third party
suppliers) is published on the Council's website.

e Under the Localism Act 2011 the Council is required to prepare and publish a pay policy
statement which forms part of this Strategy.

PARTNERSHIP AND AGENCY WORKING

e The Council will seek to work with partners which actively pursue the achievement of
the Council's priorities and achieve more for less.

e The Council will only undertake agency work where the service actively aids the
achievement of the Council's priorities and the business case indicates a financial
benefit to the Council.

¢ Any deficits arising from services provided on behalf of other agencies may be held on
the Council's balance sheet but should be fully offset by an equivalent contribution to
the spending reserve, to protect the Council's long-term finances.

Page 98




MEDIUM-TERM FINANCE STRATEGY 2023/24 to 2027/28

2. REVENUE POSITION

2.1 CORE FUNDING RESOURCES

The Council’s core funding comes from 3 main sources:

° Central Government Grants
° Business Rates
. Council Tax

Local Government Settlement & Fair Funding Review (FFR)

During the early part of 2019/20 a Fair Funding Review (FFR) commenced to look at
how the funding for councils is distributed, as the current system is considered to be
outdated and unfair. However, due to a number of issues the results of this review
have been delayed and will now impact on the funding from 2026/27 onwards.

How Fareham BC will fair under the FFR is still unclear but the assumption being used
is that this will not result in any significant increases in core funding.

The allocation of resources is determined by the Government’'s assessment of the
funding needs of the Borough, as discussed below.

FBC Spending Power

Spending power is defined by central government as a gauge of how much money a
council needs to provide its services. The spending power calculation takes into
account a number of factors and the table below shows how Fareham’s spending
power has changed over the last 5 years of the current settlement arrangement and
how important they see council tax is as a funding source.

Table to show spending power and how much is funded by council tax.

Year Core Spending Power Council Tax % funded by

£'000s £'000s Council Tax
2023/24 10,800 7,965 73.75
2022/23 10,300 7,710 74.85
2021/22 10,000 7,456 74.56
2020/21 10,000 7,171 71.71
2019/20 9,700 6,875 70.88

SFA (Settlement Funding Assessment)

The SFA consists of the Revenue Support Grant (RSG) and the local share of
Business Rates. At a national level this is the total RSG and Estimated Business Rate
Aggregate for the year.

Page 99




MEDIUM-TERM FINANCE STRATEGY 2023/24 to 2027/28

In 2013/14 the Government introduced a Baseline Funding Level (BFL) for each
council based on the previous 2 years net rates collections. This takes into
consideration factors such as the level of deprivation, sparsity and density.

As the local share of business rates had been fixed to provide a strong incentive for
local authorities to promote growth, any changes to the Settlement Funding
Assessment can only be applied to the element of funding that is provided through
Revenue Support Grant.

As of 2023/24, Fareham’s SFA (perceived need) is above its baseline funding level
which means the Council is not receiving enough money to run its services. This
means that Revenue Support Grant is required to bring the Council’s funding to the
required level.

However, the latest population census data indicates that the population in the
Borough has not grown as much as other parts of the country. This is likely to result in
the Council’s share of the SFA falling from 2025/26.

Revenue Support Grant (RSG)

The Revenue Support Grant is the element of government funding that councils
receive directly to provide their services. Fareham didn’t receive any RSG from central
government for a number of years but is currently in a position where its SFA is higher
than the BFL. Therefore, the Council will receive RSG of £100,000 in 2023/24 and
£107,000 in 2024/25.

Other General Grants

The Services Grant is another element of government funding that councils receive “in
recognition of the vital services delivered at every level of local government”. This
commenced in 2022/23 to reflect changes to funding and to make sure no authority
fell below minimum funding levels. Fareham received £133,000 in 2022/23 and will
receive £78,000 in the 2023/24 financial year and £65,000 for the 2 years after that.

The Council will also receive a grant for the 3% Funding guarantee which was
announced as part of the 2023 settlement announcement. The council will receive
£260,000 in 2023/24, £274,000 in 2024/25 and £202,000 in 2025/26.

New Homes Bonus has been received since 2011/12 but the rules surrounding how
much grant is received has meant that Fareham has seen changes from when grant
received peaked at £2m to the amount for 2023/24 being £18,000.

It is anticipated that these 3 funding streams will stop when the Fair Funding Review
is implemented in 2026/27.

Page 100




BUSINESS RATES

From April 2013, some business rates started to be retained locally by the billing
authority. The amount depends on the difference between the council’s assessed
funding level (Baseline Funding Level) and the amount of rates that are collectable in
the area (Business Rates Baseline).

Fareham currently collects around £38.1 million of business rates. Of this 50%
(£18.5m) is paid to Central Government with 9% (£3.3m) and 1% (£0.4m) paid to the
County Council and the Fire Authority respectively. The remaining 40% (£15.9m) is
Fareham’s initial share of the rates collected.

However, in order that authorities don’t benefit from keeping too much of the rates
collected there is then a series of tariffs and top-ups that are returned to the central
pot for further redistribution, with a safety net threshold to prevent the tariff being too
severe. Fareham is currently calculated as having one the lowest needs of the 325
authorities and so has to pay a tariff to reflect its Baseline Funding Level. Once the
tariff is paid to the central pot and with other rates adjustments, Fareham retains
around £3.3 million (9%) of the rates collected. The council’s income is also increased
by Section 31 Grants. These grants are received to make up for loss of income due to
Government decisions over business rates such as rate reliefs for small businesses
that would mean local authorities are worse off through no fault of their own. These
grants are expected to be approximately £1.1 million for 2024/25.

COUNCIL TAX

Fareham has the 6t lowest Band D Council Tax for a district council, when parish
precepts are taken into account, and is currently 30% below the national average.
Recent changes in Government policy now allows Councils to increase Council Tax
by 2.99% which means that gap between the highest and lowest council taxes will only
grow bigger. This is penalising Fareham for having a low Council Tax as the maximum
increase that can be approved each year, outside of a referendum, is £5.24. In
comparison, the largest Band D for a district council stands at £384 which would see
an increase of £11.53 in their Council Tax using the current policy, resulting in the gap
between the average authority and Fareham continuing to grow.

The Council Tax for Fareham forms around 74% of its spending power showing that
there is a significant reliance on it to fund the net spend. Fareham’s Council Tax has
risen by a minimum of £5 per year for the last 8 years and it is proposed to increase
by 2.99% for 2024/25. The Council Tax for a Band D property currently stands at
£180.46 which was approved by the Full Council in February 2023. Of the gross
expenditure budget of £50,033,700 (net budget £11,897,100) for council services in
2023/24, £7,965,355 (15.9%) was budgeted to be met by Council Tax payers.

This Medium-Term Finance Strategy assumes that there will be an increase of
560(2025/26), 665(2026/27) and 564(2027/28) Band D equivalent properties which
will generate some additional Council Tax even if no increase in the rate is approved
each year. These figures reflect the increase in housing projections in the Council’s
Local Plan.

9

Page 101




MEDIUM-TERM FINANCE STRATEGY 2023/24 to 2027/28

AFFECT ON THE MEDIUM TERM FINANCE STRATEGY

Currently due to the delay in the Fair Funding Review future funding levels
remain uncertain. Generally, we are not expecting any increases in core
funding, outside of Council Tax, and no government general grants have
been relied upon after 2025/6.

2.2 OTHER FUNDING SOURCES
Specific Government Grants

These amounts received from Central Government relate to specific services and will
be paid to match expenditure or projects. Grants expected in the 2023/24 and 2024/25
financial years include; benefits, housing advice, disabled facilities grants,
homelessness and Council Tax administration.

Financial Investments

This element of income comes from investments of surplus cash and through the
Council’s cash management opportunities. Interest rates have been increasing since
December 2021 and currently stand at 5.25% which has meant that returns on
investments have been increasing. However, the amount the council has to invest has
reduced due to increased capital spending in recent years.

Security of capital has remained the Council’s main investment objective so the
Council has sought to spread its risks, using highly rated commercial institutions or
Government bodies and investing for short periods. Consequently, however, the rates
of return are limited.

The Council has therefore further diversified into longer-term secure and higher
yielding asset classes, moving part of the portfolio from bank and building society
deposits into externally management strategic pooled diversified income funds and
money market funds.

These funds are in line with the Council’s investment strategy and offer potentially
enhanced investment returns whilst diversifying opportunities and risks.

Overall, we are predicting a reduction in income from investments in 2023/24 due to
increased capital spend.

Property Investments

In 2013 the Executive agreed a Corporate Property Investment Acquisition Strategy
where the council would purchase commercial sites to bring in rental income that was
at a higher rate than from financial investments. Since 2013 £39 million has been
invested in various properties in and outside of the borough and this currently brings
in over £2.7 million per annum in rent which is at a far greater return than investing in
the money markets.

10

Page 102




MEDIUM-TERM FINANCE STRATEGY 2023/24 to 2027/28

However, income from property investments is sensitive to any downturns in the
economy, and this risk is spread by using a spread of property types in the
investments. There will also be a period of reduced income as leases mature and there
is a change of tenant.

Partnership Contributions

Any surplus from Portchester Crematorium Joint Committee (PCJC) is distributed
among the four councils who constitute the joint committee. It is anticipated that over
the period of the Strategy this amount will reduce from the current level of £100,000
per annum to £NIL in 2025/26 and for the remainder of the strategy period. Any amount
received from PCJC is a non-ring-fenced contribution and is used to keep the overall
Council Tax at an acceptable level.

Fees and Charges Income

The Council reviews the fees and charges for its services annually and the proposed
fees and charges for each Committee and Executive portfolio are reviewed by the
Executive and Licensing and Regulatory Committee and approved by Full Council.

The approach taken to reviewing fees and charges for 2024/25 is as follows:
e New Fees and Charges — There are no significant new charges proposed.

e Statutory Fees - Some fees and charges are set by statute and therefore are not
under the Council's control. However, the Government has introduced an increase
in planning application fees from the latter part of 2023/4.

e Discretionary Charges where no increase is proposed - There are some
charges where there are no increases proposed, that are at the discretion of the
Council.

o Inparticular, Car parking has been budgeted for in line with the Fareham Town
Centre Parking Strategy and the proposed charges have not been increased
for 2024/25 The charges have been at the current level since they were set in
October 2010.

e Discretionary Charges increasing — Some discretionary charges are proposed
at a level to achieve an increase in income that is deemed to be realistic, and also
to cover the inflationary costs being experienced to provide the service.

o In most cases, an increase of around 5% is proposed.

o Specific charges which have been reviewed and there are no alternative
increases proposed.

11

Page 103




MEDIUM-TERM FINANCE STRATEGY 2023/24 to 2027/28

2.3 GENERAL CHANGES IN EXPENDITURE
Service Budgets Added or Deleted

There have been no new service budgets included in this Strategy.

Pay Awards

The Pay Policy for 2023/24 was approved by the Executive in January 2023. The Pay
Policy Statement for 2024/25 is attached at Annex 2.

The rising cost of employment in future years reflects the cost of an assumed pay
award of 3.5% from 1 April 2024 and 3% per year for the remainder of the strategy
period. The pay award is affected by other pay movements such as meeting the
requirements of the National Living Wage.

Pension Provisions

During 2022, the triennial pension fund valuations took place. The last valuation was
in 2019 and concluded that the fixed contributions needed to close the past years’
service gap were reduced to zero and the 2022 valuation has confirmed that this
additional amount will still not be required going forward. For Fareham the future
service funding, from variable contributions, will reduce from 19.3% of pay to 18.0%.
The 2022 review has shown that the funding gap of almost 1% in the 2019 valuation
has changed to a surplus in the 2022 valuation.

Depreciation / Capital Charges
Many services provided by the council will attract depreciation and capital charges that
reflect the use of the assets over the period of their useful life. The depreciation charge

is set against the service but an entry is made to adjust the charge so there is no
overall impact on the Council Tax payers.

2.4 SERVICE PRESSURES

Cost of Living Crisis

The current cost of living crisis has presented the council with a significant financial
pressure. Inflation rates have been above 10% for the first time in 30 years and this
had led to increases to spend in most areas of the council.

There have been significant inflationary pressures on staff pay, fuel and energy price
increase as well as commodity price increases. As a result of this we are seeing
increased demand from our customers especially in areas such as homelessness
which has risen to a £2million cost. From 2024/5 we will have used all the government
grants that we have been given to help pay for this cost.

There will be a need to continue to monitor services affected by these events going
forward.

12

Page 104




MEDIUM-TERM FINANCE STRATEGY 2023/24 to 2027/28

Key Services

There are a number of services where the costs and/or income directly correlate with
service activity, some of which would have a notable impact on the Council’s overall
financial position if a significant variation in activity arose. These are classified as
‘major’ or “demand led” services and account for almost £39 million of gross
expenditure and £33 million of gross income.

Special arrangements are in place to track financial performance of these services

and the other major services, and to take action where there is a significant deviation
from plans.

13

Page 105




MEDIUM-TERM FINANCE STRATEGY 2023/24 to 2027/28

3. CORPORATE PRIORITIES

3.1 Corporate Strategy 2023-2029

The latest Corporate Strategy was adopted by the Council in October 2023 and will
be updated each year. It currently contains 6 priorities linked to 26 project areas, as
summarised in the table 3 below.

Table 3 — Priorities and Projects in the Corporate Strategy

DIVERSE HOUSING MARKET
DEVELOPMENT OF NEW HOMES
Priority 1 | Providing Housing Choices | HIGH QUALITY AFFORDABLE HOUSING
HELPING HOMELESS PEOPLE
WELBORNE GARDEN VILLAGE

REDUCE CARBON EMISSIONS
KEEP THE BOROUGH CLEAN AND

Respond to Climate Change | ATTRACTIVE
Priority 2 and Protect the SUPPORT BIODIVERSITY AND ENHANCE
Environment GREEN SPACES

INCREASE RECYCLING

COSTAL MANAGEMENT

EVERYONE FEELS SAFE

Strong, Safe and Healthy | ENABLING COMMUNITIES TO THRIVE

prionitys3 Communities HEALTH AND SAFETY
EMERGENCY PLANNING
ECONOMIC VITALITY
Priority 4 Promote Economic FAREHAM TOWN CENTRE REGENERATION
Development INCREASE EMPLOYMENT SPACE
DAEDALUS

HARD WORK
o Responsive, Inclusive and | VALUE FOR MONEY
Priority 6 :
Innovative LOW COUNCIL TAX
CUSTOMER ENGAGEMENT

The financial resources needed to deliver the projects in the strategy are contained
within the General Fund Revenue and Capital budgets, and the Housing Revenue
Account Revenue and Capital budgets. We are currently developing a costing and
financing plan to make the finances earmarked to deliver the Strategy more visible.

14

Page 106




MEDIUM-TERM FINANCE STRATEGY 2023/24 to 2027/28

3.2 Fareham Live

Ferneham Hall closed in January 2020 with a view to a new modern facility being built
soon after. However, delays due to the Pandemic meant that work on the £16million
Fareham Live Project didn’t start until late 2022. The project is now nearing completion
and construction works are scheduled to be finished in April 2024 with shows
commencing later on in the year. The venue will be operated by Trafalgar Theatres
who are working in partnership with the Council to bring this exciting venture to the
people of Fareham. There will be one-off set up costs to start with along with operator
costs. This figure will reduce during future years as the venue becomes established
and should also see Fareham receiving an element of the profit-sharing agreement.

3.3 Fareham Town Centre

In October 2023 the Council purchased Fareham Shopping Centre at a cost of
£14.25million. The acquisition formed part of Fareham’s broader regeneration
programme which also includes the development of Fareham Live and the demolition
of the Osborn Road Multi Storey Car Park and replacing it with a modern surface car
park.

The shopping centre has a key role to play both now and in the future. Ownership of
the centre will enable the Council to provide stability and reassurance to its tenants as
it works with them and other key partners to develop a new all-encompassing strategy
leading to a more vibrant town centre.

The project will now move forward with key partners who will advise on strategic
direction and improvements to the shopping centre that will benefit both shoppers and
businesses.

Until firm plans are in place for the regeneration of the Town Centre no budget has
been built into the MTFS. However, the operation of the shopping centre will see a
contribution to the budget of just under £1million of income although this will be
partially offset by an increase in borrowing costs.

3.4 Solent Airport and Daedalus

Solent Airport and development of the Daedalus site is another key project to
achieving priorities in the Corporate Strategy.

Since the purchase of Daedalus from the Homes and Community Agency and the
adoption of the Council’s Vision for Daedalus in 2015, the site has become the largest
employment site in the area. It is now arguably the premier centre of excellence for
aviation, aerospace, marine and advanced engineering businesses in the south.

It is a strategic asset for the Council, and as such will require significant capital
investment over time.

15

Page 107




MEDIUM-TERM FINANCE STRATEGY 2023/24 to 2027/28

It has the potential to generate revenue for the Council and create job opportunities
for the borough.

The aspiration is for the airport operations to be financially self-sustaining.

There will be a requirement to make use of revenue support and capital receipts from
the business parks to deliver investment across the whole site.

The significance of Daedalus is such that it warrants its own financial operating
framework, which is presented to Members at regular meetings of the Scrutiny Panel.

3.5 Climate Change

To help mitigate the worst effects of Climate Change, the Council has made a
commitment to working toward carbon neutral by 2030. Changes in priorities
responding to climate change and achieving net zero carbon will all add significantly
higher costs to our budgets.

In June 2021 we published our first Action Plan which focused predominantly on
reducing the Council’s operational carbon footprint. This plan tries to find ways we can
lower the carbon emissions created when we provide services to our customers.

We recognise our leadership role and will support and encourage broader change
across Fareham with both businesses and residents where we can.

An annual report outlines the carbon reduction measures we have completed during
the last year as well as an overview of how much we have reduced our emissions by.
It also lays out the plans we have for the coming year/s both for the Council buildings
and services and the local Fareham community. Any budgets required to implement
specific projects in the action plan are approved separately by the Executive.

16

Page 108




MEDIUM-TERM FINANCE STRATEGY 2023/24 to 2027/28

4. CAPITAL POSITION

4.1 CAPITAL STRATEGY

The Capital Strategy is a separate document to the Medium-Term Finance Strategy
and demonstrates how the Council's capital programme supports its corporate
priorities and sets the framework for developing the capital investment programme to
deliver these priorities.

The Council agrees a rolling five-year programme each year consistent with the
Medium-Term Finance Strategy and the resources available along with any impact on
the revenue budgets.

The capital programme for the duration of the Strategy has been reviewed and
updated to take into account carry forwards from 2022/23, any new schemes and now
totals £54.7 million of General Fund expenditure.

4.2 CAPITAL RESOURCES

Resources of £57.8 million are estimated to be available over the life of the capital
programme and therefore there should be a surplus of resources of approximately
£3.1 million in 2027/28.

Capital Financing Costs

The proposed budget for 2024/25 provides for a revenue contribution to capital of
£1.125 million, which includes a contribution of £500,000 towards future capital
commitments. The remaining amount provides for ICT, vehicle purchases, CCTV
renewals and car park improvements. There are currently no plans to increase this
amount but it is reviewed every year in line with the strategy.

4.3 MINIMUM REVENUE PROVISION

Where the Council finances capital expenditure from borrowing (debt), it must put
aside resources to repay the borrowing in later years. The amount charged to the
revenue budget for the repayment of debt is known as Minimum Revenue Provision
(MRP).

Borrowing costs (MRP and interest charges) for schemes funded by debt will be
covered by revenue generating assets.

The budget provision reflects the capital costs relating to commercial property
purchases, construction works at Daedalus including the Innovation Centre Phase 2,

works undertaken at the 2 Leisure Centre in the borough, new general aviation and
business hangars and purchase of Fareham Shopping Centre.

17

Page 109




MEDIUM-TERM FINANCE STRATEGY 2023/24 to 2027/28

5. PROPOSED BUDGET 2024/25
5.1 THE BUDGET SETTING PRINCIPLES

In addition to the fundamental principles on which the Council’s Medium Term Finance
Strategy is based, the Council adopts for each financial year a set of budget setting
principles that form the framework for budget preparation.

It is proposed therefore that the following budget guidelines be adopted:

. The revenue resources available to the Council will determine the spending plans
for the year, taking account of any measures to reduce the net cost in the year.

o No provision for the effects of inflation to be provided in revenue budgets except
to cover price increases that are unavoidable or predictable, or the Council is
legally obliged to accept.

o Fees and charges to be increased to cover any increase in costs and to achieve
a realistic increase in income wherever possible. Every effort should be made to
identify new sources of income to help fund the provision of council services. The
proposed charges should be considered alongside those for similar services in
neighbouring authorities and, where appropriate, the charges levied by private
sector providers.

o The use of general reserves will be considered for the short term where reserves
are in excess of our minimum policy. They will only be used as a bridging
approach whilst we identify plans to produce a longer-term solution.

o Use of other reserves will be reviewed in order to identify funds available to draw
down on them to reduce the impact on Council Tax payers.

o New revenue commitments and capital schemes will only be considered for
inclusion in the budget where the expenditure is essential to protect the Council's
assets or meet the Council's corporate priorities.

o Full weight to be given to the Council’s overall position and future Council Tax

levels when services are reviewed and revenue budgets, capital programmes
and fees and charges are considered.

18

Page 110




MEDIUM-TERM FINANCE STRATEGY 2023/24 to 2027/28

5.2 BASE BUDGET 2024/25

The proposed base budget for 2024/25 has been built up using the principles and
assumptions laid out in this Medium-Term Finance Strategy. A summary of the budget,
compared to the base budget 2023/24 is summarised in the table below. It should,
however, be noted that the revised net budget needs for 2023/24 are estimated to be

£12,376,100.

Table 5 — Proposed Revenue Budget for
2024/25

Committees

Licensing and Regulatory Affairs
Committee

Planning Committee
Executive - Portfolio Budgets
- Leisure and Community

- Housing

- Planning and Development
- Policy and Resources

- Health and Public Protection
- Streetscene

Accounting Adjustments not included
above

SERVICE BUDGETS

Capital Charges

Direct Revenue Funding

Minimum Revenue Provision

Bad Debt Provision

Interest on Balances

Portchester Crematorium

New Homes Bonus

Contribution from Earmarked Reserves
Contribution to(+)/from(-) Reserves

OTHER BUDGETS

NET BUDGET

Budget Budget Variation
2023/24 2024/25
£ £ £
540,400 699,100 158,700
694,300 578,100 -116,200
-38,600 148,600 187,200
2,270,800 3,435,900 1,165,100
1,246,100 1,221,200 -24,900
541,800 -958,900  -1,500,700
765,800 373,500 -392,300
5,592,200 6,706,800 1,114,600
4,101,900 3,891,400 -210,500
15,714,700 16,095,700 381,000
-4,320,000 -4,094,400 225,600
1,125,000 1,125,000 0
1,490,900 1,756,700 265,800
0 0 0
-612,000 -468,400 143,600
-80,000 -100,000 -20,000
-17,900 -98,200 -80,300
-1,002,700 -552,600 450,100
-400,900 -598,200 -197,300
-3,817,600 -3,030,100 787,500
11,897,100 13,065,600 1,168,500
19

Page 111




MEDIUM-TERM FINANCE STRATEGY 2023/24 to 2027/28

5.3 CONTRIBUTIONS TO AND FROM RESERVES

These represent:

a) one-off items in the budget that are funded from reserve accounts that the Council
holds;

b) decisions made to increase the value of specific ear-marked reserves; or

c) areas where there are excess funds and a transfer is made into reserves.

Use of Earmarked Reserves

The table below lists the use of ear-marked reserves that will be used to finance
planned expenditure in the strategy.

Table 6 — Use of Ear-Marked Reserves

‘000s

Use of Receipts in Advance

S106 Titchfield Country Park — Tree Planting Annuall -25
S106 Daedalus Open Space — Ranger Post for 5 y -20
S106 Grounds maintenance — Area 8 Posts -81
Welborne Delivery Funding — Strategic Sites Posts / General Expenses years -188
Daedalus Funding -18
Use of Earmarked Reserves 1 vear

Homelessness Fund fur?lding 0
Portchester Town Centre Improvements only 0
Total Due from Ear Marked Reserves -332

The cost of these activities will be included in the service, and accounting regulations
require the funding of the activities to be shown separately from the service cost.

Use of General Reserves

The table below lists the use of general reserves that will be used for specific purposes
in the strategy.

Table 7 — Use of General Reserves

‘000s
Draw down for specific purposes
Transfer of £1.2m from general reserves to the spending reserve to give additional
protection from the increased volatility of income and expenditure (from 5% to 7.5% 0

| gross expenditure)

Move to reserves for Local Plan Future Years +44
General Reserves set aside for Ash die back costs until 2026/27 -15
General Reserves set aside for Opportunities Funding -80
General Reserves set aside for Civic Quarter Regeneration -170
Draw down to balance the budget -598
Total Due from General Reserves -819

In addition, as discussed above, the proposed budget for 2024/25, as a non-service
specific revenue budget, provides for a revenue contribution to capital (RCCO) of
£1.125 million.

20

Page 112




MEDIUM-TERM FINANCE STRATEGY 2023/24 to 2027/28

The value of the Spending Reserve as at 31/03/22 was predicted to be over the
£3,750,000 which is the threshold of 7.5% of gross expenditure for 2023/24 (£50.0
million). Proposals on the use of the additional surplus arising will be developed for
consideration in February, alongside the consolidated draft budget for 2023/24.

5.4 COUNCIL TAX 2024/25

The net revenue budget proposed for 2024/25 of £13,065,600 requires use of general
reserves of £598,200 to help fund the spend. This is in addition to what can be funded
from the collection fund as summarised below. However, without an increase of
Council Tax by a minimum of 2.99% there will be a shortfall in funding available of
£238,000. It is therefore proposed that this gap is closed by a council tax increase in
2024/25 up to the maximum allowable level before a referendum is required.

Table 8 — Projected Funding of the 2024/25 Net Revenue Budget from Council Tax

£'000

Net Budget Requirement (after contribution from

£13,065

| general reserves)

Retained Business Rates -£4,487
RSG & Services Grant -£366
Council Tax at current level -£7,965
Additional Council Tax for new properties -£9
Total Available from the Collection Fund and £12,827
General Grants
Projected Shortfall — proposed to be met by 2.99% £238
increase in council tax

21

Page 113




MEDIUM-TERM FINANCE STRATEGY 2023/24 to 2027/28

6. FIVE YEAR FORECAST

6.1 OVERALL REVENUE POSITION

Table 9 — Financial Projections 2023/24 to 2027/28

2023/24
Revised 2024/25 2025/26 2026/27 2027/28
000s 000s 000s 000s 000s

| SERVICE EXPENDITURE

Gross Expenditure on Services

Base Budget

£51,265 £52,027 £52,216 £52,405 £52,594

Changes for Pay and Pensions £151 £400 £400 £400 £400
Changes for Spend Pressures and Opportunities -£226 £499 -£276 -£263 -£401
Changes for Cost of Living Spend Pressures £0 £19 £100 £200 £300

Revised Budget

£51,190 £52,945 £52,440 £52,742 £52,893

Gross Income for Services

Base Budget

-£33,341 -£32,496 -£32,512 -£32,512 -£32,512

Changes for Income Pressures and Opportunities

£0 -£1,670 -£313 -£372 -£362

Revised Budget

-£33,341 -£34,166 -£32,825 -£32,884 -£32,874

| Net Cost of Services

£17,849 £18,779 £19,615 £19,858 £20,019

NON SERVICE SPECIFIC BUDGETS

Contribution to capital spend — RCCO £1,125 £1,125 £1,125 £1,125 £1,125
Provision to repay borrowing (MRP) £1,546 £1,757 £1,844 £1,899 £1,957
Increase In Bad Debt Provision £0 £0 £0 £0 £0
Accounting Adjustments -£4,094 -£4,094 -£4,094 -£4,094 -£4,094
Total Non Service Budgets -£1,423 -£1,212 -£1,125 -£1,070 -£1,012

| NET BUDGET REQUIREMENT

| £16,426 | £17,567 | £18,490 | £18,788 | £19,007 |

| SOURCES OF FUNDING

Core Funding

Government General Grants -£440 -£366 -£308 £0 £0
New Homes Bonus -£18 -£98 £0 £0 £0
Retained Business Rates -£3,971 -£4,488 -£4,737 -£4,290 -£4,761
Collection Fund Balance £0 £0 £0 £0

Total Core Funding

-£4,429 -£4,952 -£5,045 -£4,290 -£4,761

Other Funding Sources

Income from Financial Investments -£430 -£468 -£468 -£468 -£468

Income from Property Investments -£2,543 -£2,684 -£2,684 -£2,684 -£2,684

Contributions from Partnerships -£80 -£100 £0 £0 £0

Contributions from Govt For COVID £0 £0 £0 £0 £0
22

Page 114




MEDIUM-TERM FINANCE STRATEGY 2023/24 to 2027/28

| Total Other Funding | £3053| £3252| £3152| £3152| £3152
Use of Reserves
Ear marked for specific use -£979 | -£552 | -£369 | -£437 | -£380 |

Council Tax

£7,965 | £8,911| £9,924 | £10,909 | £10,714 |

Projection of Retained Council Tax at current level £7,965 £7,965 £7,974 £8,075 £8,195

Additional Council Tax for new properties £0 £9 £101 £120 £102

Council Tax available at no increase £7,965 £7,974 £8,075 £8,195 £8,297
| Projected shortfall with no increase £0 -£837 -£1,849 £2,714 -£2,417

- - : TYRE
Council Tax available with 2.99% increase per £7.965 £8.213 £8.566 £8.953 £0.335
year
: - TYRE
;;:jrected shortfall with 2.99% increase per £0 £598 £1,358 £1,056 £1,379

The Five-Year Forecast indicates that there continues to be a number of spending
pressures facing the Council over the coming years as core funding sources are
expected to fall whilst unavoidable costs increase. Although the Council has been
successful in making significant savings for a number of years now, the projections
indicate that further reductions will be necessary.

The highest funding gap now showing across the 5 years is £1.956 million, even with
the proposed increases in council tax. There are also a number of pressures, risks
and uncertainties, including delivery of some of the Corporate Priorities, for which no

provision has been made in the budgets.

The Council currently has general reserves it can use to balance the budgets, but

these will be insufficient by 2026/7.

6.2 SENSITIVITY ANALYSIS

The Council has been committed to minimising increases in the overall net budget and
Council Tax increases. This has proven successful in restricting the proportion of
gross expenditure on general fund services that has to be met by Council Tax payers,

currently 16%.

Page 115

23




MEDIUM-TERM FINANCE STRATEGY 2023/24 to 2027/28

Because the proportion is so low, the Fareham element of the Council Tax (around
10%) is very sensitive to even minor increases in expenditure. An increase in gross
expenditure of 1% (approximately £/2m) would result in an increase in the amount to
be met by Council Tax payers of 6.3%. The following table highlights the gearing effect
that additional expenditure has on the Council Tax.

Table 9 — Gearing Effect of Additional Spend on Council Tax

£M % Increase
Current Spending 47.6
Significance of an extra £500,000 in spending +1.0%
Council Tax payers 8.0
Significance of spending an extra £500,000 +6.3%

For each pressure, an assessment has been made about the possible variation above
and below the "most likely" position. This allows the sensitivity of the projected totals
to change. As more information becomes available about the individual pressures, the
projections can be updated and made more certain.

6.3 RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The budget projections indicate the susceptibility of the Council’s revenue budget to
changes in the level of expenditure and income caused by factors outside the control
of the Council. It is clear that even a small variation in funding, expenditure or income
would have a significant impact on the Council’s revenue budget position.

to maintain a minimum spending reserve equivalent to 7.5% of gross

b This is why one of the fundamental principles contained in the MTFS is
revenue expenditure.

In considering the budget forecasts, there are also a number of other issues
that need to be borne in mind, as set out below:

e The full impact of the Fair Funding Review on the Council’s core funding
sources is not known.

e The funding needs of the Council’s corporate priorities have not been fully
costed and built into the budgets.

e Thereis alevel of uncertainty surrounding the current economic climate with
even more uncertainty as to the length of time the economy will take to
recover after the cost of living crisis.

e Demand for Council services remains volatile in some services, and this
may be heightened due to economic challenges.

e While the Council's capital resources are expected to exceed planned
capital expenditure at the end of the programme period, future spending
requirements could give rise to a shortfall. It is therefore imperative that
capital reserves are replenished whenever possible in order to meet the
future spending needs.

24

Page 116




e Hampshire County Council is also having funding pressures, and some of
the decision they may need to take may impact on Fareham Borough
Council’s finances.

There are also significant pressures that have not yet been built into the
forecasts. These include:

e Land Charges Income — As part of the Queen’s speech in June 2014 it was
announced that the land charges function would be centralised and run by the Land
Registry in order to support the delivery of digital services. The timetable for this
has been delayed many times but it would result in a loss of income for the Council
of up to £100,000 but is more likely to be less than half of that figure. It is anticipated
that part of the service would move over in the latter part 2024/25 at the earliest
but over half of the work would still need to be done in-house.

e Universal Credit — The long-term ambition for the government is for the housing
benefits system to be replaced by Universal Credit administered centrally. This was
introduced in Fareham in November 2018 and will be implemented gradually over
time. The migration of benefit claimants to Universal Credit will have a financial
impact to the Council particularly in relation to the service team and overhead
costs.

e Waste Collection — The government’s environmental bill will see wholesale
changes to the waste collection services that the council currently provides. These
will include changes to recycling collections and will include regular food waste
collections. The way these changes will be funded has not yet been announced.

e Population Increases — The recent Census has shown that the population of the
borough has not grown to the same levels as other parts of the country and this
could affect funding that is population based in the short to medium term. However,
there are a number of significant planning applications in the borough which could
lead to a significant increase in the population (up to 12%) and households (up to
13%). No provision has currently been built into the budgets for the impact this will
have on the services the Council provides e.g. council tax administration)

e Corporate Strategy — The proposed projects in the new Corporate Strategy 2023-
2029 have not been fully costed and added to the forecasts.

e Climate Change — Funding that might be needed for projects in the Climate
Change action plan has not currently been allocated.

The Council aims to develop its efficiency plans well in advance of need to ensure that
they are sufficiently reliable before being included in budgets, and to allow the full
consequences of such changes to be considered and consulted upon where
appropriate.

Work was undertaken during 2023 by all Senior Managers, Heads of Services and

25

Page 117




MEDIUM-TERM FINANCE STRATEGY 2023/24 to 2027/28

Members to generate ideas to close the predicted funding gap from 2023/24 and build
in capacity to cover future pressures and areas of spending growth.

Over 260 ideas were generated; they were then reviewed further and prioritised for
delivery between 2023/24 and 2025/26 as part of the new Opportunities Plan. The Plan
is being expanded as other opportunities to generate savings are identified.

In the 2023/24 revised budget £498,500 of opportunity savings were used to reduce
the need to draw on reserves to balance the budget. The figure for 2024/25 was
£391,200 and there will be more savings needed before the end of the strategy period
in order to close the funding gap.

Current predictions are that the Opportunities work will be needed to address the
projected funding gap for the next 5 years, with some spare capacity for pressures not
yet built in.

7. CONCLUSION

The Council has a long history of prudent financial management, of achieving
efficiency savings while providing a wide range of excellent services.

The projections set out in this report give a broad indication of the anticipated level of
expenditure, based on the latest information available about the Government's funding
intentions. This is predicting a funding gap by 2026/27 even if Council Tax is increased
by 2.99% each year, which cannot be met by the Council’'s general reserves. There
are also a number of budget pressures and uncertainties, both revenue and capital,
which do not currently feature in the forecasts.

The position from 2024/25 onwards will also become clearer when future government
spending plans are released.

In the meantime, there will be a continued need to focus on the need to identify where
capacity can be created through the delivery of more efficient services to meet
demand, while protecting, as far as possible, services to the public, and delivering the
priorities set for the Borough. The work developing and implementing the
Opportunities Plan will therefore be critical to this aim.

26

Page 118




MEDIUM-TERM FINANCE STRATEGY 2023/24 to 2027/28

ANNEX 1
BUDGET RESPONSIBILITIES

Responsibility for budgets rests formally with the Full Council but there are
arrangements in place as part of the Constitution that delegates certain responsibilities
to the Executive, the committees and to officers.

The timetable for the financial planning and budget process is:

Stage Detail

Consultation with residents and business representatives (incl.

Chambers of Commerce, Federation of Small Businesses, the

Institute of Directors, Business South and Solent Local Enterprise Continual
Partnership)

2 Member approval of corporate objectives and priority action plan November

Member review of Medium Term Finance Strategy

3 Member consideration of revised revenue budget for current year,
base budget for next year, the capital programme and fees and
charges.

January

Member consideration of new capital schemes and revenue growth
items

Member review of Capital Strategy (new)

Member confirmation of capital programme

Member confirmation of overall revenue budget for next year
Member setting of the Council Tax

February

Outturn position for the General Fund and Housing Revenue
Account revenue and capital budgets for the previous year.

Member approval of carry forward of any revenue and capital

. . July
expenditure programmes into current year.

Member approval of financing arrangements for any capital
programme overspends.

6 Six monthly monitoring against current year budgets November

Full Council

The Full Council has the general responsibility for setting the Council’s policy and
budget framework. The Full Council must ensure the following:

e Corporate strategies are approved in accordance with the projected resources of the
Council;

e Approved revenue budgets, capital programmes and Council Tax levels are in accordance
with the Council’s Medium-Term Finance Strategy;

o Supplementary estimates are only approved after consideration of the Council’s overall
financial position.

27

Page 119




MEDIUM-TERM FINANCE STRATEGY 2023/24 to 2027/28

The Executive

The Executive has general responsibility for making decisions on Council services
within the policy and budget framework. The Executive must ensure the following:

° Detailed estimates of expenditure and income for all services and committees, and the
proposed Council Tax levels are prepared within the context of the council’'s Medium
Term Finance Strategy for approval by Full Council;

° Expenditure is only incurred if it forms part of the approved service revenue budget or
capital programme;

° Any decision to reallocate revenue or capital budgets from one service to another does
not exceed the virement rules;

° The overall revenue budget and capital programme are not exceeded.

The Committees

The Committees have general responsibility for carrying out non-Executive functions
within the powers delegated to them by Full Council. The Committees must ensure the
following:

° Detailed fees and charges along with estimates of expenditure and income for
committee services are submitted to the Executive for approval by Full Council;

° The committee revenue budgets are not exceeded.

Employees

All budgets are allocated to a named manager who has the authority to spend the
approved budget. Financial regulations also form part of the Constitution and these
set out the scheme for the authorisation of expenditure.

Expenditure can only be incurred within the revenue and capital budgets approved by
the Council.

Officers can delegate their power to incur expenditure but only within the limits of their
own delegated powers.

The limits given to any individual employee are in accordance with the schedule of
limits set out in the financial regulations. All employee powers to incur expenditure
should be officially documented and authorised in a form approved by the Statutory
Chief Finance Officer.

The Council’s financial regulations are available to all employees on the corporate
filing system giving detailed guidance on:

The responsibilities of employees
Financial reporting

Revenue and capital budgets
Budgetary control and virements.

28

Page 120




MEDIUM-TERM FINANCE STRATEGY 2023/24 to 2027/28

ANNEX 2

1. Purpose

This Pay Policy Statement (“Pay Statement”) is provided in accordance with the
Localism Act 2011(“Localism Act’) and this will be updated in each subsequent
financial year.

This Pay Statement sets out Fareham Borough Council’s pay policies relating to its
workforce for the financial year 2024-25, including the remuneration of its Chief
Officers, lowest paid employees and the relationship between its Chief Officers and
that of its employees who are not Chief Officers.

2. Definitions

For the purpose of this Pay Statement the following definitions apply:

includes base salary, charges, fees, allowances, benefits in kind,
Pay increases in/fenhancements to pension entitlements and termination
payments.

refers to the following roles within the Council:

Statutory Chief Officers:

e Chief Executive Officer, as Head of Paid Service

o Assistant Chief Executive Officer, as Monitoring Officer
Chief Officers ¢ Assistant Director (Finance and ICT), as Section 151 Officer
Non-Statutory Chief Officers:

e Director of Planning and Regulation

e Director of Housing

e Director of Neighbourhoods

e Assistant Director (Democracy)
Deputy Chief Heads of Service who report directly to/or accountable to a statutory or
Officers non-statutory Chief Officer in respect of all or most of their duties.
Refers to those employees employed within Grade1 of the Council's
mainstream pay structure. This definition has been adopted because
Grade1 is the lowest grade on the Council’s mainstream pay structure.
Employee who Refers to all employees who are not covered under the “Chief Officer”
is not a Chief group above. This includes the “lowest paid employees”. i.e. employees
Officer on Grade1.

Lowest paid
employees

3. Pay Framework and Remuneration Levels

3.1  General approach

The pay structure and pay scales have been designed to enable the Council to recruit
and retain suitably qualified employees at all levels who are dedicated to fulfilling its

29

Page 121




MEDIUM-TERM FINANCE STRATEGY 2023/24 to 2027/28

corporate objectives and delivering services to the public whilst operating within an
acceptable financial framework.

With a diverse workforce the Council recognises that its Pay Policy needs to retain
sufficient flexibility to cope with a variety of circumstances that may arise that might
necessitate the use of market supplements or other such mechanisms for individual
categories of posts where appropriate. The decision to apply a market premium or
similar mechanism will be approved by the Assistant Chief Executive Officer and
endorsed by the Chief Executive Officer.

The Chief Executive Officer, as Head of Paid Service, has delegated power to update
the pay policy in line with establishment changes.

3.2 Responsibility for decisions on pay structures

The outcome of reviews into the local pay and grading structures covering all jobs are
submitted to a meeting of Full Council for approval.

The Council’s locally determined pay structures are based on the outcome of a job
evaluated process and were implemented for the Chief Officers, Heads of Service and
all other employees in April 2008. This followed a national requirement for all Local
Authorities to review their pay and grading frameworks to ensure fair and consistent
practice for different groups of workers with the same employer to comply with
employment legislation.

The pay structure for the Chief Executive Officer was established in 2008 having
regard to the need to be fully competitive in the market and to be confident of attracting
and retaining the highest calibre of employee to reflect the high level of organisational
and corporate performance which the Council requires its Chief Executive Officer to
deliver. Relevant labour market and comparative remuneration data was considered.
This was reviewed in 2013.

3.3 Pay scales and grading framework

The mainstream pay structure for all employees below the level of Heads of Service
was determined through a local process based on the outcome of a job evaluation
scheme. The pay structure from 1 April 2023 consists of a pay spine of 44 points,
comprising 11 grades containing 5 spinal column points with the exception of grade1.
Grade 1 is the lowest grade and 11 the highest. Each employee will be on one of the
11 grades based on their job evaluated role.

The Chief Executive’s pay grade reflects the same principles as for all of the Council’s
pay structures consisting of 5 spinal column points.

The pay structure for Chief Officers and Heads of Service was determined through
a local process that took into account market alignment with District Councils in
Hampshire and the outcome of a job evaluated process. It followed the same
principles as applied for the mainstream pay structure and consists of one pay grade

30

Page 122




MEDIUM-TERM FINANCE STRATEGY 2023/24 to 2027/28

for Chief Officers and three pay grades for Heads of Service with all grades containing
5 points (with 4 additional points relating to responsibility for statutory posts).

The National Minimum Wage applies to those under 21 (with effect from 1 April 2024)
but Fareham’s pay scales are not aged biased.

Details of the Council’s pay structures are published on the Council’s website and a
copy as at 1st April 2023 is appended to this Statement (at Annex A).

3.4 Pay Awards and National Pay Awards

Pay awards are considered annually for all employees. The outcome of national
consultations by the Local Government Employers in negotiation with the Trade
Unions in relation to the settlement of the annual pay award is normally applied. The
pay award for April 2023 was settled in November 2023 with a cash sum of £1,925
applied to each scale point subject to a minimum increase of 3.88%. This resulted in
a pay award of between 3.88% and 9.50% on the mainstream grades. The pay award
with effect from April 2024 will be negotiated between the employers and the Unions.

The pay award for the Chief Executive and Chief Officers was agreed at 3.50%.

If there is an occasion where the Council believes that the National Pay Settlement
would distort the local pay structures alternative proposals will be developed,
discussed with the trade unions and brought to Elected Members for formal approval.

4. Remuneration - level and element
4.1 Salaries of Chief Officers and Deputy Chief Officers

“Chief Officers” are identified at 2 above and constitute the Council’s Corporate
Management Team. They are all paid within the Council’s pay structures as follows:

a) Chief Executive Officer, as Head of Paid Service will be paid a salary within the
grade range £125,716 to £145,192.

b)  Statutory and Non-Statutory Chief Officers will be paid a salary within the grade
range £79,308 to £102,823(£106,480 to £118,252 for statutory posts).

“Deputy Chief Officers” who are Heads of Service are all paid within the Council’s
pay structures and will be paid a salary within grade ranges £60,132 to £79,308.

Typically, Chief Officers and Heads of Service have received the same percentage
pay award as for all other employees.

Details of Chief Officer and Heads of Service remuneration have been published since
2010 on the Council’s website.

31

Page 123




MEDIUM-TERM FINANCE STRATEGY 2023/24 to 2027/28

4.2 “Lowest paid employees”

Each lowest paid employee will be paid a salary within the pay scales for Grade1
mindful of the need to meet the National Living Wage requirements.

A very detailed review of pay and grading was undertaken on this topic along with
other parts of the grading structure and the review and recommendations were
reported to Full Council in December 2014.

4.3 Bonuses and Performance related pay

There is no provision for bonus payments or performance related pay awards to any
level of employee.

There is, however, an honorarium provision which may be awarded where an
employee performs duties outside the scope of their post over an extended period or
where the additional duties and responsibilities involved are exceptionally onerous.
All such payments are subject to approval by a Chief Officer (Member of the Senior
Leadership Team).

4.4 Other pay elements — Statutory Officers

The pay structure for Chief Officers does not take account of the clearly defined
additional responsibilities in respect of the Section 151 and Monitoring Officer roles.
Officers undertaking these roles receive payment equivalent to two spinal column
points based on the incremental pay progression from the penultimate to maximum
point of the pay grade for Chief Officers.

Provision for the recognition of the role of acting Head of Paid Service exists within the
Chief Officers pay structure for up to two spinal column points on the same payment
principle as for the Section 151 and Monitoring Officers.

These pay arrangements allow for flexibility in the allocation of the additional roles to
Chief Officers and for the responsibilities to be rotated.

4.5 Charges, fees or allowances

Allowances or other payments, for example shift working, standby, etc. may be
made to employees, below the level of Chief Officer, in connection with their role or
the pattern of hours they work in accordance with National or Local collective
agreements.

Expenses: The Council recognises that some employees incur necessary
expenditure in carrying out their responsibilities, for example travel costs.
Reimbursement for reasonable expenses incurred on Council business are paid in
accordance with the Council’s collective agreement and subsequent amendments to
it.

32

Page 124




MEDIUM-TERM FINANCE STRATEGY 2023/24 to 2027/28

Elections: The Chief Executive Officer has been appointed as the Council's Returning
Officer for elections and he has appointed the Assistant Director(Democracy) as his
Deputy Returning Officer. For performing elections duties the Returning Officer and
Deputy receive a fee payable according to a scale of costs, charges and expenses set
by the Hampshire and Isle of Wight Election Fees Working Party and allowed under
the Local Government Act 1972.

Professional Subscriptions: The Chief Executive Officer and Chief Officers are
entitled to receive payment for one subscription to a relevant professional body.

4.6 Benefits in kind

Benefits in kind are benefits which employees receive from their employer during their
employment which are not included as part of their salary. Fareham has a technology
scheme and car leasing scheme that employees have a choice to sign up for in lieu of
salary. These benefits are reportable to HMRC and taxed accordingly.

4.7 Pension

All employees as a result of their employment are eligible to join the Local Government
Pension Scheme (LGPS).

4.8 Severance payments

The Council already publishes its policy on discretionary payments on early
termination of employment and flexible retirement as well as publishing its policy on
increasing an employee’s total pension. These policies are applied in support of
efficient organisational change and transformation linked to the need for efficiencies
and expenditure reduction.

Details of the Council’s policies are published on the Council’s website.

Redundancy payments are calculated using the statutory weekly pay calculator which
gives the following entitlements:

0.5 week’s pay for each full year worked when you are under 22
1.0 week’s pay for each full year worked when you are between 22 and 41
1.5 week’s pay for each full year worked when you are 41 or older

The council will apply weekly pay to the number of entitled weeks and has a local
multiplier of 2.2 which is applied to the overall calculation.

No employee who has left the Council in receipt of a redundancy or severance
package will be re-employed by the Council, in any capacity, unless there are
exceptional business circumstances in which case approval is required from the Chief
Executive Officer.

4.9 New starters joining the Council

Employees new to the Council will normally be appointed to the first point of the salary
scale for their grade. Where the candidate’s current employment package would make
the first point of the salary scale unattractive (and this can be demonstrated by the

33

Page 125




MEDIUM-TERM FINANCE STRATEGY 2023/24 to 2027/28

applicant in relation to current earnings) or where the employee already operates at a
level commensurate with a higher salary, a different starting salary point within the
grade may be considered by the recruiting manager in consultation with HR Services.
The candidate’s level of skill and experience should be consistent with that of other
employees in a similar position on the salary scale within the grade.

5. Relationship between remuneration of "Chief Officers™ and "employees
who are not Chief Officers".

This relates to the ratio of the Council’s highest paid employee (falling within the
definition of “Chief Officers”) and the median earnings across the whole workforce as
a pay multiple. By definition, the Council's highest paid employee is the Chief
Executive Officer. The median average pay has been calculated on all taxable
earnings for the financial year 2023-24, including base salary, allowances, etc.

Highest paid employee £135,455
Median earnings for remainder of workforce £29,296
Ratio 4.62

34

Page 126




MEDIUM-TERM FINANCE STRATEGY 2023/24 to 2027/28

ANNEX A (to the Pay Policy Statement)

Fareham Borough Council - Pay Scales as at 01/04/2023

1 £125,716 1 £89,782

3 £135,455 3 £95,888

£145,192

£102,823

1

1 3

5

£79,308

£84,814 2

£89,781

1

3

5

£69,039

£73,990

£79,308

1

3

5

£60,132

£64,427

£69,039

Page 127

35




MEDIUM-TERM FINANCE STRATEGY 2023/24 to 2027/28

£22,183
1 4 £22,366
£22,737

26 £37,170
27 £38,172
7 28 £39,028
29 £40,272

£41,358

9 £24,294

10 £24,702

3 11 £25,119
12 £25,545

£25,979

34 £45,964

35 £47,127

9 36 £48,309
37 £49,534

£50,658

18 £30,296

19 £30,825

5 20 £31,693
21 £32,603

£33,461

£55,025
43 £56,226
11 44 £57,443
45 £58,688
46 £59,968
36

Page 128




Agenda Item 10(3)

FAREHAM

BOROUGH COUNCIL

Report to the Executive for Decision
08 January 2024

Portfolio: Policy and Resources
Subject: Capital Programme and Capital Strategy 2024/25
Report of: Assistant Chief Executive Officer

Corporate Priorities:  Responsive, Inclusive and Innovative Council

Purpose:
This report considers the Capital Strategy for 2024/25, prior to its submission to the
Council for approval.

Executive summary:

Regulations require the Council to prepare and formally approve a Capital Strategy.
The document for 2024/25 is attached as Appendix A to this report for consideration
by the Executive before being submitted to Council for approval.

The Capital Strategy gives a high-level overview of how capital expenditure, capital
financing, asset management and treasury management activity contribute to the
provision of services along with an overview of how associated risk is managed and
the implications for future financial sustainability.

The main highlights in the Capital Strategy are:

i) The level of capital expenditure estimated for 2024/25 is £16.4 million. The
current estimate is that £1.3 million of this will be met by new borrowing.

i) A new policy of capitalising officer salary costs that are directly attributable to
capital schemes will be considered as part of the total project costs.

iii)A high-level review of future funding requirements has identified a capital
funding requirement of £229 million.

iv)The Council’s investment property portfolio has an estimated value of £70
million.

A separate report proposing the Treasury Management Strategy and Investment
Strategy for 2023/24 will be presented at the February meeting of the Executive.

Page 129



Recommendation:
It is recommended that the Executive:

(a) endorses the draft Capital Strategy for 2024/25, attached as Appendix A to
this report;

(b) approves the capital programme for the period 2023/24 to 2027/28,
amounting to £82.3 million as set out in Annex 1 of the Capital Strategy; and

(c) agrees to submit the Capital Strategy for 2024/25 to Council for approval.

Reason:
To allow the Council to approve the Capital Strategy in accordance with the
Prudential Code.

Cost of proposals:
As detailed in the report.

Appendices: A: Capital Strategy 2024/25 (including 5-year capital programme as
Annex 1)

Background papers: None

Reference papers: CIPFA Prudential Code 2021
Arlingclose Capital Strategy 2024/25 Template

Enquiries:

For further information on this report please contact Caroline Hancock 01329 824589

Page 130



APPENDIX A

FAREHAM

BOROUGH COUNCIL

CAPITAL STRATEGY
2024/25

Capital
Strategy

Page 131



CONTENTS

INTRODUCTION......ciiiiiiiiisssssssssassssssss s s s n e e n e e 3
CAPITAL EXPENDITURE ......coi i 4
CAPITAL FINANCING........cooicccenrtrrrr s ssss s nnes 8
ASSET MANAGEMENT ......oooiiiiieerrrr s 11
TREASURY MANAGEMENT ....cooiiiiiiirrrrrrrrrrrrrr e 12

Page 132



INTRODUCTION
WHAT IS THE CAPITAL STRATEGY?

1.

The Capital Strategy has been developed to meet the requirements of the
CIPFA Prudential Code.

It gives a high-level overview of how capital expenditure, capital financing,
asset management and treasury management activity contribute to the
provision of local public services along with an overview of how associated risk
is managed and the implications for future financial sustainability.

Decisions made this year on capital and treasury management will have
financial consequences for the Council for many years into the future.

The Capital Strategy covers:

¢ Estimates of Capital Expenditure
Capital Expenditure » Major Capital Schemes
e Prioritisation

e External Sources
Capital Financing » Own Resouces
* Debt and MRP

e Asset Management

Asset Management e Asset Disposals

e Borrowing Strategy
¢ Investment Strategy
e Commercial Activities

Treasury
Management

The capital strategy complements other Council strategies, including those in
the diagram below:

Medium Term
Finance
Strategy

Daedalus ’ Treasury

Finance Management

e Ca P ital
Strateg
Procurement y Investment

Strategy - Strategy

Corporate
Strategy

Strategy

Page 133



PRUDENTIAL INDICATORS

6.

The objectives of the CIPFA Prudential Code aim to ensure that capital
investment plans are affordable, prudent and sustainable, and that treasury
decisions are taken in accordance with good professional practice.

To achieve these objectives, five prudential indicators are included in the capital
strategy:

¢ Prudential Indicator 1 - Estimates of capital expenditure and financing

e Prudential Indicator 2 - The Council's borrowing need

e Prudential Indicator 3 - Gross debt and the capital financing requirement

e Prudential Indicator 4 - Limits to borrowing activity

e Prudential Indicator 5 - Net income from commercial investments to net
revenue stream

e Prudential Indicator 6 - Proportion of financing costs to net revenue stream

CAPITAL EXPENDITURE

8.

Capital expenditure is where the Council spends money on assets, such as
property or vehicles, which will be used for more than one year. In local
government this also includes spending on assets owned by other bodies, and
loans and grants to other bodies enabling them to buy assets.

ESTIMATES OF CAPITAL EXPENDITURE

9.

10.

11.

The Council agrees a rolling five-year capital programme each year consistent
with the Medium-Term Finance Strategy and the resources available, along
with any impact on the revenue budgets.

The capital programme for the period 2023/24 to 2027/28 has been updated to
take account of re-phased schemes and newly approved schemes such as the
purchase of Fareham Shopping Centre and the Streetscene asset management
plan.

Total capital expenditure is one of the risk indicators required by the Prudential

Code. The Council is planning capital expenditure of £82.3 million in the 5-year
capital programme as summarised below (detailed schemes are in Annex 1):

Page 134



Capital Spend by Financial Year

£50

£40

£30

£20

£10 I

) B m =

2023/24 2024/25 2025/26 2026/27 2027/28

Millions

Prudential Indicator 1 - Estimates of Capital Expenditure

Capital Expenditure 2023/24 2024/25 2025/26 2026/27 2027/28
Revised Estimate Estimate Estimate Estimate Total
£000 £000 £°000 £000 £000 £000

Streetscene 95 354 167 50 139 805
Leisure and Community 11,679 3,403 1,992 100 100 17,274
Housing 942 859 800 800 883 4,284
Planning and Development 128 195 0 0 0 323
Policy and Resources 23,182 5,541 2,500 400 400 32,023
Total General Fund 36,026 10,352 5,459 1,350 1,522 54,709
HRA 7,770 6,007 4,770 4,540 4,540 27,627
Total Expenditure 43,796 16,359 10,229 5,890 6,062 82,336
MAJOR CAPITAL SCHEMES

12. The major General Fund capital schemes include the purchase of Fareham
Shopping Centre, Fareham Live, schemes at Solent Airport at Daedalus and
Osborn Road Car Park.

13. The Housing Revenue Account (HRA) is a ring-fenced account which ensures
that council housing does not subsidise, or is itself subsidised, by other local
services. HRA capital expenditure is therefore recorded separately and
includes new housing developments such as nine new affordable shared
ownership flats at Ophelia Court and a new social rent house at Bellfield.

14. Technical work is progressing on the redevelopment of Assheton Court in
Portchester. The total scheme costs will be added to the capital programme on

the conclusion of the tender process, currently underway.

15. Major schemes over £2 million are summarised in the table below:

Page 135




Major Schemes £000
HRA Improvements to Existing Stock 20,000
Fareham Shopping Centre 15,302
Fareham Live 13,086
Solent Airport at Daedalus 6,315
Disabled Facilities Grants 4,118
HRA New Builds 3,907
Civic Offices Improvements 3,601
HRA Stock Acquisitions 3,400
Asset Replacement Programme (ICT, Vehicles etc.) 3,183
Osborn Road Car Park 2,347

GOVERNANCE AND PRIORITIES

16.

17.

18.

19.

20.

21.

22.

Capital programme expenditure is monitored through monthly officer monitoring
reports and half-yearly and annual outturn reports to the Executive.

All new potential capital schemes will only be considered if they make a clear
contribution to the Council’s objectives and priority actions or support the
Council's Asset Management Plan.

The following factors need to be considered before a decision is made to
include a new scheme in the capital programme:

On-going operational costs associated with the scheme;

Whole life costing implications of the scheme;

Cost of servicing the debt if the scheme is financed by borrowing;
Loss of investment interest if internal resources are used.

Where new capital schemes are included in the capital programme there will be
a need to ensure that the necessary resources are in place to meet the full
capital costs and the on-going revenue costs.

A new policy of capitalising officer salary costs that are directly attributable to
capital schemes will now be considered as part of the total project costs.

Efforts will be made to secure external (non-borrowing) sources of funding
capital schemes. Internal capital resources will only be released to fund
schemes once external sources of funding (such as developers’ contributions,
grants, etc.) have been explored and rejected.

Capital schemes will normally be financed by use of capital reserves or external
contributions. Borrowing will only be considered where there is a sound
economic business case (e.g. for spend to save schemes) whereby borrowing
costs are wholly offset by long term net revenue income or savings.

Page 136



23. Resources allocated to particular capital projects but subsequently not required
are returned to meet future corporate priorities rather than be retained for use
by that service.

24. To ensure the Council is able to meet the financial challenges ahead, priority is
given to the following:

Corporate priorities;

Providing for future liabilities;

Maintaining and protecting public assets;

Investing in the future by ensuring assets are sustainable, encourage

economic growth and regeneration, and meet the needs of the

community.

25. This is achieved by:
e Building up finances for the future, such as the allocation of windfall
income to the Capital Fund Account;
e Maximising external funding opportunities to reduce the reliance on
internal resources;
o Effective project planning and management to ensure schemes are
completed on time and within budget.

SOLENT AIRPORT AND DAEDALUS

26. Solent Airport and the Daedalus site is a strategic asset for the Council, and as
such will require significant capital investment over time. It also has the
potential to generate revenue for the Council, create job opportunities for the
borough and the aspiration is for the airport operations (airside and non-airside
combined) to be financially self-sustaining.

27. The significance of Daedalus is such that it warrants its own financial operating
framework, and the Daedalus Finance Strategy was presented to the Executive
in March 2022. The strategy establishes a financial framework for the operation
and investment at Solent Airport and the wider Daedalus site, including the
approach to capital receipts and its use as a corporate capital resource.

28. Members have financial updates comparing figures against the strategy
position at regular meetings of the Daedalus Scrutiny Panel. The Scrutiny Panel
will also consider all activities and developments at the site.

CLIMATE CHANGE ACTION PLAN

29. Atthe June 2021 Executive, members adopted the Council’s Climate Change
Action Plan detailing the actions the Council is taking to reach carbon neutrality
in Scope 1 and 2 emissions by 2030.

Page 137



30. The annual review of the action plan, presented to the July 2023 Climate
Change Scrutiny Panel, highlights areas that will require future capital funding
for projects such as:

Energy efficiency improvements to Council properties and housing stock

Electric vehicle charging points at the Depot

Replacement vans and smaller vehicles that have exceeded their

working lifespan with electric versions

Replacement of petrol-powered tools e.g., lawnmowers that have

exceeded their natural lifespans with electric versions

A potential energy generation site on Council land

31. External sources of funding will be sought where possible to contribute towards
priority environmentally sustainable projects and will be an area of spending
pressure in the future.

CAPITAL FINANCING

32. All capital expenditure must be financed, either from external sources

(government grants and other contributions), the Council’s own resources

(revenue, reserves and capital receipts) or debt (borrowing and leases).

33. The planned financing of the above expenditure is as follows:

Prudential Indicator 1 - Estimates of Financing

Capital Financing 2023/24 2024/25 2025/26 2026/27 2027/28
Revised Estimate Estimate Estimate Estimate Total
£°000 £000 £000 £°000 £°000 £°000
Capital Receipts 7,908 1,473 212 200 284 10,077
Grants & 14,465 6,006 2,900 950 1,038 25,359
Contributions
Capital Reserves 3,628 5,317 5,317 3,200 3,200 20,662
Revenue 2,775 2,264 1,640 1,540 1,540 9,759
Borrowing 15,020 1,299 160 0 0 16,479
Total Financing 43,796 16,359 10,229 5,890 6,062 82,336

34. Total resources of £85.4 million are estimated to be available over the life of
the capital programme and therefore there should be a surplus of approximately
£3.1 million in 2027/28.

35. The chart below shows the different funding types split between current and

future resources. Grants and contributions are the largest funding source

financing 30% of the programme.

Page 138




36.

37.

38.

39.

40.

Funding Types

£30

£25

£20

£15

Millions

£10

£5

Capital Receipts Grants & Contributions Capital Reserves Revenue

£0

W Current Resources  OFuture Resources

The forecast surplus of resources is limited and relies partly on resources that
have not yet been secured (such as future capital receipts and grants as well as
continued revenue contributions towards capital investment), totalling £57
million.

In the event that these resources do not materialise, other funding options will
need to be investigated including borrowing, reliance on external funding or the
programme scaled back.

It must also be borne in mind that the implications of some of the Council’s
priority actions, such as town centre regeneration, and emerging capital
spending pressures have not yet been quantified. Costs associated with
approved schemes also remain provisional until tenders have been received.

Spending pressures including repair and refurbishment, or replacement works
to Council assets (for example public conveniences and car parks) have also
yet to be added to the capital programme.

The following asset management reviews are currently taking place and will be
presented to the Executive in the coming months:

e Civic Offices asset management plan
e 10-year Car Parks asset management plan

DEBT AND MRP

41.

Debt is only a temporary source of finance, since loans and leases must be
repaid, and this is therefore replaced over time by other financing, usually by
putting aside revenue resources to repay debt which is known as Minimum
Revenue Provision (MRP). Alternatively, proceeds from selling capital assets
(known as capital receipts) may be used to replace debt finance.

Page 139

Borrowing



42.

43.

44,

45.

46.

47.

48.

49.

Planned MRP and use of capital receipts are as follows:

2023/24 2024/25 2025/26 2026/27 2027/28
Revised Estimate Estimate Estimate Estimate
£000 £000 £°000 £000 £000

Minimum Revenue Provision 1,546 1,757 1,844 1,899 1,957

Future Capital Receipts 0 1,000 2,000 2,000 3,853

Borrowing costs (MRP and interest charges) for schemes funded by debt will be
covered by revenue generating assets.

The MRP budget provision reflects the capital costs relating to commercial
property purchases, and construction works at Solent Airport at Daedalus
including the Innovation Centre extension and new hangars.

MRP Policy Statement

The Council is required to set an annual policy on the way it calculates the
prudent provision for the repayment of General Fund borrowing. The main
policy adopted is that MRP will be determined by charging the expenditure over
the expected useful life of the relevant assets on an annuity basis starting in
the year after the asset becomes operational. This calculation will be reviewed
on a case-by-case basis depending on the circumstances and with a view to
minimising the impact on the council tax payer.

Where expenditure is on an asset which will be held on a short-term basis (up
to 5 years), no MRP will be charged. However, the capital receipt generated by
the sale of the asset will be used to repay the debt instead.

No MRP will be charged in respect of assets held within the HRA but
depreciation on those assets will be charged instead in line with regulations.

Capital Financing Requirement

The Council’s cumulative outstanding amount of debt finance is referred to as
the Capital Financing Requirement (CFR) and is another prudential indicator.
The CFR increases with new debt-financed capital expenditure and reduces
when MRP and capital receipts are used to replace debt.

The CFR indicator is a measure of the Council's underlying need to borrow for a

capital purpose taken from the balance sheet. This indicator is set to ensure
that the level of proposed capital expenditure remains within sustainable limits.

Page 140




50. The CFRis expected to decrease by £1.5 million during 2024/25 mainly due to
MRP exceeding debt funded capital expenditure. The Council’s estimated CFR
is as follows:

Prudential Indicator 2 - The Council's borrowing need

2023/24 2024/25 2025/26 2026/27 2027/28

Revised Estimate Estimate Estimate Estimate

£000 £000 £°000 £000 £°000

General Fund 67,295 64,538 60,836 56,937 51,127
HRA 54,531 55,830 55,848 55,848 55,848
Total CFR 121,826 120,368 116,684 112,785 106,975

ASSET MANAGEMENT

51. One of the Council’s corporate priorities is ‘a dynamic, prudent and progressive
Council’ and aims to ‘undertake a major review of all Council owned land and
buildings to ensure that we are making the best use of our assets’.

FUTURE FUNDING REQUIREMENTS

52. To ensure that capital assets continue to be of long-term use, a high-level
review of the future funding requirements for its land and buildings, excluding
Council dwellings has been undertaken. This review covers a 30-year time
frame and has identified a capital funding requirement of £229 million for
refurbishing/re-provisioning existing assets, improving existing assets and
aspirational investments as shown in the chart below:

Funding Requirement

m Refurbishment/Re-Provision
= Anticipated Improvements

Aspirational Investments

53. The main funding source is self-funded borrowing supported by capital receipts,
capital reserves and the community infrastructure levy, as illustrated in the
following graph:

11

Page 141



Funding Sources £m

Capital Reserves

I
Capital Receipts -

0 20 40

80

100

120

140

54. The Council will put in place a Council-wide plan which will set out the overall
direction and framework for the management of its assets to help deliver the

Council's priority actions and service delivery needs, now and in the future.

ASSET DISPOSALS

55.

When a capital asset is no longer needed, it may be sold so that the proceeds,

known as capital receipts, can be spent on new assets or to repay debt.

56. Repayments of capital grants, loans and investments also generate capital

receipts. The Council estimates to receive capital receipts as follows:
2023/24 2024/25 2025/26 2026/27 2027/28
Revised Estimate Estimate Estimate Estimate
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Right to Buy Houses 600 600 600 600 600
Other Housing Receipts 1,275 16 16 9 9
General Fund Property 1,694 1,000 2,000 2,000 3,853
Total 3,569 1,616 2,616 2,609 4,462

Other Housing Receipts in 2023/24 mainly relates to shared ownership sales at Capella Close.
General Fund Property mainly relates to land and property sales at Daedalus and Welborne

Cottages (2027/28).

TREASURY MANAGEMENT

57. Treasury management is concerned with keeping sufficient but not excessive
cash available to meet the Council’'s spending needs, while managing the risks
involved. Surplus cash is invested until required, while a shortage of cash will
be met by borrowing, to avoid excessive credit balances or overdrafts in the

bank current account.

Page 142

12




58. The Council is typically cash rich in the short-term as revenue income is
received before it is spent, but cash poor in the long-term as capital expenditure
is incurred before being financed. The revenue cash surpluses are offset
against capital cash shortfalls to reduce overall borrowing.

59. At 31 March 2023, the Council had £61.3 million borrowing and £24.8 million
treasury investments.

60. The Treasury Management Strategy and Investment Strategy for 2024/25 will
be presented separately at the February meeting of the Executive.

BORROWING STRATEGY

61. The Council’'s main objective when borrowing is to achieve a low but sufficiently
certain cost of finance while retaining flexibility should plans change in future.
These objectives are often conflicting, and the Council therefore seeks to strike
a balance between cheap short-term loans and long-term fixed rate loans
where the future cost is known but higher.

62. Projected levels of the Council’s total outstanding debt are shown below,
compared with the capital financing requirement.

Prudential Indicator 3 - Gross debt and the capital financing requirement

2023/24 2024/25 2025/26 2026/27 2027/28
Revised Estimate Estimate Estimate Estimate
£°000 £000 £000 £000 £°000

Debt at 1 April 61,300 74,300 74,300 72,300 70,300

Capital Financing
Requirement (CFR) 121,826 120,368 116,684 112,785 106,975

63. Statutory guidance is that debt should remain below the capital financing
requirement, except in the short-term. As can be seen from the table above,
the Council expects to comply with this in the medium term.

AFFORDABLE BORROWING LIMIT

64. The Council is legally obliged to set an affordable borrowing limit (also termed
the authorised limit for external debt) each year and a lower “operational
boundary” set as a warning level should debt approach the limit.

Page 143



65. The operational boundary is based on the Council's estimate of the most likely
(i.e. prudent but not worst case) scenario for external debt. This is the limit
beyond which external borrowing is not normally expected to exceed.

66. The authorised limit represents the maximum amount of debt that the Council
can legally owe. The limit provides headroom over and above the operational

boundary for unusual cash movements.

Prudential Indicator 4 - Limits to Borrowing Activity

2023/24 2024/25 2025/26 2026/27 2027/28
Revised Estimate Estimate Estimate Estimate
£°000 £°000 £°000 £’000 £’000

Operational Boundary 164,000 173,000 175,000 173,000 168,000
Authorised Limit 173,000 182,000 184,000 182,000 177,000

67. Further details on borrowing are in the Council’'s Treasury Management
Strategy.

TREASURY INVESTMENT STRATEGY

68. The Council invests its money for three broad purposes:
o because it has surplus cash as a result of its day-to-day activities, for
example when income is received in advance of expenditure (known as
treasury management investments),

o to support local public services by lending to or buying shares in other
organisations (service investments), and

o to earn investment income (known as commercial investments where
this is the main purpose).

69. The Council does not currently have service investments.

Treasury Investment Policy

70. The Council’s policy on treasury investments is to prioritise security and liquidity
over yield, which is to focus on minimising risk rather than maximising returns.
Cash that is likely to be spent in the near term is invested securely, for example
with the government, other local authorities or selected high-quality banks, to
minimise the risk of loss.

71. Money that will be held for longer terms is invested more widely, including

property and multi-assets funds containing bonds and shares, to balance the
risk of loss against the risk of receiving returns below inflation.

Page 144




72.

73.

Both near-term and longer-term investments may be held in pooled funds,
where an external fund manager makes decisions on which investments to buy,
and the Council may request its money back at short notice.

Further details on treasury investments are set out in the Council’s Treasury
Management Strategy.

Treasury Investment Risk Management

74.

The effective management and control of risk are prime objectives of the
Council’s treasury management activities. The treasury management strategy
therefore sets out various indicators and limits to constrain the risk of
unexpected losses.

Treasury Investment Governance

75.

76.

Decisions on treasury management investment and borrowing are made daily
and are therefore delegated to the Statutory Chief Finance Officer and staff,
who must act in line with the treasury management strategy approved by Full
Council.

Reports on treasury management activity are presented to the Executive. The
Audit and Governance Committee is responsible for scrutinising treasury
management decisions and therefore is presented with the annual Treasury
Management Policy for comment, and reports on adherence to this Policy.

COMMERCIAL ACTIVITIES

Commercial Investments Policy

77.

78.

With central government financial support for local public services declining, the
Council invests in commercial property to secure a financial gain. Total
commercial investments that have been purchased in accordance with the
Council’'s Commercial Property Investment Acquisition Strategy are
summarised below and are currently valued at £35.5 million and expected to
generate rental income of £2.7 million during 2024/25.

Property Type Currg,rtl)to\;alue
Retail 21,785
Commercial (Industrial) 11,740
Other (Healthcare) 1,960
Total 35,485

The Council’s total investment portfolio, shown below, is valued at £70 million
and includes Faretec and industrial sites at Palmerston Business Park and

Page 145



Newgate Lane. The Council purchased the leasehold of Fareham Shopping
Centre at the end of September 2023. The table includes the freehold value
only.

Current Value

Property Type £000

Retail 33,790
Commercial 25,245
Other 4,109
Office 5,370
Leisure 1,492
Total 70,006

Commercial Investments Risk Management

79.

80.

81.

82.

With financial return being a key objective, the Council accepts higher risk on
commercial investment than with treasury investments. Investing in property is
not risk-free, so it is important that any acquisitions reflect the Council’s risk
appetite in terms of maintaining the capital value of the asset in the long term,
and extent to which rental income is guaranteed.

The principal risk exposures include vacancies and the resultant loss of income,
added costs of holding a vacant property and cost of marketing and re-letting
the property.

These risks are managed by ensuring:

o funds available for new purchases are disaggregated to limit the overall
impact that any single investment would have on the Council’s finances;

o there is a mix of property types in the portfolio e.g. retail, industrial, etc.;

o new purchases are only considered with existing tenants of “high quality”
and sufficiently long lease terms;

o appropriate checks are carried out to ascertain the tenant's reliability
before the investment is made and periodically afterwards;

o other “due diligence” is undertaken to protect the Councils investment as
far as possible such as checks on planning conditions, land contamination
issues and planning policy issues.

The majority of investments will be held for a medium to long term in order to
achieve the required return and to justify the cost of the acquisition. However,
as part of the investment decision, consideration is also given to the potential
ways in which the Council could “exit” from the investment, such as sale to

Page 146



another investor, sale for redevelopment, etc. An investment only proceeds
where there is a clear exit strategy, should it be required.

Commercial Investments Governance

83.

84.

85.

86.

The Executive approved a Commercial Property Investment Acquisition
Strategy on 7t January 2013.

The steps taken before a decision to purchase a property are clearly
documented and tested via a challenge process involving the Head of Property
Services, Statutory Chief Finance Officer and the Executive portfolio holder for
Policy Strategy and Finance.

Decisions on commercial investments are made by the Executive in line with
the criteria outlined in the Commercial Property Investment Acquisition
Strategy.

Property and most other commercial investments are also capital expenditure
and purchases will therefore also be approved as part of the capital
programme.

Prudential Indicator 5 — Net income from commercial investments to net revenue
stream

2023/24 2024/25 2025/26 2026/27

2027/28

Revised Estimate Estimate Estimate Estimate

Total net income from commercial

investments £000 4,059 4,661 4,664 4,610

4,399

General Fund Proportion of net

34% 36% 36% 35%
revenue stream

34%

LIABILITIES

87.

88.

89.

In addition to debt detailed above, the Council is committed to making future
payments to cover its pension fund deficit (valued at £10.5 million as at 31
March 2023). It has also set aside provisions of £3.5 million mainly to cover
business rate appeals.

Decisions on incurring new discretional liabilities are taken by service managers

in consultation with the Statutory Chief Finance Officer. The risk of liabilities
crystallising and requiring payment is monitored by Finance and reported as
necessary.

Further details on liabilities are given in the 2022/23 Statement of Accounts.

Page 147




REVENUE BUDGET IMPLICATIONS

90. Although capital expenditure is not charged directly to the revenue budget,
interest payable on loans and MRP are charged to revenue, offset by any
investment income receivable.

91. The net annual charge is known as financing costs; this is compared to the net
revenue stream i.e., the amount funded from Council Tax, business rates,

general government grants and housing rents.

Prudential Indicator 6 - Proportion of financing costs to net revenue stream

2023/24 2024/25 2025/26 2026/27 2027/28
Revised Estimate Estimate Estimate Estimate
General Fund Financing costs £°000 337 508 665 620 578
Sair;(ra][ja; I;turzgnl::roportlon of net 3% 4% 59% 5% 4%
HRA Financing costs £000 1,785 1,785 1,811 1,822 1,822
HRA Proportion of net revenue stream 12% 12% 11% 11% 10%

92. Due to the very long-term nature of capital expenditure and financing, the
revenue budget implications of expenditure incurred in the next few years will
extend for up to 30 years into the future. The Statutory Chief Finance Officer is
satisfied that the proposed capital programme is prudent, affordable and
sustainable.

KNOWLEDGE AND SKILLS

93. The Council employs professionally qualified and experienced staff in senior
positions with responsibility for making capital expenditure, borrowing and
investment decisions. The Council also supports junior staff to study towards
relevant professional qualifications including CIPFA.

94. Where Council staff do not have the knowledge and skills required, use is made
of external advisers and consultants that are specialists in their field. The
Council currently employs Arlingclose Limited as treasury management
advisers and a number of property consultants. This approach is more cost
effective than employing such staff directly and ensures that the Council has
access to knowledge and skills commensurate with its risk appetite.

Page 148




CAPITAL PROGRAMME 2023/24 to 2027/28

STREETSCENE
Streetscene Asset Management Plan

Bus Shelters
Play Area Safety Equipment and Surface
Replacement

STREETSCENE TOTAL

LEISURE & COMMUNITY
Buildings

Fareham Live

Leisure Centres Capital Investment

Community Buildings Review

Whiteley Community Centre
Refurbishment

Cams Alders Pavilion Roof and Masonry
Repairs

Fareham North-West Vision

Play Schemes

Play Area Improvement Programme
Skate Park Upgrade - Wicor Recreation
Ground

Skate Park Upgrade - Stubbington
Recreation Ground

Fareham College Play Area

Other Community Schemes
Christmas Lights
Allotment Improvements

LEISURE & COMMUNITY TOTAL

HOUSING

Home Improvements
Disabled Facilities Grants
Empty Homes Strategy

Enabling

Gordon Road Acquisition
Sea Lane, Stubbington - Self Builds

HOUSING TOTAL

Annex 1

2023/24 2024/25 2025/26 2026/27 2027/28 Total

£ £ £ £ £ £

42,000 303,500 116,500 462,000
14,100 89,000 103,100
39,400 50,000 50,000 50,000 50,000 239,400
95,500 353,500 166,500 50,000 139,000 804,500
11,125,800 2,010,000 13,135,800
305,000 141,700 446,700
105,000 286,800 391,800
40,000 40,000

100,000 100,000

600,000 1,750,000 2,350,000

11,635,800 3,036,800 1,891,700 0 0 16,464,300
100,000 100,000 100,000 100,000 100,000 500,000
100,000 100,000

100,000 100,000

50,000 50,000

100,000 350,000 100,000 100,000 100,000 750,000
43,100 43,100
16,300 16,300

43,100 16,300 0 0 0 59,400
11,678,900 3,403,100 1,991,700 100,000 100,000 17,273,700
859,000 859,000 800,000 800,000 800,000 4,118,000
83,500 83,500

859,000 859,000 800,000 800,000 883,500 4,201,500
30,700 30,700
52,200 52,200
82,900 0 0 0 0 82,900
941,900 859,000 800,000 800,000 883,500 4,284,400

Page 149



PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT
Car Parks - Surfacing
PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT TOTAL

POLICY & RESOURCES
Replacement Programmes

Vehicles & Plant Replacements
Upgrade Electric Vehicle Infrastructure
ICT Development Programme

Operational Buildings
Civic Offices Improvement Programme
Depot Asset Management Works

Property Acquisition
Fareham Shopping Centre

Property Developments
Osborn Road Car Park
166 Southampton Road Repairs

Solent Airport at Daedalus
Daedalus Site Wide

Managed Hangarage

Taxiway Maintenance

Aeronautical Ground Lighting System
Performance Based Navigation
Grounds Maintenance Facility
Airport Supply Assets

Visual Control Room Improvements
Infrastructure Improvements

POLICY & RESOURCES TOTAL

GENERAL FUND TOTAL

HOUSING REVENUE ACCOUNT
Improvements to Existing Stock
Vehicles

Acquisitions

New Builds

HOUSING REVENUE ACCOUNT
TOTAL

TOTAL CAPITAL PROGRAMME

128,200 195,000 323,200
128,200 195,000 0 0 0 323,200
599,900 745,000 400,000 400,000 400,000 2,544,900
50,000 50,000
278,600 124,500 100,000 0 0 503,100
928,500 869,500 500,000 400,000 400,000 3,098,000
235,000 1,365,800 2,000,000 3,600,800
46,000 161,200 207,200
281,000 1,527,000 2,000,000 0 0 3,808,000
15,302,000 15,302,000
15,302,000 0 0 0 0 15,302,000
500,000 1,847,100 2,347,100
1,153,100 1,153,100
1,653,100 1,847,100 0 0 0 3,500,200
100,000 171,900 271,900
25,000 25,000
1,679,900 1,679,900
2,625,300 2,625,300
187,600 187,600
160,000 160,000
165,000 165,000
75,000 305,000 380,000
820,000 820,000

5,017,800 1,296,900 0 0 0 6,314,700
23,182,400 5,540,500 2,500,000 400,000 400,000 32,022,900
36,026,900 10,351,100 5,458,200 1,350,000 1,522,500 54,708,700
4,000,000 4,000,000 4,000,000 4,000,000 4,000,000 20,000,000
100,000 100,000 40,000 40,000 40,000 320,000
1,400,000 500,000 500,000 500,000 500,000 3,400,000
2,270,000 1,407,000 230,000 0 0 3,907,000
7,770,000 6,007,000 4,770,000 4,540,000 4,540,000 27,627,000
43,796,900 16,358,100 10,228,200 5,890,000 6,062,500 82,335,700

Page 150



Agenda Item 10(4)

FAREHAM

BOROUGH COUNCIL

Report to the Executive for Decision
08 January 2024

Portfolio: Policy and Resources

Subject: Fart_aham Town Centre Regeneration Strategy and
Action Plan

Report of: Director of Planning and Regeneration

Provide Housing Choices

Corporate Priorities: Promote Economic Development

Purpose:

To consider the outcome of engagement with residents, businesses and visitors on
their views and ideas about the future of Fareham Town Centre and to endorse the
proposed programme for the development of the Regeneration Strategy and Action
Plan.

Executive summary:

The Council’'s Corporate Strategy 2023-2029 includes a clear commitment to the
regeneration of Fareham Town Centre. The Town Centre Member Working Group
has developed a programme for the development of the Regeneration Strategy and
Action Plan by Summer 2024. Specialist advice and expertise has been
commissioned to support the development of the strategy and initial community
engagement has been undertaken. The results of this community engagement, set
out in Appendix A, will inform the identification of options and initiatives in the New
Year.

Recommendation:
It is recommended that the Executive:

(a) notes the outcome of the Council’'s engagement with residents, businesses
and visitors on the future of Fareham Town Centre; and

(b) endorses the “Four Pillars” and Strategic Objectives that have been
established to inform and guide the Fareham Town Centre Regeneration
Strategy and Action Plan as it is developed through the first half of 2024.

Reason:

To produce a Fareham Town Centre Regeneration Strategy and Action Plan in line
with the Corporate Strategy and to inform the next steps for the Council following
the acquisition of Fareham Shopping Centre.

Page 151



To attract investment, guide new development and public spaces and ensure that
the town centre meets changing needs.

Cost of proposals:

£231,000 has been set aside for specialist strategic advice, masterplanning,
communications, engagement, quantity surveyor services and commercial and
residential market advice, funded from existing budgets or earmarked provisions.

Appendices: A: Initial Engagement Summary Report, Redwood
Consulting December 2023

B: SWOT analysis, “Four Pillars” of the Strategy and the
Strategic Objectives, RivingtonHark December 2023

Background papers: None

Reference papers: Planning for the Future of Fareham Town Centre, 2017
Vision

Page 152



FAREHAM

BOROUGH COUNCIL

Executive Briefing Paper

Date: 08 January 2024

Subject: Fareham Town Centre Regeneration Strategy and Action Plan

Briefing by: | Director of Planning and Regeneration

Portfolio: Policy and Resources

INTRODUCTION

The Council’'s Corporate Strategy 2023-2029 includes a clear commitment to the
regeneration of Fareham Town Centre, prioritising activities to create a vibrant,
attractive environment and recognising the town centre’s importance in providing a
community focus and delivering local economic growth. The Council intends to drive the
regeneration of Fareham Town Centre, recognising the wider placemaking, economic
and community benefits that could be delivered by a reconsideration of the scale and
function of the retail offer and parking provision, as well as the introduction of new
homes and improved leisure facilities.

2. In 2017, the Council published its vision for the Town Centre: Planning for the Future of
Fareham Town Centre. This set out the Council’s ambitions to provide more homes,
cultural and leisure facilities and improve pedestrian access and safety in the Town
Centre. The Council has approved over £30m of funding to support the regeneration
programme in Fareham Town Centre and acquired Fareham Shopping Centre in
September 2023, long acknowledged to be the key missing element in the 2017 Vision.

3. As well as the acquisition of the shopping centre, major investments are currently in
progress with the development of Fareham Live and the planned demolition of Osborn
Road multi-storey car park in favour of a new surface car park. The Town Centre
Regeneration Strategy and Action Plan will connect these developments and those
planned by other key landowners, taking into account commercial sensitivities and
community aspirations.

4. The Council, as Local Planning Authority, also has an adopted Local Plan Policy BL1
‘Broad Location for Housing Growth’, which identifies that, through the ‘comprehensive
mixed-use redevelopment of the area, including a consolidated, varied, and integrated
retail and leisure offer’, the town centre can deliver up to 620 new dwellings, in addition
to improved accessibility and public realm in the town centre. It makes a public
commitment that the Council, as Local Planning Authority, will also lead the
development of a Fareham Town Centre Supplementary Planning Document in due
course.

Page 153



10.

The Council appointed Lambert Smith Hampton in May 2022 advise on the market
potential for town centre regeneration through the acquisition of Fareham Shopping
Centre to help deliver the Council’s vision and ambitions for the regeneration of
Fareham. Their advice was that the Town Centre has significant potential to:

Reduce overall retail space

Create spaces, connectivity and permeability

Focus on green space, health and wellness, biodiversity and community
Create opportunities for a range of additional town centre uses

Create a long-term parking solution

Assist in addressing climate change

DELIVERY CAPACITY AND SKILLS

Following the acquisition of Fareham Shopping Centre in September, the Council has
moved quickly to procure the necessary skills and capacity to both manage the
Shopping Centre and develop a deliverable and realistic Regeneration Strategy and
Action Plan.

In September 2023, RivingtonHark were appointed as Asset Manager for Fareham
Shopping Centre and in November 2023 they were also appointed to provide specialist
expertise to create a Regeneration Strategy and Action Plan. The Council will achieve
better value and quality with RivingtonHark in both roles due to the significant role that
the shopping centre will play in the Regeneration Strategy and Action Plan.
RivingtonHark are leaders in the specialist area of curation, evolution and improvement
of UK town and city centres and manage projects with a value in excess of £1bn,
working alongside local authorities, leading pension funds, and Global Capital providers
to invest in mixed use projects.

The Council has also appointed Leslie Jones Architects to undertake the specialist
masterplanning for the Town Centre, and Redwood Consulting to support the extensive
community engagement programme that will be required. Further appointments of
specialist quantity surveyors and commercial and residential advisors are currently
being undertaken.

£231,000 has been set aside for this additional specialist advice, funded from existing
budgets or earmarked provisions.

PROPOSED PROGRAMME

The new Fareham Town Centre Regeneration Strategy and Action Plan will be in place
by Summer 2024.

Page 154



11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

The proposed Programme has been developed by the Town Centre Member Working
Group as follows:

Project Phase Key Activities Date
Step 1 Community engagement to understand the | November and
Analysis needs and aspirations of Fareham’s December 2024
residents, businesses, shoppers and
visitors
Analysis Report Executive
January 2024
Step 2 Identify options and initiatives January and
Optioneering February 2024

Continued engagement throughout with
key interest groups, residents, businesses,
shoppers and visitors

Options Report Executive
March 2024
Step 3 Progress feasibility analysis on priority March to June 2024
options and initiatives
Feasibility
and Action Develop high-level Regeneration Strategy
Plan and Action Plan with short, medium and
long-term initiatives
Final community engagement on draft Summer 2024
Regeneration Strategy and Action
proposals
Step 4 Regeneration Strategy and Action Plan Executive
Adoption Summer 2024

Short-term and meanwhile initiatives will be identified in the Regeneration Strategy and
Action Plan, including the creation of a safe and secure evening link between Fareham
Live and West Street.

Separately, the Fareham Town Centre Supplementary Planning Document will be
developed by the Council, as Local Planning Authority, in due course.

CONSULATION AND ENGAGEMENT

A comprehensive programme of consultation and engagement with Fareham’s
residents, businesses, shoppers and visitors is planned, as set out in the table above, to
inform this piece of work.

Supported by regeneration consultation experts, Redwood, the Council completed the
first stage of engagement about the needs and aspirations of local people for their Town
Centre in December.

Between Wednesday 29 November and Wednesday 6 December, feedback was
encouraged online and at drop-in sessions in Fareham Town Centre, Shopping Centre
and Fareham Leisure Centre, with feedback ‘drop off’ points in the Library and Civic
Offices.

Page 155




17.

18.

19.

20.

Over 900 people, businesses and organisations participated in the first stage of
engagement and their views have been analysed and presented in the Summary
Statement attached at Appendix A.

ENVIRONMENTAL CONSIDERATIONS/CARBON IMPACT ASSESSMENT

No carbon impacts are anticipated as a direct result of the publication of the
Regeneration Strategy and Action Plan for Fareham Town Centre, although the
environment and carbon reduction will be key considerations within the strategy.

SUMMARY AND CONCLUSIONS

Rapid progress has been made on the Corporate Priority to develop a Regeneration
Strategy and Action Plan for Fareham Town Centre since the acquisition of Fareham
Shopping Centre in September 2023.

The proposed Programme has been developed by the Town Centre Member Working
Group and consultants have been appointed to provide the specialist expertise and
capacity to engage on and produce the Regeneration Strategy and Action Plan by
Summer 2024.

Enquiries:

For further information on this report please contact Sarah Ward, Head of Strategic Sites
(01329) 824669.

Page 156



REDWOOD Appendix A

CONSULTING

Fareham Town Centre Regeneration Strategy
Initial engagement summary report

November — December 2023
Contents

INErOAUCTION ..ot e e e s e e e e s ara e e e s e abee
Engagement strategy and approach .............ccccoooiiiie,
Summary of key findings following initial engagement .................cccciinnenin,
Engagement timeline...........ccoo oo,
Interaction from consultees / the PubliC.............cocooviiiiiiiieiiice e,
Overview of quantitative feedback .................ouvviiiiiiiiiii .

73X oY 07T 4 o [T =13

Page 157


4363_1
Text Box
Appendix A


Introduction

This report has been prepared to summarise the initial engagement conducted by Redwood Consulting,
on behalf of Fareham Borough Council. It outlines the strategy and approach taken to consult a range of
Fareham residents, businesses, visitors and other interested parties on the town centre, and to help
outline the strategic objectives that should be considered as part of a future regeneration strategy for the
town centre and Delivery Plan.

This report also captures a summary of the key findings from the initial engagement undertaken, an
engagement timeline as well as analytics from the exercise and quantitative information for consideration
by the wider project team. Appendices, highlighting some of the consultation activity undertaken can also
be found at the end of this report.

Engagement strategy and approach

The strategy for the initial engagement exercise was to maximise public interest in the potential for
change in Fareham Town Centre and capture a significant amount of meaningful feedback. To assist this,
a questionnaire was prepared to encourage a broad range of respondents to submit their views on the
town centre and how good the current experience is in order to capture a snapshot of views that reflected
public opinion in Fareham.

This questionnaire was publicised and communicated via well-recognised council channels and local
media and was made available online or to be completed at in-person events held during the weekend
and on a weekday, that are detailed later in this report. The formal consultation period lasted for one
week for purposes of capturing a snapshot of views, however responses submitted after the cut-off date
will still be considered.

Responses were then considered as part of the evaluation of the town centre’s strengths and weaknesses,
as well as the opportunities and threats that local residents, visitors and businesses perceived there to be
for the town centre’s future.

This engagement was also supported by convening two workshops; one with officers from Fareham
Borough Council and a second with members from Fareham Borough Council to consider how these views
reflected feedback provided by the public. Retailer engagement both within Fareham Shopping Centre
and the wider high street retail area was also carried out.

Page 158



Summary of key findings following initial engagement

1. Fareham Town Centre is seen as a convenient, functional and local shopping location.
That being said, it is not regarded as a destination to browse or somewhere to spend
leisure time (beyond drinking alcohol or going to the cinema, and this being largely
limited to weekend activity).

2. There is a general recognition of the town’s issues around retail and leisure decline —
the main focus of the feedback is how the retail could perform better. There are high
expectations around the town’s future retail opportunity as the key to unlocking any
future regeneration.

3. There is an opportunity to re-shape the town to encourage social interaction and
remove physical barriers in the town’s geography, with many commenting that their
user experience of Fareham Town Centre is disjointed when travelling around and
incoherent as a retail destination. However, respondents did often raise that the town
centre was easy to travel into.

4. Thereis a lack of civic pride, with many respondents citing that they wanted reasons to
feel proud of Fareham again and that it had “lost its way”. Promotion of Fareham’s
heritage as a market town with maritime, with space for events to help recultivate a
sense of belonging would be well supported.

5. There are a mix of views on housing around what housing could introduce to the town
centre, and low recognition of the area’s suitability for housing as part mixed-use
development via the local plan allocation for the town centre (BL1) and Corporate
Strategy. References to Whiteley, Chichester and Gunwharf Quays’ residential offer
were frequently made as being good.

6. With regard to design, there are conflicting opinions on height and the type of

architecture — modern vs heritage however all opinions were underscored by a desire
for quality.

Page 159



Engagement timeline

DATE

ACTIVITY

Wed 29" Nov

Opening of consultation period
Promotional launch

Launch of Let’s Talk Fareham Town Centre microsite and questionnaire
See Appendix
Press release issued to radio and local news (also available on Fareham
Borough Council website) See Appendix
Social media issued via council channels

o Twitter See Appendix

e Let’s Talk Fareham (Facebook) See Appendix
Digital news post on “Live, Love, Local” website See Appendix
Email direct marketing via Fareham Borough Council’s E-Panel See
Appendix
Council intranet
Screens / boards in the town centre
Letters to interested parties to share the questionnaire, including:

e The Fareham Society

e Hampshire Chamber of Commerce

e Enterprise South

e Hampshire and Isle of Wight Institute of Directors

e Hampshire Federation of Small Businesses

e Fareham Library

e Hampshire Constabulary
Hand delivery of questionnaire to town centre businesses
Questionnaire drop off points established in Fareham Library and
Fareham Civic Centre

Wed 29" Nov

Officer workshop: 3pm — 5pm See Appendix for photographs

Thu 30" Nov

Fareham’s business newsletter issued See Appendix
Coverage in the Portsmouth News

Fri 1% Dec Member workshop : 3pm — 5pm
Sat 2" Dec Public engagement, Day one See Appendix for photographs
e 1lam —3pm — Fareham Shopping Centre
e 1lam —3pm — Fareham Leisure Centre
Mon 4" Dec BBC Radio Solent interviews with Fareham Borough Council Executive Leader, Clir

Sedn Woodward

Public engagement, Day two See Appendix for photographs

9.30am — 12pm — at Fareham’s Monday market on West Street, using
Fareham Borough Council’s consultation Gazebo

Wed 29" Nov -
Wed 6 Dec

Letterboxes and feedback forms distributed to library and council
officers.

Anecdotal feedback provided by businesses and retailers with the wider
town centre

Thurs 7t Dec

Closing of consultation period

Page 160




\L)) REDWOOD

CONSULTING

Interaction from consultees / the public
The process achieved high levels of engagement and over the course of the weeklong period:

e 83 physical feedback forms were either submitted across the three events, posted into the letter
boxes in the library and civic centre, or sent in via Freepost;

o 772 digital feedback were submitted via the online feedback form (a further 61 were submitted
after the deadline for feedback closed).

e 27 officers and 16 members attended their respective workshops; and
e 50 businesses in the shopping centre and town centre were also engaged.

Overview of quantitative feedback
We have prepared a short overview of quantitative feedback/data provided by respondents. This is
based upon data provided by the 855 respondents who completed the questionnaire either digitally or

physically.

What is your age?
1.3% 0.7%

2.0%

_\‘ /_/—
20.4% J‘l 13.4%

mUnder18 = 18-24 m25-34 n35-44 w45-54 u55-64 m65-74 n75-84 m85+

Are you responding as a resident, a visitor, or a business?

m Resident = Visitor = Business

Page 161



REDWOOD
CONSULTING

29T abed

Evaluation of existing uses

The below graph shows the average scores respondents gave each of the different uses / facilities in the current town centre. The average is based on a score out of 10,
1 being very poor and 10 being very good. The highest scoring option was pedestrian access with an average score of 6.6. Other items that scored “above average” were
places to eat and drink, public transport, cycling access and parking availability. The lowest scoring option was shopping with an average score of 3.5.

7
6.6
6
5.5
5.3 5.3 5.3
5
4.5
4.4 43 4.4

IS}
a 3.5
(0]
oo
©
()]
zZ3

2

1

0

Leisure Shopping  Places to eat and Public transport ~ Pedestrian Cycling Access Parking Cultural facilities  Nighttime Public / Outside Employment
drink Access availability activities space opportunities



CONSULTING

Key issues to consider in relation to housing: The below diagram demonstrates the most popular themes arising in feedback in relation to a question around what
Fareham’s housing offer should look like. The larger squares represent the most frequently raised issues, including: 1) Affordable housing for local people, 2) questions
around the need for housing, 3) the desire to repurpose space and 4) ensure a level of architectural integrity around what is delivered / created.

Mix of housing offers / tenures Housing for first time buyers

€97 abed

Homes above retail /

repurposing of existing Not replace retail /
structures Adequate parking / discourgae commercial
Affordable / social housing / for local people facilities / infrastructure enterprise Family housing

Housing for
older people /
those with
disabilities
Apartments [ flats
Would support

retail f town
centre uses

Housing for young
Complimentary / quality professionals Sustaina... | Town / mews
Not sure of need / misunderstanding of need architectural style commuters Passivha... housing




CONSULTING

Key issues to consider in relation to increasing pride

The below diagram demonstrates the most popular themes arising in feedback in relation to encouraging civic pride. The larger squares represent the most frequently
raised issues, including: 1) Better retail and leisure facilities, 2) Regeneration to create a USP, 3) Clean and improved public realm, 4) Fostering community spirit and 5)
Creation of a better quality of built environment.

Clean / improved public realm Improved sense of community

9T abed

Better retail and leisure facilities Improve | increased

More seasonal markets and green space and
community events access to nature

Improved frontages / built
environment

Better public
transport / pedestrian

links Provision of

quality /
free | safe Public art /
parking heritage

Create reasons to visit
Regeneration to give it a USP Reduction in ASB beyond retail




Q) repwoob

CONSULTING

Appendices

Public questionnaire

® 0
Let’sTalk

Fareham Town Centre

Questionnaire — Help us shape the future of Fareham Town Centre

There iz a real and exciting opportunity for change in Fareham Town Centre since the Coundil
bought the shopping centre in September 2023. The way people shop and what they use town
centres for is changing. While Fareham Town Centre has 2 range of services and shops, there is
also an increasing number of vacancies, particularly in the shopping centre itself. The layout of
the shopping centre does not provide easy routes between Fareham Live (opening in 2024), the
library, the health centre, Council offices and the shopping and entertainment offered in West

Strest and into Market Quay beyond.

Farsham Borough Council is undertaking a period of engagement between mow and next spring
to understand what locs| people, residents, businesses and visitors would like to see.

Share your views and help us shape the future of Fareham Town Centre.

1. Thinking of why you visit and / or use Fareham Town Centre, how would you rate Fareham's current

offering for:
i I T T T T N T B
Leisure facilities {i.e. cinema, bowling, [ ] [ [ [ [ 1 [0 [0 [0 [
etch)
{very poor] |very good)
sopn i haoabbbbhhd
(wvery poor] [wery good)
i T8 4 5 & T & % m
Places to eat and drink OO0 O0oOooOooOooogoogog
{very poor] (very good)
i r 8 4 5 & Y ® % i
Public transport |:| :| |:| |:| |: D E D |:| D
{very poor] (very good)

P @ 3 & 5 & 7T &8 % i
I I I I I O
{very poor] (very good)

Pedestrian access

FAREHAM

BOROUGH COUNCIL

Page 165



REDWOOD
CONSULTING
Cycling access D0DO0ODO0O0ODO0O0O0
[very poor) [very good]
E 2 ) 4 > L r B 3 N
Parking availability OO0 OO0O0O00O0o0O0 o
[Very poor] [Wery good)
Cultural facilities (i.e. museum etc) Joooo Jaooao
[very poor) [wery good]
Mighttime activities [i.e. bars t r o8 & 5 &8 T B & W
and restaurants atc) gooooooodd
{Wery poor] [very good]
Public / outside space |— —| J—l |-—| |_ |b—| |_ |3—| L| ,”—
{very poor] [very good]
i - § L] 5 L] } L] § ]
Employment epportunities Do ooOoogogood ™
{wery poor] (wery good)

2. Please provide us with any further comments on your answers given abowve.

3. what do you like most about Fareham Town Centra?

4. wWhat would you most like to see changed in Fareham Town Centra?

5. What would encourage you to spend miare tima in the Town Centre?

6. What do you think Fareham Town Centre’s housing offer should lock like?

7. what would make you prouder of the Town Centre?

FAREHAM

Page 166




REDWOOD

CONSULTING
Keep in touch
1) Postcode:

2] Age |pleasscircle): Under1E 18-24 25-34 35-44 45-54 55-64 £5-74 75-84 B85+

3] Are you replying as a: Resident / visitor / business? [Please circle all that apply]

4) Gender [please circle): Male / Femzle / Prefer not to say

| would like you to s2nd me updates on the progress of the regensration strategy and masterplan for Fareham
Town Centre.

Plzazz tick [ ]

5] Email address:

&) ‘Your name [optional]:

This feedbock form hos been prepared by Redwood Consuiting on behalf of RivingtonHork who are working
with Farehom Borough Council on the future of Farehom Town Centre. This information is being collected an
behalf of RivingtonHork and will be shored with them and the project teom, securely stored and destroyed ot

the end of the engogement process. All written feedbock will be ononymised and shored with RivingtonHark.

Please leave your completed questionnaire in the ballot box provided or alternatively,
send your completed questionnaire via post, addressed to “Freepost REDWOOD” at no
extra charge.

Page 167



REDWOOD

CONSULTING

Let’s Talk Fareham Town Centre microsite

Fareham Town Centre

Help to shape the future of your town centrel &

Fareham Town Centre today

Across the UK, the way people shop and what they use town centres for is
changing. While Fareham town centre has a range of services and shops,
there is also an increasing number of vacancies, particularly in the
shopping centre itself. The layout of the shopping centre does not provide
easy routes between Fareham Live (opening in 2024), the library, the
health centre, Council offices and the shopping and entertainment offered
in West Street and into Market Quay beyond.

Let’sTalk

There is a real and exciting opportunity for change since the Council Fa rE'ha m Town ce ntre
bought Fareham Shopping Centre in September 2023.

Possibilities for change

We would like to have more homes in the town centre as well as ensuring any changes in the town centre offering of shops, services
and entertainment will better serve our community's changing needs. We also want to create more interesting and high-guality
outdoor public spaces and vibrant uses during the day and evening.

Your views

Thank you for your participation|

Over 1,000 Fareham businesses, residents and visitors participated in Fareham Borough Council's town centre listening exercise at
the start of this month.

This feedback is now being considered alongside other technical assessments to develop a business case for future regeneration
activities. These findings will be shared in the New Year, and there will be further opportunities to discuss the future of Fareham
during a second phase of engagement in the Spring.

While the initial listening exercise period has closed, residents can still share views on what they like about the town centre, what
they would change and determine what other uses could be incorporated by emailing censultations@fareham. gov.uk or by visiting
the Let's Talk Fareham Facebook group & . This activity forms part of Fareham Berough Council's commitment to engage on the
future of the town centre, following its purchase of the shopping centre in September. The council is committed to understanding
what local people, residents, businesses and visitors would like to see to shape a regeneration strategy.

Page 168



REDWOOD

CONSULTING

Fareham Borough Council press release

Press Release

29 November 2023

Help us shape the future of Fareham Town Centre _
Following the purchase of Fareham Shopping Centre and adjoining properties in
September, Fareham Borough Council is undertaking a period of engagement
between now and next summer, firstly to understand what local people,
residents, businesses and visitors would like to see and then to share early
ideas and plans.
This will begin with an initial listening exercise between Wednesday 29
November and Wednesday 6 December. There are multiple ways to get involved ’
across the week to help us shape the future of Fareham Town Centre e S a
« Public drop-in sessions: Fareham Town Centre

« Saturday 2 December — 11am — 3pm: Delme Square (by Costa
Coffee / Next) Fareham Shopping Centre

« Saturday 2 December — 11am — 3pm: Café area, Fareham Leisure

Centre
- C
« Monday 4 December — 9.30am — 12pm: Monday Market, Fareham Lets Talk Fareham Town Centre
Town Centre Download high resolution (354.90 KB,

300dpi)

« Online feedback: https://bit.Iy/3TeOoNR

« Feedback ‘drop off' points in the Library and Civic Offices, printed forms
will be available.

Councillor Sedn Woodward, Executive Leader of Fareham Borough Council, said: “This is a pivotal moment in
Fareham’s progress, and we want local people and all our visitors to continue to feel proud of what it has to offer.
Town centre regeneration is one of our key and by taking ownership of the shopping centre we have the opportunity
to think about how we ean enhance its appeal and create a vibrant, thriving place.

“This 1z a very important journey in our Town’s future and we want to hear from our community so that everyone is
invested in the process. We are keen to understand the needs and aspirations of Fareham’s residents, businesses,
shoppers and visitors alike. Fareham Town Centre already has a lot to offer and now is the time for us to build on
all that is positive and make Fareham the best it can be.

The way people shop and what they use town centres for is changing. While Fareham Town Centre has a range of services and
shops, there is also an increasing number of vacancies, particularly in the shopping centre itself. The layout of the shopping centre
does not provide easy routes between Fareham Live (opening in 2024), the library, the health centre, Council offices and the
shopping and entertainment offered in West Street and into Market Quay beyond.

Akey early priority of the engagement process will be to understand what people like about the town centre, what you would change
and determine what other uses — whether that be new homes or more office space — could be incorporated to increase footfall and
support a night time economy. The findings from this and other engagement activities in the spring will then be used to inform a
regeneration strategy and masterplan in later next year.

To support in this process, Fareham Borough Council has recruited the experience of RivingtonHark who will lead on providing
strategic town centre regeneration advice. They will be aided by Leslie Jones Architecture as masterplanner and Redwood
Consulting who will be working alongside the Council to manage the community engagement process.

ENDS

Notes to Editor:
For more information, please contact fareham@redwoodconsulting.co.uk / 0207 828 5553.

About Fareham Borough Council:

Fareham Borough Council is a local authority for the area midway between Portsmouth and Southampton. With the town at its
centre, the Borough covers the wards of Fareham, Portchester, Stubbington, Hill Head, Titchfield, Park Gate, Warsash, Locks Heath
and Sarisbury.

The Council is governed by Councillors from each ward, who work with specific Council departments dealing with a wide range of
local services and issues.

This and previous media releases can be viewed on the Council's website: www fareham gov uk/pressreleases

Page 169



REDWOOD

CONSULTING

Keep in touch on the go:

Like us on Facebook

Follow us on X

Follow us on Instagram

About RivingtonHark

RivingtonHark is the most experienced and active company focused on creating, evolving and improving UK town and city centres.
We do this on behalf of both the public and private sectors, covering development, asset, and investment management. We have:

We have the UK’s first ESG focused Fund with a £300m mandate to secure quality institutional retail assets. The first of which
was Clayton Square in Liverpool, and more recently Victoria Leeds at £120m and Liberty Centre Romford for £90m

Opened Chester Northgate, major new regeneration project of some £65m

Opened Copr Bay Swansea to much acclaim. Cost £135m

On site in Newcastle City Centre

Asset manage more than £1bn of town centre assets in the UK, and rapidly growing

We have bought or sold over £330m of Shopping Centres in last 18 months. Currently the most active player in this sector.
We coinvest with our investors where appropriate.

For further information contact:

Customer Enquiries

Tel: 01329 236100
Email: customerservicecentre@fareham gov. uk

Media Enquiries

The Communications Team

Tel: 01329 824310

Email: publicity@fareham gov.uk
Fax: 01329 550576

Page 170



REDWOOD

CONSULTING

Fareham Borough Council social media post (Twitter)

‘ Fareham Borough Council

@FarehamBC

<8 Join the conversation about Fareham Town Centre at these drop-in
sessions:

Sat 2/12: 1lam-3pm: Delme Square (by Next) Fareham Shopping Centre
Sat 2/12: 1lam-3pm: Café area, Fareham Leisure Centre

Mon 4/12: 9.30am-12pm: Monday Market, Fareham Town Centre
fareham.gov.uk/FarehamTownCen...

Let’sTalk

Fareham Town Centre

Join the conversation

www.fareham.gov.uk/
FarehamTownCentre

1

12:58 PM - Nov 30, 2023 - 159 Views

) 0T VY R

>

Page 171



REDWOOD

CONSULTING

Fareham Borough Council social media post (Facebook, via Let’s Talk Fareham)

J#¥Help to shape the future of your town centre! ht
Fareham Town Centre today

Across the UK, the way people shop and what they use town centres for is changing.
While Fareham town centre has a range of services and shops, there is also an
increasing number of vacancies, particularly in the shopping centre itself. The layout
of the shopping centre does not provide easy routes between Fareham Live
(opening in 2024), the library, the health centre, Council offices and the shopping
and entertainment offered in West Street and into Market Quay beyond.

Possibilities for change

There is a real and exciting opportunity for change since the Council bought
Fareham Shopping Centre in September 2023.

We would like to have more homes in the town centre as well as ensuring any
changes in the town centre offering of shops, services and entertainment will better
serve our community's changing needs. We also want to create more interesting
and high-quality outdoor public spaces and vibrant uses during the day and
evening.

Your views

We really want to hear from our residents, our local businesses and visitors to the
area about what they think of the town centre, as it is now and what it could be in
the future.

This will kick off with an initial listening exercise between Wednesday 29 November
and Wednesday 6 December. There are multiple ways to get involved across the
week to help us shape the future of Fareham Town Centre:

Please complete our questionnaire and let us know what you think. Your views will
help us understand what people want and will help us come up with some broad
principles for the future. Online survey:

Attend a public drop-in session: &

* Saturday 2 December — 11am — 3pm: Delme Square (by Costa Coffee / Next)
Fareham Shopping Centre

¢ Saturday 2 December — 11am — 3pm: Café area, Fareham Leisure Centre
* Monday 4 December — 9.30am — 12pm: Monday Market, Fareham Town Centre

Feedback "drop off’ points in the Library and Civic Offices,
printed forms will be also be available.

® You can read more about the background to the current consultation here:
h : /.../far

Let’sTalk

Fareham Town Centre

2 shares

() Comment ¢ Share

Page 172



@ REDWOOD

CONSULTING

Page 173



/) REDWOOD

/ CONSULTING

“Live, Love, Local” website post

Fareham Town 'Centre‘

Help us shape the future of Fareham Town
Centre

Page 174



CONSULTING

Following the purchase of Fareham Shopping Centre and adjoining properties in September, Fareham
Borough Council is undertaking a period of engagement between now and next summer, firstly to
understand what local people, residents, businesses and visitors would like to see and then to share early

ideas and plans.

This will begin with an initial listening exercise between Wednesday 29 November and Wednesday 6
December. There are multiple ways to get involved across the week to help us shape the future of Fareham

Town Centre:

+  Public drop-in sessians:
s Saturday 2 December - 11am - 3pm: Delme Square (by Costa Coffee / Next) Fareham Shopping Centre
« Saturday 2 December - 11am - 3pm: Cafe area, Fareham Leisure Centre
« Monday 4 December - g.30am - 12pm: Monday Market, Fareham Town Centre

«  Online feedback: https://bitly/3TecoNR

« Feedback 'drop off’ points in the Library and Civic Offices, printed forms will be available.

Councillor Sean Woodward, Executive Leader of Fareham Borough Council, said: “This is a pivotal moment in
Fareham's progress, and we want local people and all our visitors to continue to feel proud of what it has to
offer. Town centre regeneration is one of our key and by taking ownership of the shopping centre we have

the opportunity to think about how we can enhance its appeal and create a vibrant, thriving place.

“This is a very important journey in our town’s future, and we want to hear from our community so that
everyone is invested in the process. We are keen to understand the needs and aspirations of Fareham's
residents, businesses, shoppers and visitors alike. Fareham Town Centre already has a lot to offer and now

is the time for us to build on all that is positive and make Fareham the best it can be.

The way people shop and what they use town centres for is changing. While Fareham Town Centre has a
range of services and shops, there is also an increasing number of vacancies, particularly in the shopping
centre itself. The layout of the shopping centre does not provide easy routes between Fareham Live
(opening in 2024), the library, the health centre, Council offices and the shopping and entertainment

offered in West Street and into Market Quay beyond.

A key early priority of the engagement process will be to understand what people like about the town
centre, what you would change and determine what other uses — whether that be new homes or more
office space - could be incorporated to increase footfall and support a nighttime economy. The findings
from this and other engagement activities in the spring will then be used to inform a regeneration strategy

and masterplan in later next year.

To support in this process, Fareham Borough Council has recruited the experience of RivingtonHark who will
lead on providing strategic town centre regeneration advice. They will be aided by Leslie Jones Architecture
as masterplanner and Redwood Consulting who will be working alongside the Council to manage the

community engagement process.

Page 175



REDWOOD

CONSULTING

Fareham Borough Council E-Panel email
[EXT] "Help us shape the future of Fareham Town Centre" - November 2023

. Repl & ReplyAll | —> Forward
consultation@fareham.gov.uk @ | © Reply | € Reply

Wed 06/12/2023 10:38
@‘r’ou forwarded this message on 06/12/2023 10:41.

Unsubscribe Action [tems + Get more add-ins

If you are having trouble reading this newsletter in your email you can read it in your web browser

i
"Help us shape the future of Fareham Town Centre™

November 2023

Welcome to the latest edition of Fareham Borough Council's E-panel.

It's a great way to get involved with Council consultations and it gives residents a chance to have their say.

Help us shape the future of Fareham Town Centre

Let’sTalk

Fareham Town Centre

Following the purchase of Fareham Shopping Centre and adjoining properties in September, we are undertaking a period of
engagement between now and next summer, firstly to understand what local people, residents, businesses and visitors would like to
see and then to share early ideas and plans.

Complete the online feedback form: https:/bit.ly/3TeQoNR

Feedback 'drop off' points in the Library and Civic Offices, printed forms will be available to complete.

Join our Let's Talk Fareham Facebook group

Page 176



REDWOOD

CONSULTING

Officer/member workshop images

Page 177




))) REDWOOD

CONSULTING

Fareham Borough Council business newsletter

Fareham's Business Newsletter

Help us shape the future of Fareham Town Centre

Let’sTalk

Fareham Town Centre

Following the purchase of Fareham Shopping Centre and adjoining properties in September, Fareham Borough Council is
undertaking a period of engagement between now and next summer, firstly to understand what local people, residents, businesses
and visitors would like to see and then to share early ideas and plans.

It is important that the local business voice is heard so please participate if you can and encourage your business network to do the
same.

To start the proceedings, there is an initial listening exercise between Wednesday 29 November and Wednesday 6 December.
There are multiple ways to get involved across the week to help us shape the future of Fareham Town Centre:

Click here to complete the on-line survey &

Or drop in to one of our in-person sessions:
Saturday 2 December — 11am — 3pm: Delme Square (by Costa Coffee / Next) Fareham Shopping Centre
Saturday 2 December — 11am — 3pm: Café area, Fareham Leisure Centre

Monday 4 December — 9 30am — 12pm: Monday Market, Fareham Town Centre

Printed feedback forms are also available to complete and drop-off at Fareham Library and the Civic Offices.

To support in this process, Fareham Borough Council has recruited the experience of RivingtonHark who will lead on providing
strategic town centre regeneration advice. They will be aided by Leslie Jones Architecture as masterplanner and Redwood
Consulting who will be working alongside the Council to manage the community engagement process.

A key early priority of the engagement process will be to understand what people like about the town centre, what you would change
and determine what other uses — whether that be new homes or more office space — could be incorporated to increase footfall and
support a nighttime economy. The findings from this and other engagement activities in the spring will then be used to inform a
regeneration strategy and masterplan in later next year.

Councillor Sean Woodward, Executive Leader of Fareham Borough Council, said: "This is a very important journey in our town's
future, and we want to hear from our community so that everyone is invested in the process. We are keen to understand the needs
and aspirations of Fareham's residents, businesses, shoppers and visitors alike. Fareham Town Centre already has a lot to offer and
now is the time for us to build on all that is positive and make Fareham the best it can be "

Page 178



Media coverage secured in Portsmouth News

Politics

New future of Fareham town centre and shopping
centre to be shaped as residents are urged to give their
views on its regeneration

Fareham residents are being given the chance to have their say on the future of the town centre thanks to a
consultation which is being launched to find out their views.

By Kelly Brown
Published 30th Nov 2023

Updated 30th Nov 2023

®X®

Following on from the purchase of Fareham Shopping Centre and adjoining properties in September, Fareham
Borough Council is launching a period of engagement between now and next summer to understand what local
people, residents, businesses and visitors would like to see and then afterwards share early ideas and plans. The

council has said a key early priority will be to understand what people like about the town centre, what they would
change and what other uses could be incorporated other than retail, including new homes, more office space and
a better night time offering.

ALSO READ: Shopping centre bought by council in bid to ‘transform’ the town centre

This will begin with an initial listening exercise with public drop-in sessions taking place on Saturday, December
2 between 11am and 3pm in Delme Square (by Costa Coffee / Next) in Fareham Shopping Centre and on the same
day and times at the café area in Fareham Leisure Centre. There will also be a third drop in session on Monday,
December 4 between 9.30am and midday at the Monday Market in Fareham Town Centre. An online feedback
form is also available at https://bit.ly/3TeooNR [ and feedback ‘drop off’ points are in the Library and Civic
Offices where printed forms will be available.

Page 179



REDWOOD

CONSULTING

The findings from this and other engagement activities in the spring will then be used to inform a regeneration
strategy and masterplan in later next year.

Councillor Sedn Woodward, Executive Leader of Fareham Borough Council, said: “This is a pivotal moment in
Fareham'’s progress, and we want local people and all our visitors to continue to feel proud of what it has to offer.
Town centre regeneration is one of our key and by taking ownership of the shopping centre we have the
opportunity to think about how we can enhance its appeal and create a vibrant, thriving place.

“This is a very important journey in our Town’s future and we want to hear from our community so that everyone
is invested in the process. We are keen to understand the needs and aspirations of Fareham's residents,
businesses, shoppers and visitors alike. Fareham Town Centre already has a lot to offer and now is the time for us
to build on all that is positive and make Fareham the best it can be.

“The way people shop and what they use town centres for is changing. While Fareham Town Centre has a range of
services and shops, there is also an increasing number of vacancies, particularly in the shopping centre itself. The
layout of the shopping centre does not provide easy routes between Fareham Live (opening in 2024), the library,
the health centre, Council offices and the shopping and entertainment offered in West Street and into Market
Quay beyond.”

To support in this process, Fareham Borough Council has recruited the experience of RivingtonHark who will lead
on providing strategic town centre regeneration advice. It will be aided by Leslie Jones Architecture as
masterplanner and Redwood Consulting who will be working alongside the council to manage the community
engagement process.

Page 180



REDWOOD

CONSULTING

Public engagement images

)
e

e

e
£ e
-—-_-  S—
—

2

Join the
conversation

Farcham TownCentre.

Page 181






Appendix B

SWOT- Strengths

LY

Al

\
W
!

L

h—\
— A

;

_,- 2 -l-... i-“_.—.‘.--- iy, * ‘f‘ IiL‘;»LH<
STRENGTHS S sty 7y B0 N CENTRE
+ LOCATION AND ACCESSIBILITY | i "l 43d ENVIRONMENT
‘T\_T'_ i j - [ S —— = '/_ Vs

MARKET DAYS

SR

AR

o CENTRALISED CIVIC USES - 4,9 ﬁ;f!‘.%w '”\1 -

«  STRONG HERITAGE 06 5.5 . ST NING |
ki B F .5 % SURROUNDINGS

o TOWN CENTRE ENVIRONMENT | &

¢ STUNNING SURROUNDINGS



4363_2
Text Box
Appendix B


SWOT- Weaknesses

~ret 5 w , = B/ e = & \P w SE = ® 74 2 o \
B - (40 T / 78 e S N _ 0 i S AN | 488 \/\@J’ ¥ 707
0, S : | h o AEGp-5 | T r ‘ G 1 \#e ¢ & 4 - O % X 2/ ,
e S ; LI “ E‘ T oy = & ! t__ A . =\ / s “’“w\\—.‘ P e % y \éj 7 viv vl \:/
[ A / ' 8 LHLL ’ b & \/ = { ! /“ ] .‘,«L‘LJ"”" . ,\.\ \;/ _ 11 - @\ 7 P \o\\/ NZ o «Q\/ »
E [ L i.~ \ | | - Bl | § N LA /_ FET\\g )\ \* 0 \ \S»’ \,/‘\/\;) HJ & \<<</ > ¢ Q ® \)V A b -
= [l B i S ‘ ; R P T\ L % vy : &3 Y Wefad
| f;;_: = o i L/ b B v e \ “\L\LUVN - \x\%}\t\ g P\ \\/ ﬂ\/ii/ % S y N\/. X/ ,CQ @ /A3 ;/J Sy
o = lLLL\L.{;L / 7= — A u \‘\_‘\L‘L\’ \{.\L"\f\:\—&\\/\ R\\* y) [\// s \'\/,\(/ &/ /J\/ \,\‘J ’ \i e ) &
£l .97 - a\'\a s \pies \\,\\\w v A\ W& /av "2//1// & /\ (/> R <@\ (O 2 < 3’ &
- t B b Uy V( \ ,‘ LJ"L“L‘E \\: AL\ »'\X“\'_\’ \‘/\/ \/\;\_J\'\\f o A @ L B ¥4 J(%// \{\‘,:;v </ N ! D’ J\\/w .4 %4‘ \\/'f
'J: t- E\\” (\{\‘// LE E =) LL | - \.\’\/\/\"\&\/ \\‘\: \\,\’\, g ‘\' = ,)’—: - “H N\ \‘: \\\i \/'<f J v{\/>\ z \ \\_l/ o \/ \'ﬁ/\'/\(l l/\/\/\/\f ,wf)
BB Se S 5l < o =LA - LRI : A X »\
- S\\ 5 M)x_=t= - 8 | = 3 ‘kéau“L\L i V”k e % Vo\}'% \:<<<@\<[ o4
o o FiA - e LACK OF N RZ RN
- L _/ ] 7 z 'y N e y \</ Y I
&/ a5/ % Y ¥R C = C O N N\, Y
A . - ° = 1 L\ g ) \ 4 )
e it B e e geie & 7”7 LACK OF o N O,
w0 R e e =TT oo 2, & ;
) e W= \ %
& = W T E = == y Q & ¢
S T e B T el e \ 4 4
TN g B BT ! LL\L \;mm‘h‘ﬂ : i W\&!&U&k\\‘*‘m\”‘ = 3 0 \7\{
& = \ 5 | Hhi {8 v == _ i X !
(50 ¢ Lo ) g ‘ 1\\,\&\\& k_ - ]
AR .vk\ﬂ\x\;\ﬂ“lm% \\mu{‘“‘“ I Visbe - g \ R
\ J%y@‘” e R
SHOPPING )
NC Q= § s 4 HOPPIN ,
\ g \6 - TR $ CENTRE
Lo o SENSE OF Fs
/ Nl )\ DOMINATES A
2 WEAKNESSES | ARRIVAL . L\ﬂL
| : ll H W & -
> 1 quLLL =) lL" “K,LJ\ \'s_J‘
= |+ NO SENSE OF ARRIVAL - e |
2. === ‘ al
(( S \‘2,%/ L‘}LLLLLL“" J U_\,L_U-U‘Vu\.u— "—‘-'—]
oo 1+ LACK OF HOUSING el e
- |+ LACKOF INDIVIDUALITY $ e e |
=z o= CONNECTIVITY
yff ‘1_.“ : J NG
¢ |+ RETAILVOIDS = s\ WITHIN CENTRE |
o s PR
e 1Ly, *"EU‘LE‘A*‘LLA
3 |+ SHOPPING CENTRE DOMINATES| \ b
O\ (< I\
o |« POOR CONNECTIVITY WITHIN + P ~ 4
A i 14 4 ) g - > ¢ /
> l\%‘ CENTRE A LU‘ULJI‘I“ILL] ’.r‘wf':lt/ :_L: ;T % y, 7
y @ Ej ~f [ X ; Ny ) .
\}/\Q g (W) 5= g L Sy B\ S g y &
4|« POOR SELF PROMOTION N o ISR Eesmt 2 Wi | *
% R et B Y N b 4 o
Y = K& T 5 o
|+ WATERFRONT UNDERUSED =] & AN $TIT 5 N A S s = ! -
U\ A\ el e gt 5 TG e TReES e
/ < N T w1t & T\ * | Ffe) (o s > & X 202 & :
W S0 \Z BTN s v o e ) | | N\ NG T
&Q% N\ {0 Eo N RN SR\ g\ s | B r« oh ) A \/“5/'*,4/ 8 \ 3
7 \L{//, ﬁ'\’ > \Q:\QV \\ ‘é‘l AN L \C o \{ W= i = \\.K\/ Q% ‘\: < \."‘\5: = /" \ \f‘t\



SWOT- Opportunities

Rl s B> %,

r  Beanlt )| Saet %\ \ /\: (
| R (=) 5 l F =
| . -5 ! I\

LLL'% LQCJ (\/ﬂp\% )

7~ IMPROVE_ >
= ( CONNECTIVITY

. % =3
A\ OPPORTUNITIES b 5§ p 5
o )
|+ CONSOLIDATE RETAL ‘\ ' CON]IQSEQFkIIEATE
:f% IMPROVED OPEN SPACE J L Ry
- ©|+ IMPROVE CONNECTIVITY |
\i~
" |+ FAREHAM LIVE |
o *
©° |+ ENUVEN HIGH STREET
|+ POOR QUALITY PARKING
SN %
= ©
e {+ CONNECT TO GREEN AND BLUE TO GREEN AND /
A~ BLUE SPACES /
;j@ « PROMOTE FAREHAM Y/ 2k ]
<5 4 5
#5| » RECAPTURE SPEND LEAKAGE Y. ol
|- WELBORNE fiic \‘*
\

e
s T AN &Q@g\%{c %

<’4&6(/{.7/, '/ = .-NR/,'. p ~\°k‘§‘ o \\/ ‘é".\}

@



G Snall T W IR g e BT z N2\ W, | (T PRESNY TN P \
4 ([[‘ u L_: & > Q":— / > —1 2 o /{ o \(\:: \/\,\,\/ :-J\: ) - = \V<{:,//L:)U {A‘\I\A‘L‘\X&k\/: /v\\/ \;// B ~ j y <l~/ s \/‘\ \ \Q/ 8 @ \/\'/\/ \4\« Ao
A v 7 S . o NG p ir f Sl 1\ P & | (4« _ < <
& QZL‘/ ¢ i‘LcLL LL;TJF T & ‘1\"‘\’; Q“SQ n \{: o ‘lliJ \': @ = A r/\ ) g e 3 \.>/ ~ \{ o \/aV- Q{/\/ B 7 & Q
LL " ‘ / ‘ g / ‘%* b \~. S | L L:J ,.“‘/ i P le_ N oy Y)‘ ' ““‘ ] = e\ Ak, © > \ \' X 2 V.l '\ﬁ O\ < / v
Vil %‘( & E ]:‘— i \ L “ } pt LL“U*[L:‘LL _\L—; ; } \_‘j\/‘) \ \ 1“ : ‘\. "11¢ \\:_ % \s’\ A\ ~‘\(\/ \/ 4 ; \ \\/ # \'\6 % P \) ‘kv N4 \\/\} \l"\r’
‘LZK O/ | | | E o i . L/’/‘ R - s e \\}\?\}i - \U g\\@ o e @ o) o el R Y ok
S Y.% G 15 ‘ ) } %8 1 e AW\ g 72 v o P U 88 & oty
IL-_‘_ & & Z[‘(( LfL*E:‘ b o - : - — P! \j \ A\ i \/’v ) = \\/\ O\ Y . 2 \\/\/’ % 4, \Q/\A/J p q’ 0% Y ,\J \
=l A O (] - ¥ \“‘ i\ Wk A &\‘_‘ 7 “e i y 5 w &
S L% SN, | ——— AP e RN o A 1, NN NS AST WY/ A &
68\ © L w ) HE S A e e | P\ 0t = ‘\;“\}L}é“ T V@/J/y 2 > < 98" R &
<2\ Gor e Sph I AR £l |5 esiE o (PN WY BV 2 A 3, & | 8750 S &
P . = X o2\ \ > = - { ¢ \ e T \ / . Y S >3 W
% =N E(§ St A% 52 8 A\ =5 &\L\L\;\’ e\ et W Vi~ W= S P \ . /%65 “\QQL 29" >
TS = & = = |5 c =3 3 1\ 8\ J I ’ o 3Bl &
\ s s\ s Seiph| R s = m) PP oi?| D= e = I = O NG 2 AL YV
L‘ L K/\/ \<L[’ LL t - \ 7 W \\L P \u &= Cu \/“: 0 ! Wr e v \\ \(‘ \/ A e /7\1
7% / - s : - . = 2 N % \
g e s e Laialp| S\ 28al N, N\ |
S Y \ z,%a%@y\ ;
\ [}
< ) e »
& i o
V. § /
W ;J;\/ Y
] \7
7

Aiylolovs by :
el & SR

OF QUALITY

g\\ LU o g o
= LLLLWLL\LLLE\U'W S i
15 B '\ ; L
\&‘ \/\/ /t Y UL_ \ L\\LM\/ LLL\L \‘Ld‘q&&\w l‘E: EVENING
S\ LR \E\L‘L\L\ﬂ“ﬂ)l = IR
Ui s BN ECONOMY
= =AW RETAIL P
& LEISURE

COMPETITION

al — =

9 ST e SR 2=
= =8 Bl g, \
BNk gl il

‘Q\

\4
Y THREATS
" |+ LACKOF QUALITY EVENING S
-~ | ECONOMY ‘
A “\ '
7/, STRUCTURAL
£ Sy CHANGE OF |
|+ LACK OF IDENTITY, PURPOSE 5.0 . |
2 \Z
— \c \\\-
© |+ RETAIL AND LEISURE 9% ¢ Y
ve COMPETITION 1 11T g
e & 1 g g 4/
»&\V‘% ST RSy I *J'Vt/ £ /4] '
. |* STRUCTURAL CHANGE OF & (w55 F . 8 ~
S RETAL 4 ) ErE) (B8 0 ﬁ
i\/\(<< d&_‘;ﬁ g"": j
LN A g g
W LTI B AT e ane J
"7 / o~ \Q 4 ¢ © o © S = e ‘ §
BT/ TN WA 2\ AV e N al



KEY STRATEGIC OBJECTIVES

eeeeeeeeeee



Manifesto/4 Pillars

pride )

Grow Pride in
our Town

88T abed

Create new

sense of purpose
for our Town

Improve
perceptions
of our Town

Personality '

Restore our
Town's identity

December 2023



Key Strategic Objectives

01 Address connectivity issues

O 2 Consolidate retail and introduce new vibrant uses

68T abed

() 5 Make the most of Fareham's inherent qualities
04 Make the Town Centre more attractive

()5 Create a unique selling point(s)

eeeeeeeeeeee






Agenda Item 12(1)

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 191






By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 197






Agenda Item 12(2)

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 199






By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 205






	Agenda
	2 Minutes
	8(1) Emergency and Temporary Accommodation Pressure
	Appendix A - Confidential
	Appendix B

	9(1) D-Day 80 Event
	10(1) Fees and Charges 2024/25
	General Notes
	Resident Fees
	Non-Resident Fees
	Registration of Electors (Statutory)
	Gambling Act 2005
	Licensing Act 2003
	Premises Licences /Club Applications
	The Fees are based on rateable values of properties:
	Personal Licences, Temporary Events and Other Fees
	Outdoor Sport and Recreation
	Appendix B - Solent Airport Fees and Charges 2023-24
	Confidential AppendixC

	10(2) Finance Strategy, Revenue Budget & Council Tax 2024/25
	Appendix C  Medium-Term Finance Strategy
	1.	OVERVIEW OF THE MEDIUM-TERM FINANCE STRATEGY (MTFS)
	2.	REVENUE POSITION
	3.	CORPORATE PRIORITIES
	3.1	Corporate Strategy 2023-2029
	3.2	Fareham Live
	3.3	Fareham Town Centre
	3.4	Solent Airport and Daedalus
	3.5	Climate Change
	4.	CAPITAL POSITION
	4.1	CAPITAL STRATEGY
	4.2	CAPITAL RESOURCES
	4.3	MINIMUM REVENUE PROVISION
	5.	PROPOSED BUDGET 2024/25
	5.2	BASE BUDGET 2024/25
	5.3	CONTRIBUTIONS TO AND FROM RESERVES
	6.	FIVE YEAR FORECAST
	7.	CONCLUSION


	10(3) Capital Programme and Capital Strategy 2024/25
	Appendix A Capital Strategy 2024-25

	10(4) Fareham Town Centre Draft Regeneration Strategy and Action Plan
	Appendix A Engagement Summary report
	Appendix B Fareham Town Centre Regeneration Strategy

	12(1) Purchase of Strategic Land at Faraday Business Park (South)
	APPENDIX A

	12(2) Sale of Development Land at Faraday Business Park (South)
	APPENDIX A




